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Financial Highlights

Selected Financial Highlights

Dollars in thousands except per
share data

Select Operating Data

Net interest income

Provision for loan losses

Total non interest income

Total non interest expense

Net income

Select Financial Data

Total assets

Loans net

Deposits

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Total stockholders equity

Performance Ratios

Return on average assets

Return on average equity

Average interest rate spread

Net interest margin

Efficiency ratio

Per Share Data

Diluted earnings per share

Book value per share

Market price at period end

Risk Profile

Tier risk-based
capital ratio

Net charge-offs to average
loans outstanding

Non-performing loans as percent of total loans

Allowance for loan losses as percent of

56179
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56240
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52813
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9353

44062

11184

$1623752

1112941

1229975

106417

22361

0700/o

4.940/0

3.170/0

3.51/o

71.08/o

0.74

14.47

16.09

16.17/o

0.19/o

0.750/0

131.68/o

Q990/7

Exclusive of the $5.0 million of
acquisition-related expenses $4.5 million ESOP plan termination expense

and $207000 in FHLBB prepayment penalties non-interest expense for the year ended December31

20t2 would have been $46.6 million

Exclusive of the $5.0 million of acquisition-related expenses $4.5 million ESOP plan termination expense

and $207000 in FHLBB prepayment penalties the $202000 other-than-temporary impairment charge and

the $660000 income tax effect related to these items for the
year ended December 31 2012 net income

would have been $12.8 million

Exclusive of the $5.0 million of acquisition-related expenses $4.5 million in ESOP plan termination

expense and $207000 in FHLBB
prepayment penalties the $202000 other-than-temporary impairment

charge and the $660000 income tax effect related to these items for the year ended December 31 2012

the return on average assets would have been 0.73% and the return on average equity would have been

534%

Exclusive of the $5.0 million of acquisition-related expenses $4.5 million in ESOP plan termination

expense and $207000 in FHLBB prepaymvnt penalties the efficiency ratio for the
year ended December

31 2012 would have been 70.49%

Exclusive of the $5.0 million of acquisition-related expenses $4.5 million in ESOP plan termination

expense and $207000 in FHLBB
prepayment penalties the $202000 other-than-temporary impairme

charge and the $660000 income tax eftect related to these items for the year ended December31 20

diluted
earnings per share would have been $0.83 per share

Excluding $7.0 million in
non-performing

loans
acquired allowance for loan losses as percent of non-

performing loans would have been 157.72% at December31 201

Exclusive of the $659.6 million and $148.9 million in
acquired loans and $5.0 million and $19.1 million ii

loans purchased from other financial institutions allowance for loan losses ass percent of total loans

gross would have been 1.05% and 1.17% at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

These are non-GMP financial measures presented for comparative purposes only They are not substi

for GMP measures and should only be considered in conjunction with the Companys GMP financial

information These non-GMP financial measures provide investors with more detailed information that is

useful in understanding our financial
performance and condition

The following table sets forth certain consolidated summary historical financial information
concerning the financial position of United

Financial Bancorp Inc It should be read conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing later in this

annual report

At or for

The Years Ended December 31
2012 2011

non-performing loans

Allowance for loan losses as percent of total loans



annour ced thu usition in the pang of

017 In November we su essfUIIf lo ed

ic transacuon and conveded more than

3000 accounts vei to ocr ita sy tc With

eatons laitford lolland tchficld nid

lyOn ourrt tf 1iyv hi ars ctv

log cal axtension our footpnnt ntn 7orne

attractue markets Ihe demogiaphics Is vol

hank depouts and concentration of

cs nesses ieee seas are ompc llin

tore ard eve kr ow our brar of bandng II

vel there Follomng tie erger we

Womed Davd Okor nor forme Ncev

igand Bink President and CEO ard Thomas

Bnen former New Engia id Ban rector

the Board of Dew turs ul rited ianci

norp nd ted BunF iffly bring keen

derstanding of these rices markets and

ek foiward to working with the nc

ian Production Offices

ir icr in the yeat we openec oar

uction Office ii Glastunbuffi Cornectirut

eec had great soc use with mr Be erly

sachusetts Loan Productic Office which

wd 2011 and we are onfide of

cv ng milai soc es in Cilastonbuiy We

crc fortur late hire Robert Kell easonec

mweial Anding oro5essior al to Lad is

office Bob has 30 years of lend
rig

peiience ii thu Glastonh
iiy md nottherr

mnnec3eut areas and is team miong with

foimei New Lngland Bank lends is are well

enared to ix set the eomme rr al ler ding

ds of ir new marketplace

owth in the Worcester Region

saw solid
grofttl in the Worceste Rug on

year and we continue to fur us on growing

ire acco jots Checking accor nt upe rings

arly
duuhlcu at year end proof eha tire

stud Ba ik name is taking held anc our

mx mercial lendi
ig

tearmi ha dune cu

cellent job of getting the woid out that United

ink great place to bank Lore accoi rot

en rye
in the Wor ester Region increased by

any 14 ansI co deposit increased by

at year end

December we oper cc ou newes braiieh

ate er Notthbr iouglr We now hmmc seven

iches the Worcester Region At piess

oui Norttiborcugh branc rad curpassed

Financial Highlights

We expe ne iced cur siderable grotwlr th
year

Our branch aic busy and the moogige aid

commci pipelines aie cking up And we

still rue ir mney to lendl Total loans increased

$694 millic oi 62 to $1.82 billon at

Dec.eni er 31 7012 due to the
cquisitioii

$55 iiillio in NEBS loans and
strong giotwh

rrmcrual
peiffiulici

Non
pe

rfoi iii ig assets totaled $17.3 million oi

0.12 of tutal sets at Dccc ciber 31 2012

compaicd to $10.6 iiuillicin or 65 of total

mssets at Decembei 31 20 The moefest

increaw wd attnhutafde to the addition of

NEBS loans VVe remain ommitted to oui

on ervative oan underwating standaids and we

ceri tinae tc maintain conservative posit uris in

our invest ent portfolio 8W of whi is

backed by in agency of the United States

guy mi ieii

total deposts increased $618 million or

to $1.85 hil ion at Deceierber 31 2012 NE US

added $59 nrillion reflecting grotwh of $333

willie ri or ir core accocint ba ances and

air increase of $786 cillion or 68

witificates of depost Core deposit balances

were $1 billion or 62 of total deposit at

year ci id cc mpared to $808 million oi 66 ci

2011

\s Dcacer iher 31 2012 oui sum aned

co mipany haef
just over $2 billion iii assets

NERS rddr $/46 mxii icn 40 bran offices

md two product on ciffices United Eina icia

Ban orp 1w is now the
th

largest publicly

traded ha ii by isset size headquartered ii

New England

Management Changes

2012 was Leo
year

of internal change After

28 years cv th United Flank Keitf
farvey ocr

Chief Ope rating Offic ci retire ci her

Keith evis irietrcime ritA in rick tie hank

cc ire tody Firm advances ir techoolo and

branch
expansion to mariag ng or ir Enterprise

Risk omm ttee he was key iciember of our

team and we wish him well in re tireme ot

effrey Wi lieao fsel endng Officer was

promoted to Chief Operating Office and

Charles Vilc is Lxeccitive Vice Presider it and

Wore Region Executive was promoted to

leef rding Off cer toget icr Jeff and han

ave cea tE of
experience and arc

ring

ciperb oh eadinj our retail operations and

riding ef Fexts

Looking Ahead

After eoriipleting thorocigh assessment of our

branch operations eve made the decision to

cose three offices in the Connecticut Region

7013 these branches are located in very
close

pioxin ity
to other United Bank locations arid

ye expect the impact to custo miens and staff to

be mm ma Our
priority

reniains meeting tEe

needs ef our cuxtc niiers with convenient

banking options wiLe also meeting the

expectations of our sfiareholders by creating

etheeot branch network

3Cc rcmain con nttcd to capital nianageiiient

strategies that eve know evil provide good

return on your nvestme nt ii us Our quartery

cliv dc nd novv at $0.10 per share has

ncrease 00 since 2006 and we have

successfully acquned million BNIK sfra us

sines 2008 through stock repuichase

prograiTs at an average price of $4.20 per

sfrarc We will continue tcr look for evrys to

pruriently citi ize excess capita to icrease

our fra iehise value

Cs always think
yoci

for your coot rued

supporT if our ompany md look loiward to

sharing icves of our progress witlr
yoci

in the

year ahead

Sincerely

Riclrare run

Pies dent mod CEO

dancE 2013

it

ea Shareholde

was an evendul year fo Uriteeb financial tF $1 lEan manic foi depo its in
just

tfiree

an omp mc tJBNK and En ted BmW months scnic sign of success to dome

ilighted by oui acq jisition if he Loglamrcl

an shaie NI BS aid its New ogland

aik branches in oc ghboning Conncctncjt

are/ u//s is

8cc side at C/macf Lxecutiv Officer



SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Rchard Collins

Presdetit Chief Executive Othcer

Mark Roberts

Execu ye Vtce Prestdent CHef narx cii Off ret

Jeffrey Sullivan

Executtve Vtce Presids Chief Opet iung Olftccr

Cha les Valade

EseaCe 0cc Dresider Cl endg Off er

Deborah Gebo

her hoe Presioent Retah Ban
ring

UNITED FINANCAL BANCORP INC

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Richard ohms

itrrnan of the Soard Presider Chic xecutive 00cc

eeOc BanK

Pau Aiello

Cl cf Financial ficer ice Prcsdent of \drniiistration

Yc uth Opportunities pheld Inc

Michael rowley

Prrsic ent rowley Ass outes

Carol Moore Cutting

President Cuffing Ldge Broadca Air ncoipoiated

Carol Leary

President iv Path oF ego

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Richard Collirs

sident Chief Fxecutvc Offcei

Mark Roberts

Lxecutve 0cc resident Chef Finaroa

Officer

TerryJ Bennett

Corporate cr Aary

Dena Hall

Sei ior Ccc Presder Cia kcting Community Relations

Ronald Mocno Jr

Senior Ccc Piesiderit Auditoi

John Patterson

Senioi Vkc iesident Risk Slat ao iTi nt

Minam Siegel

hera ore man t5a

Thomas OBnen

anaging Paitnc OBiicn Eu ieral Homes

David OConnor

orrner President hicf Executivr Officet

New England Bancshaiw Ire

Kevin Ross

Vice Piesidc iii Ticasurci Rss Insurance Abe icy Ii

Robert Stewart Jr

Paffne Picsident Chase Clan Stewart Eonlana

Michael Werenski

iesdent Tieasuiet Maii in Woe iski lnsuran Real

Estate Agencr Inc

Board of Directos

TIme Biin die/I Wcrc nO Me/rod CroOy air Hoc ic Cult up

So/ic IA Stewr Ic Coin Lecp/ IAc/iord if is Few Ross ividl OY in or

ii efi



SEC

UNITED STATES Mall Processing

SECURITIES ANI EXCHANGE COMMISSION SetiOfl
Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K
MAR 267013

E1 Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the Securities ExchajLl DC
For the fiscal year ended December 31 2012 400

Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File No 000-52947

United Financial Bancorp Inc

Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter

Maryland 74-3242562

State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization I.R.S Employer Identification Number

95 Elm Street West Springfield Massachusetts 01089

Address of Principal Executive Offices Zip Code

413 787-1700

Registrants telephone number

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Common Stock par value $0.01 per share NASDAQ Global Select Market

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12g of the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defmed in Rule 405 of the Securities Act

YES LI NOI1

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15d of the

Act YES

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15d of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding twelve months or for such shorter period that the re strant was

required to file such reports and has been subject to such requirements for the past 90 days YES NO

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website if any every

Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T 232.405 of this chapter

during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files

YES NOD
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein and

will not be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive prox or information statements incorporated by

reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendments to this Form 10-K

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-accelerated filer or

smaller reporting company See definition of large accelerated filer accelerated filer and smaller reporting company

in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act Check one

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer II Non-accelerated filer Smaller reporting company

Indicate check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule l2b-2 of the Exchange Act
YES NOII

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant computed

by reference to the last sale price on June 30 2012 as reported by the NASDAQ Global Select Market was approximately

$199.8 million

As of March 2013 19947718 shares of the registrants common stock were outstanding

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders dated March 18 2013 are incorporated by reference

into Part III of this 10-K



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ITEM PART PAGE

BUSINESS

1A RISICFACTORS 39

lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 45

PROPERTIES 45

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 46

MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 46

PART II

MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKIOLDER

MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 46

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 49

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 51

7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 72

FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 72

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH AECOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 73

9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 73

9B OTHER INFORMATION 75

PART III

10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 75

11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 75

12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAiN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKIOLDER MATTERS 76

13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE 76

14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES 76

PART IV

15 EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 77

SIGNATURES



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Terminology

As used in this Annual Report unless we specif otherwise terms such as we us and our refer to

United Financial Bancorp Inc Maryland corporation or United Bank federal savings bank and the wholly

owned subsidiary of United Financial Bancorp Inc as indicated by the context

Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains certain forward-looking statements that may be identified by the use of

words such as believe expect anticipate should planned estimated and potential Examples of

forward-looking statements include but are not limited to estimates with respect to our financial condition

results of operations and business that are subject to various factors that could cause actual results to differ

materially from these estimates and most other statements that are not historical in nature These factors include

but are not limited to general and local economic conditions changes in interest rates deposit flows demand for

mortgage and other loans real estate values competition changes in accounting principles policies or

guidelines changes in legislation or regulation and other economic competitive governmental regulatory and

technological factors affecting our operations pricing products and services Additional factors are discussed in

this Annual Report on Form 10-K under Item 1A Risk Factors These risks and uncertainties should be

considered in evaluating forward-looking statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements

Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made and we do not undertake to update forward-

looking statements to reflect circumstances or events that occur after the date of the forward-looking statements

or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events Accordingly past results and trends should not be used by

investors to anticipate future results or trends

United Financial Bancorp Inc

United Financial Bancorp Inc the Company Maryland corporation incorporated in 2007 is the

holding company for United Bank The Companys assets consist of its investment in United Bank and its liquid

investments The Company is primarily engaged in the business of directing planning and coordinating the

business activities of the Bank The Companys most significant asset is its investment in the Bank

In 2007 the Company sold 9564570 shares of its common stock in connection with the second-step

conversion from mutual to stock form of United Financial Bancorp MHC federal mutual corporation The

Company contributed $45.1 million of the net proceeds of the offering to United Bank

On November 30 2009 the Company acquired CNB Financial Corp CNB Financial the holding

company for Commonwealth National Bank The transaction qualified as tax-free reorganization for federal

income tax purposes The consideration paid in the transaction to stockholders of CNB Financial consisted of

943376 shares of Company common stock and $12639495 in cash Based upon the Companys $12.84 per

share closing price on November 30 2009 the transaction was valued at approximately $24.8 million As result

of this transaction the Company added six branches $289.3 million in assets $242.9 million in loans and $195.2

million in deposits to its franchise

On November 16 2012 the Company acquired New England Bancshares Inc NEBS the holding

company for New England Bank The transaction qualified as tax-free reorganization for federal income tax

purposes The consideration paid in the transaction to stockholders of NEBS consisted of 5559495 shares of

Company common stock and $2336960 in cash including $2318000 paid to holders of options to purchase

shares of NEBS common stock Based upon the Companys $14.24 per share closing price on November 16
2012 the transaction was valued at approximately $81.5 million As result of this transaction the Company

expanded its operations into Connecticut added 15 branches $745.5 million in assets $553.2 million in loans

and $597.0 million in deposits to its franchise



The Company is authorized to pursue other business activities permitted by applicable laws and

regulations for savings and loan holding companies which may include the acquisition of banking and financial

services companies See Supervision and RegulationHolding Company Regulation for discussion of the

activities that are permitted for savings and loan holding companies We currently have no understandings or

agreements to acquire other financial institutions We also may borrow funds for reinvestment in United Bank

The Companys cash flows depend on earnings from interest-earning deposits and any dividends

received from United Bank The Company neither owns nor leases any property but instead uses the premises

equipment and furniture of United Bank At the present time we employ as officers certain persons
who are also

officers of United Bank However we use the support staff of United Bank from time to time These persons are

not separately compensated by the Company The Company may hire additional employees as appropriate to

the extent it expands its business in the future

The Companys executive offices are located at 95 Elm Street West Springfield Massachusetts and its

telephone number is 413-787-1700

United Bank

United Bank is federally chartered savings bank headquartered in West Springfield Massachusetts

United Bank was originally founded in 1882 as Massachusetts-chartered cooperative bank Over the years

United Bank has grown through internal growth as well as through series of five mutual-to-mutual business

combinations that occurred between 1960 and 1994 and acquisitions of Commonwealth National Bank and New

England Bank described above In February 2004 United Bank converted to federal savings bank and in April

2004 reorganized into the two-tier mutual holding company structure In July 2005 United Bank completed

minority public stock offering through its holding company raising net proceeds of $74.8 million In November

2007 the Bank completed second-step stock offering raising net proceeds of $83.0 million

United Banks principal business consists of attracting retail deposits from the general public in the

areas surrounding our main office in West Springfield Massachusetts and our 16 branch offices located in our

Springfield Region Agawam Chicopee East Longmeadow Feeding Hills Holyoke Huntington Indian

Orchard Longmeadow Ludlow Northampton Springfield and Westfield Massachusetts as well as our Express

Drive-Up branch in Northampton Massachusetts and seven branches in our Worcester Region West Boylston

Whitinsville Worcester Shrewsbury and Northborough Massachusetts Following our acquisition of New

England Bank we now operate 15 branch offices in the Connecticut counties of Hartford Tolland New Haven

and Litchfield We invest deposits together with funds generated from operations in one- to four-family

residential mortgage loans as well as in home equity loans and lines of credit commercial real estate loans

construction loans commercial and industrial loans automobile loans other consumer loans and investment

securities In general we retain in our portfolio all loans that we originate however over the past few
years we

have sold the majority of the 20 and 30 year fixed-rate one- to four-family residential loans we have originated in

the secondary market for strategic reasons including interest rate risk management objectives Occasionally we

will also enter into loan participations with other financial institutions Our revenues are derived principally from

interest on loans and securities We also generate revenues from fees and service charges and other income

United Bank emphasizes exceptional personal service for its customers Our primary sources of funds are

deposits borrowings and principal and interest payments on loans and securities

United Banks executive offices are located at 95 Elm Street West Springfield Massachusetts and its

telephone number is 413-787-1700

Available Information

The Companys annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form

8-K and any amendments to such reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 as amended are made available free of charge on our website www.bankatunited.com as

soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and

Exchange Commission The information on our website shall not be considered as incorporated by reference into

this Form 10-K



Market Area

We are headquartered in West Springfield Massachusetts Our primary market area for generating

deposits is concentrated in the communities surrounding our main and branch offices We also maintain two

financial services facilities that offer insurance and investment products and financial planning services These

facilities are located in West Springfield and Northampton Massachusetts Our primary lending area is

significantly broader than our deposit market area and includes all of Hampden and Hampshire Counties in

Western Massachusetts Worcester County Massachusetts as well as areas of Northern and Central Connecticut

including the counties of Hartford Tolland New Haven and Litchfield At December 31 2012 77.6% of our

mortgage loan portfolio consisted of loans secured by real estate located in Hampden and Hampshire Counties

Massachusetts

Springfield Region The city of West Springfield is largely suburban and is located in the Pioneer

Valley near the intersection of U.S Interstates 90 the Massachusetts Turnpike and 91 Interstate 90 is the major

east-west highway that transverses Massachusetts Interstate 91 is the major north-south highway that runs

directly through the heart of New England West Springfield is located approximately 90 miles west of Boston

70 miles southeast of Albany and 30 miles north of Hartford According to recent census report West

Springfields estimated 2011 population was approximately 28410 and the estimated 2011 population for

Hampden and Hampshire Counties was 463783 and 157080 respectively From April 2010 to July 2011
the population of Hampden County increased 0.1% and the population of Hampshire County decreased by 0.2%

The population of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts increased by 0.9% during the same period

The economy of the Springfield Region has benefited from the
presence

of large employers such as the

University of Massachusetts Baystate Health System Mass Mutual Financial Group Big Supermarkets

Hasbro Games Peter Pan Bus Lines Westover Air Force Base Smith Wesson Yankee Candle and Verizon

Other employment and economic activity is provided by financial institutions colleges and universities hospitals

and variety of wholesale and retail trade businesses The Springfield Region also enjoys strong tourism

business with attractions such as Six Flags amusement park the Eastern States Exposition called New
Englands Great State Fair the Basketball Hall of Fame and several other notable cultural and recreational

areas According to recent census data per capita and median household income for Hampden County was

$25363 and $48866 respectively in 2011 lower than the Commonwealth of Massachusetts $35051 and

$65981 and the United States $27915 and $52762 2011 per capita and median household income for

Hampshire County was $29113 and $60331 respectively

The Springfield Region has been showing improvement during the past two years The unemployment

rate in Hampden County decreased from 7.9% in December 2011 to 7.7% in November 2012 which is higher

than the unemployment rates for Massachusetts as whole 6.1% and comparable to the United States as

whole 7.8% during the same time period

Worcester Region Located one hour from our corporate headquarters in West Springfield the city of

Worcester is located 30 minutes from Bostons MetroWest area and adjacent to the 1-495 Corridor Worcester is

the second largest city in New England with an estimated population of 181631 in 2011 Worcester Countys

2011 population was 801227 0.3% increase from 2010 United Banks Worcester Region Headquarters is

located at 33 Waldo Street in Worcester Massachusetts

Worcester has diversified economy The City of Worcester is home to eight colleges and the

University of Massachusetts Medical School its largest employer Biotechnology is major enterprise within the

city Its biotech park is host to several innovative companies including Abbott Laboratories leading

pharmaceutical research and manufacturing firm Hanover Insurance maintains its national headquarters in

Worcester and subsidiary of Unum the Paul Revere Life Insurance Company and Harleysville Worcester

Insurance Company the oldest life insurance company based in Massachusetts are also headquartered in

Worcester In addition Worcester is also home to several libraries and museums Residents also enjoy access to

several performing arts centers and variety of annual music festivals and events



According to recent census data per capita and median household income for Worcester County for

2011 was $31470 and $65772 The unemployment rate in Worcester County decreased from 7.0% in December

2011 to 6.8% in November 2012

Connecticut Region The Connecticut region includes all of Hartford County in addition to eight

towns in Tolland and New Haven Counties that are contiguous to towns in Hartford County as well as

Wallingford in New Haven County and Plymouth in Litchfield County Hartford County is directly contiguous

with Hampden County Located thirty minutes from our West Springfield corporate headquarters the city of

Hartford is the capital city of Connecticut Hartford County had population of 894014 as of 2010 The

Connecticut Region Headquarters is located at 855 Enfield Street in Enfield Connecticut

Hartford serves as the headquarters for several Fortune 500 companies including United Technologies

Corporation The Hartford Financial Services Group Aetna Inc and Northeast Utilities Hailed as the insurance

capital of the world Hartford County employs seven times more people in the insurance field than the average

metropolitan area Among these employers are Aetna JNG CIGNA Lincoln Life Uniprise Travelers The

Phoenix Companies Mass Mutual and Prudential Financial Services There are also significant businesses in

other areas including the aerospace precision machining infonnation technology and health and medical sectors

Among these employers are ATT Henkel Locite Kaman Lego Systems Inc Retail Brand Alliance and

Ahlstrom

Hartford County is in the heart of the New England Knowledge Corridor that stretches from the city

of Hartford to Western Massachusetts Institutions of higher education include Trinity College Wesleyan

University the University of Connecticut the University of Hartford and Central Connecticut State University

In addition Hartford County is also home to several noteworthy libraries and museums including the

Wadsworth Athenaeum Museum of Art the Mark Twain House and Museum Center and the Air Museum

Residents also enjoy access to several performing arts centers and variety of annual music festivals and events

According to 2010 census data per capita income for Hartford County was $33991 and median household

income was $64007 The unemployment rate in Hartford County increased from 7.9% in December 2011 to

8.6% in November 2012

Competition

We face intense competition within our market area both in making loans and attracting deposits Our

market area has high concentration of financial institutions including large money center and regional banks

community banks and credit unions Some of our competitors offer products and services that we currently do

not offer such as trust services and private banking As of June 30 2012 the latest date for which data is

available our market share of deposits was 12.08% or fourth of 20 banks in Hampden County 1.66% or

eleventh of 15 banks in Hampshire County 1.53% or twenty-first of 38 banks in Worcester County and 1.45%

or tenth of 26 banks in Hartford County Connecticut

Our competition for loans and deposits comes principally from commercial banks savings and co

operative institutions mortgage banking firms and credit unions We face additional competition for deposits

from short-term money market funds brokerage firms mutual funds and insurance companies

Lending Activities

Our principal lending activities are the origination of first mortgage loans for the purchase or

refinancing of one- to four-family residential real property as well as the origination of home equity commercial

real estate and commercial and industrial loans In general we retain in our portfolio all loans that we originate

however over the past few years we have sold the majority of the 20 and 30 year fixed-rate one- to four-family

residential loans we have originated in the secondary market for strategic reasons including interest rate risk

management objectives At December 31 2012 and 2011 we had $632000 and $53000 loans held for sale

respectively



Loan Portfolio Composition The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio by type of loan as of the dates indicated

At December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

Dollars in thousands

Types of loans

Real estate loans

One- to four-family 441874 24.33% 314839 28.06o 295721 27.53% 343300 30.59% $356428 40.96%

Commercial 814692 44.86% 450180 40.13o 427994 39.85o 409680 36.5100 248457 28.55%

Construction 52778 2.90o 30271 2.70o 27553 2.57o 48808 4.35o 32082 3.69%

Home equity 179039 9.86o 135518 12.08o 138290 12.87o 137371 12.24o 120724 13.87o

Commercial and industrial 306192 16.86o 176086 15.69o 165335 15.39o 159437 14.2l0o 84919 9.76o

Automobile 6492 0.36o 7843 0.70o 11051 l.03o 14729 1.31% 17332 l.99o

Other consumer 15009 0.83% 7142 0.64o 8167 0.76o 8916 0.79o 10334 1.19%

Total loans $1816076 100.00% $1121879 100.00% $1074111 100.00% $1122241 100.00% $870276 100.00%

Other items

Net deferred loan costs and fees 3414 2194 2073 2355 2395

Allowance for loan losses 12089 11132 9987 9180 8250

Total loans net $1807401 $1112941 $1066197 $1115416 $864421

Includes $49725 $28648 $24833 $45615 and $30161 of commercial construction loans at December31 2012 2011 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively



Loan Portfolio Maturities and Yields The following table summarizes the scheduled repayments of our loan portfolio at December 31 2012

Demand loans loans having no stated repayment schedule or maturity and overdraft loans are reported as being due in one year or less

Due during the years ending after

December 31 2012

One year or less

More than one to five
years

More than five years

Total

Commercial Commercial

Residential Real Estate Construction Home Equity and Industrial Automobile Other Consumer Total

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average Average Average Average Average Average

Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Dollars in thousands

18553 6.43o 38074 5.37o $30652 4.21% 1103 3.06% 64678 3.43% 287 5.16% 359 4.78% 153706 4.43o

6.148 5.50% 191326 5.04o 10239 4.35o 15524 3.96% 84923 4.97% 6205 3.92% 1806 5.42% 316171 4.93%

411.063 4.41% 592337 5.22o 12959 4.09% 162021 3.75o 158931 4.52o 0.00o 12425 8.23% 1349736 4.73%

$435764 4.51% $821737 5.19o $53850 4.2100 $178648 3.76o $308532 4.42% $6492 3.97% $14590 7.80% $1819613 4.74%

Excludes the fair value adjustment balance of $3.5 million recorded in connection with the acquisition of NEBS and CNB Financial

The following table sets forth the scheduled repayments of fixed and adjustable-rate loans at December 31 2012 that are contractually due after

December 31 2013

Due After December 31 2013

Residential real estate

Commercial real estate

Construction

Home equity

Commercial and industrial

Automobile

Other consumer

Total loans

Fixed Adjustable Total

In thousands

39121

498104

19742

137950

149075

509
____________

_________ $_844501 ___________

$378090

285559

3456

39595

94779

6205

13722

$821406

417211

783663

23198

177545

243854

6205

14231

$1665907



One- to Four-Family Residential Mortgage Loans One of our primary lending activities consists of

the origination of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans substantially all of which are secured by

properties located in our primary market area At December 31 2012 $441.9 million or 24.3% of our loan

portfolio consisted of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans In general we retain in our portfolio all

loans that we originate however over the past few years we have sold the majority of the 20 and 30 year
fixed-

rate one- to four-family residential loans we have originated in the secondary market for strategic reasons

including interest rate risk management objectives One- to four-family mortgage loan originations are generally

obtained from our in-house loan representatives
from existing or past customers through advertising and

through referrals from local builders real estate brokers and attorneys and are underwritten pursuant to United

Banks policies and standards Generally one- to four-family residential mortgage loans are originated in

amounts up to 80% of the lesser of the appraised value or purchase price of the property with private mortgage

insurance or government guarantees required on loans with loan-to-value ratio in excess of 80% We generally

will not make loans with loan-to-value ratio in excess of 95% Further we generally limit the loan-to-value

ratio to 70% on cash-out refinance transaction based on updated appraisal information

Fixed-rate mortgage loans are originated for terms of up to 30 years Generally fixed-rate residential

mortgage loans are underwritten according to Fannie Mae guidelines policies and procedures We also offer

adjustable-rate mortgage loans for one- to four-family properties with an interest rate based on the weekly

average yield on U.S Treasuries adjusted to constant maturity of one-year which adjust either annually or

every three years from the outset of the loan or which adjust annually after five- seven- or ten-year
initial

fixed-rate period For the year ended December 31 2012 we originated $109.8 million of fixed rate one- to four-

family residential loans and $965000 of adjustable-rate one- to four-family residential loans Our adjustable-rate

mortgage loans generally provide for maximum rate adjustments of 2% per adjustment with lifetime maximum

adjustment up to 6% regardless of the initial rate Our adjustable-rate mortgage loans amortize over terms of up

to 30 years

Adjustable rate mortgage loans decrease the risk associated with changes in market interest rates by

periodically repricing but involve other risks because as interest rates increase the underlying payments by the

borrower increase thus increasing the potential for default by the borrower At the same time the marketability

of the underlying collateral may be adversely affected by higher interest rates Upward adjustment of the

contractual interest rate also is limited by the maximum periodic and lifetime interest rate adjustments permitted

by our loan documents and therefore the effectiveness of adjustable-rate mortgage loans may be limited during

periods of rapidly rising interest rates At December 31 2012 $38.8 million or 8.8% of our one- to four-family

residential mortgage loans had adjustable rates of interest

In an effort to provide financing for low- and moderate-income home buyers we offer variety of

programs to qualified borrowers These programs include Veterans Administration VA Federal Housing

Administration FHA Massachusetts Housing Financing Agency MHFA and several other programs that we

have developed in-house These loans are offered with fixed rates of interest terms of up to 30 years and are

secured by one-to four-family residential properties All of these loans are originated using agency underwriting

guidelines These loans may be originated in amounts with loan-to-value ratios up to 100% Private mortgage

insurance or government guarantees are required for loans with loan-to-value ratios over 80% We also offer our

own first-time homebuyer loans to qualified individuals These loans are offered with terms of up to 30 years
and

fixed or adjustable rates of interest which may be discounted and the applicant may not be required to pay

certain loan origination fees

We also offer our employees who satisfy certain criteria and our general underwriting standards fixed

or adjustable rate loan products with reduced interest rates and reduced application and loan origination fees

Employee and insider loans adhere to all other terms and conditions contained in the loan policy

All residential mortgage loans that we originate include due-on-sale clauses which give us the right to

declare loan immediately due and payable in the event that among other things the borrower sells or otherwise



disposes of the real property subject to the mortgage and the loan is not repaid All borrowers are required to

obtain title insurance for the benefit of United Bank We also require homeowners insurance and fire and

casualty insurance and where circumstances warrant flood insurance on properties securing real estate loans

Commercial Real Estate Loans We originate commercial real estate loans that are generally secured by
five or more unit apartment buildings industrial properties and properties used for business purposes such as small

office buildings hotels motels recreational and retail facilities mainly located in our primary market area At

December 31 2012 commercial real estate mortgage loans totaled $814.7 million or 44.9% of our total loans

compared to $450.2 million or 40.1% of our total loans at December 31 2011 Our real estate underwriting policies

provide that such loans may be made in amounts up to 85% of the appraised value of the
property though such

loans are generally limited to 80% of the appraised value In addition these loans must comply with our loan policy

guidelines and with our current loans-to-one borrower limit for these types of loans which is generally 15% of our

unimpaired capital and surplus which at December 31 2012 was $41.0 million Our commercial real estate loans

may be made with terms of up to 25 years though generally loan terms do not exceed 10 years and loan amortization

periods do not exceed 20 years Commercial real estate loans are offered with interest rates that are fixed or adjust

periodically and are generally indexed to the prime rate as reported in The Wall Street Journal or to rates published

by the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston In reaching decision on whether to make commercial real estate

loan we consider the net operating income of the property the borrowers expertise and credit history and the

profitability of the underlying business and the value of the underlying property In addition with
respect to real

estate rental properties we will also consider the term of the lease and the credit quality of the tenants We generally

require that the properties securing these real estate loans have stabilized debt service
coverage ratios the ratio of

earnings before debt service to debt service of at least 1.2 times Environmental
surveys are generally required for

commercial real estate loans Generally commercial real estate loans made to corporations partnerships and other

business entities require personal guarantees by the principals unless certain LTV and debt service coverage

thresholds are met

commercial borrowers financial information is monitored on an ongoing basis by requiring periodic

financial statement updates payment history reviews and periodic face-to-face meetings with the borrower We
generally require commercial borrowers with loans in excess of $250000 to provide annually updated financial

statements and federal tax returns These requirements also apply to the individual principals of our commercial

borrowers when they are providing personal guarantees We also require borrowers with rental investment

property to provide us with an annual report of income and expenses for the property including tenant list and

copies of leases as applicable The largest commercial real estate relationship in our portfolio at December

2012 was combination of loans totaling $18.9 million secured by two properties one of which is retail facility

in Connecticut and the other an office building in Massachusetts The second largest commercial real estate loan

at that date was loan of $10.7 million secured by an office building in Massachusetts All of these loans were

performing in accordance with their terms at December 31 2012 There were six commercial real estate loans

originated in excess of $5 million during 2012 $57.0 aggregate outstanding balance at December 31 2012 and

two loans acquired as part of the New England Bank acquisition which had outstanding balances in excess of $5

million at December 31 2012 $14.3 million aggregate outstanding

Loans secured by commercial real estate including multi-family properties generally involve larger

principal amounts and greater degree of risk than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans Because

payments on loans secured by commercial real estate often depend on the successful operation or management of

the properties repayment of such loans may be affected by adverse conditions in the real estate market or the

economy

Construction Loans We originate construction loans for the development of one- to four-family
residential properties located in our primary market area Residential construction loans are generally offered to

individuals for the construction of their personal residences At December 31 2012 residential construction

loans totaled $3.1 million or 0.2% of total loans compared to $1.6 million or 0.1% at December 31 2011 At

December 31 2012 the unadvanced portion of these construction loans totaled $590000



Our residential construction loans generally provide for the payment of interest only during the

construction phase which is usually 12 months In the case of construction loans to individuals for the

construction of their primary residences our policies require that the loan convert to permanent mortgage loan

at the end of the construction phase Residential construction loans can be made up to maximum loan-to-value

ratio of 90% provided that the borrower obtains private mortgage insurance if the loan balance exceeds 80% of

the appraised value or sales price whichever is less of the secured property
Residential construction loans are

generally made on the same terms as our one- to four-family mortgage loans

We also make commercial construction and land development loans for residential and commercial

development projects The projects include single family multi-family apartment industrial retail and office

buildings and condominium developments These loans generally have an interest-only phase during

construction and then convert to permanent financing We generally require that commitment for permanent

financing be in place prior to closing the construction loan The maximum loan-to-value ratio limit applicable to

these loans is generally 80% Before making commitment to fund construction loan we require an appraisal

of the property by an independent licensed appraiser We generally also review and inspect each property before

disbursement of funds during the terms of the construction loan Loan proceeds are disbursed after inspection

based on the percentage-of-completion
method Due to current economic conditions management has become

more cautious in evaluating and approving funding for construction loans At December 31 2012 commercial

construction and land development loans totaled $49.7 million or 2.7% of total loans compared to $28.6 million

or 2.6% of total loans at December 31 2011 At December 31 2012 the largest outstanding commercial

construction loan balance was for $3.1 million and was secured by single family residence in Westbrook

Connecticut The largest land development loan was for $4.4 million and was secured by commercial land under

development in Stamford Connecticut These loans were performing according to their terms at December 31

2012 At December 31 2012 the unadvanced portion of all commercial construction and land development loans

totaled $35.8 million

Construction and development financing is generally considered to involve higher degree of credit risk

than long-term financing on improved owner-occupied real estate Risk of loss on construction loan depends

largely upon the accuracy of the initial estimate of the value of the property at completion of construction

compared to the estimated cost including interest of construction and other assumptions If the estimate of

construction cost proves to be inaccurate we may be required to advance funds beyond the amount originally

committed in order to protect the value of the property Additionally if the estimate of value proves to be

inaccurate the value of the project when completed may be insufficient to assure full repayment of the loan

Home Equity Loans and Home Equity Lines of Credit We also offer home equity loans and home

equity lines of credit both of which are secured by one- to four-family residences substantially all of which are

located in our primary market area At December 31 2012 home equity loans and equity lines of credit totaled

$179.0 million or 9.9% of total loans Additionally at December 31 2012 the unadvanced amounts of home

equity lines of credit totaled $148.8 million The underwriting standards utilized for home equity loans and

equity lines of credit include determination of the applicants credit history an assessment of the applicants

ability to meet existing obligations and payments on the proposed loan and the value of the collateral securing the

loan The combined first and second mortgage liens loan-to-value ratio for home equity loans and equity lines

of credit is limited to 80% Home equity loans are offered with fixed and adjustable rates of interest and with

terms of up to 20 years Our home equity lines of credit have adjustable rates of interest which are indexed to the

prime rate as reported in The Wall Street Journal interest only draw periods under the lines are limited to 10

years We originated $52.3 million under home equity lines of credit and other home equity loans during the year

ended December 31 2012 as compared to total originations of $35.2 million during the year ended

December 31 2011



Commercial and Industrial Loans Commercial and industrial loans have been substantial part of

our lending operations for number of
years At December 31 2012 we had $306.2 million of commercial and

industrial loans which amounted to 16.9% of total loans compared to $176.1 million or 15.7% of total loans at

December 31 2011 We originate commercial and industrial loans primarily in our market area to variety of

professionals sole proprietorships and small and mid-sized businesses Commercial and industrial loan products

include term loans and revolving lines of credit The maximum amount of commercial and industrial loan is

limited by our loans-to-one-borrower limit which is generally 15% of our unimpaired capital and surplus and

which at December 31 2012 was $41.0 million Such loans are generally used for working capital and

purchasing equipment or furniture Commercial and industrial loans are made with either adjustable or fixed rates

of interest with maximum term of twenty years The interest rates for commercial loans are based on the prime

rate as published in The Wall Street Journal

When making commercial and industrial loans we consider the financial strength and debt service

capabilities of the borrower our lending history with the borrower the projected cash flows of the business and

the value and type of the collateral Commercial and industrial loans are generally secured by variety of

collateral primarily accounts receivable inventory equipment savings instruments and readily marketable

securities In addition we usually require the business principals to execute personal guarantees

Commercial and industrial loans generally have greater credit risk than residential mortgage loans

Unlike residential mortgage loans which generally are made on the basis of the borrowers ability to make

repayment from his or her employment or other income and which are secured by real property whose value

tends to be more easily ascertainable commercial and industrial loans generally are made on the basis of the

borrowers ability to repay the loan from the cash flows of the borrowers business As result the availability of

funds for the repayment of commercial and industrial loans may depend substantially on the success of the

business itself Further any collateral securing the loans may depreciate over time may be difficult to appraise

and may fluctuate in value We seek to minimize these risks through our underwriting standards At

December 31 2012 our largest commercial and industrial loan outstanding was $6.6 million which is secured

by certificate of deposit that we maintain Our largest committed commercial and industrial relationship was

$16.9 million to manufacturer located in our primary market area Including an additional $4.7 million

participated out to another bank the total relationship of $21.6 million is comprised of $4.0 million of

commercial and industrial loan availability $5.0 million loan secured by business assets $9.2 million

industrial development bond for the construction of new facility $4.7 million of which is participated out and

$4.0 million commercial real estate loan on the borrowers secondary facility The total amount outstanding at

December 31 2012 was $12.8 million $8.1 million net of participation with no amounts outstanding on the line

of credit All loans to this customer were performing in accordance with loan terms at December 31 2012

Automobile and Other Consumer Loans We offer direct automobile loans with terms of up to 60

months For new cars our lending policy provides that the amount financed should not exceed 100% of the gross

selling price of the vehicle For used cars our lending policy provides that the amount of the loan should not

exceed the loan value of the vehicle as established by industry guides The interest rates offered are the same
for new and used automobile loans Full insurance

coverage must be maintained on the financed vehicle and

United Bank must be named loss payee on the policy At December 31 2012 we had $6.5 million in automobile

loans which amounted to 0.4% of total loans

We offer variety of other consumer loans principally to existing United Bank customers residing in

our primary market area with acceptable credit ratings Our other consumer loans generally consist of secured

and unsecured personal loans motorcycle and motor home loans manufactured housing boat loans and pool and

spa loans Other consumer loans totaled $15.0 million or 0.8% of our total loan portfolio at December 31 2012
At December 31 2012 $760000 of such consumer loans were unsecured

Consumer loans have greater credit risk than residential mortgage loans particularly in the case of loans

that are unsecured or secured by rapidly depreciating assets such as automobiles motorcycles motor homes and

boats In these cases any repossessed collateral for defaulted consumer loan may not provide an adequate
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source of repayment of the outstanding loan balance as result of the greater likelihood of damage loss or

depreciation In addition consumer loan collections depend on the borrowers continuing financial stability and

thus are more likely to be adversely affected by job loss divorce illness or personal bankruptcy

Loan Originations Purchases Sales Participations and Servicing of Loans Lending activities are

conducted primarily by our loan personnel operating at our main and branch office locations All loans that we

originate are underwritten pursuant to our policies and procedures We originate both fixed-rate and adjustable-

rate loans Our ability to originate fixed or adjustable rate loans is dependent upon relative customer demand for

such loans which is affected by current and expected future levels of market interest rates

Generally we retain in our portfolio all loans that we originate however for strategic reasons including

our interest rate risk management objectives we periodically sell fixed rate residential mortgage loans which

conform to the underwriting standards specified by Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae and

Massachusetts Housing Financing Authority MHFAAll one-to four-family loans sold are on non-recourse

basis Historically in such instances our loans have been typically sold to Fannie Mae and MHFA with servicing

retained Depending on interest rate levels at the time of any such sale loans may be sold at either net gain or

net loss Additionally we may not be able to reinvest the proceeds from any future loan sales at interest rates

comparable to the interest rates on the loans that are sold Reinvestment in loans with lower interest rates would

result in lower interest income on the reinvested proceeds compared to the interest income previously generated

by the loans that were sold

The Company was servicing loans sold in the amount of $65.2 million and $68.3 million as of

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively Loan servicing includes collecting and remitting loan payments

accounting for principal and interest contacting delinquent mortgagors supervising foreclosures and property

dispositions in the event of unremedied defaults making certain insurance and tax payments on behalf of the

borrowers and generally administering the loans The balance of mortgage servicing rights to these loans was

insignificant as of December 31 2012 and 2011

From time to time we will also purchase loans Other than the loans acquired during the acquisition of

New England Bank there were no loans purchased during 2012 or 2011

From time to time we will also participate in loans sometimes as the lead lender Whether we are the

lead lender or not we underwrite our participation portion of the loans according to our own underwriting criteria

and procedures At December 31 2012 we had $22.9 million in loan participation interests in which we were the

lead bank after $57.7 million of participations sold and $66.5 million in loan participations in which we were not

the lead bank
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The following table shows our loan originations purchases sales and repayment activities for the years

indicated

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

In thousands

Total loans at beginning of period $1121879 $1074111 $1122241

Loan originations

Residential mortgages 110748 93959 59992

Commercial mortgages 115681 68504 45164

Construction1 29115 22147 33307

Home equity 52343 35222 39528

Commercial and industrial 134265 57235 63412

Automobile 2588 2626 4387

Other consumer 692 481 688

Total loans originated 445432 280174 246478

Loans acquired from NEBS at fair value 553983

Deductions

Principal loan repayments 294260 226610 273374

Loan sales 17548 11214 27058

Increase decrease due to other items 6590 5418 5824

Total deductions 305218 232406 294608

Net loan activity 694197 47768 48130

Total loans at end of period $1816076 $1121879 $1074111

Includes $27235 $2 1022 and $3 1978 of commercial construction loans for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively

Includes additional disbursements on home equity and lines of credit participation loans serviced for others minor changes and

other activity on loans previously originated

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority United Banks lending activities follow written

non-discriminatory underwriting standards and loan origination procedures established by United Banks Board

of Directors The loan approval process is intended to assess the borrowers ability to repay the loan the viability

of the loan and the adequacy of the value of the property that will secure the loan To assess the borrowers

ability to repay we review the employment and credit history and information on the historical and projected

income and expenses
of borrowers

United Banks policies and loan approval limits are established by the Board of Directors The Board of

Directors has delegated authority to United Banks Chief Lending Officer to review and assign lending

authorities to certain individuals of United Bank ranging from senior management to senior loan underwriter

the Designated Individuals to consider and approve loans within their designated authority In addition the

Board has delegated authority at the request of the Chief Lending Officer to an Officers Loan Committee

comprising the Chief Executive Officer Chief Lending Officer EVP of Commercial Banking Chief Credit

Officer and SVP of Risk Management Loans in amounts above the authorized limits of the Officers Loan

Committee and loans outside of the designated authority of the Officers Loan Committee require the approval of

United Banks Directors Loan Committee The Directors Loan Committee consists of four of our directors

including our Chief Executive Officer All loans that are approved by the Designated Individuals or the Officers

Loan Committee are still reviewed and ratified by the Directors Loan Committee and the Board of Directors on

monthly basis
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All residential mortgage loans one- to four-family loans home equity loans home equity lines of

credit and residential construction loans may be approved by certain of the Designated Individuals in amounts

up to the annually adjusted Fannie Mae and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation Freddie Mac
secondary market conforming loan limits Conforming Loans Residential mortgage loans in excess of the

Conforming Loan limit and up to $1.0 million may be approved by any two of either United Banks Chief

Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer or Senior Vice President of Retail Lending Residential loans in

excess of $1.0 million must be approved by any two of the senior executive officers listed above and United

Banks Officers Loan Committee

All commercial real estate commercial construction loans and commercial and industrial loans in

amounts up to $1.0 million may be approved by certain of the Designated Individuals All such loans in excess of

$1.0 million or additional extensions of credit to existing commercial borrowers that result in liability in excess

of $1.0 million must be approved by United Banks Officers Loan Committee All home equity loans and home

equity lines of credit up to $500000 may be approved by certain of the Designated Individuals All home equity

loans and home equity lines of credit in excess of $500000 must be approved by the Officers Loan Committee

All loans in excess of $2.0 million or additional extensions of credit to existing commercial borrowers that result

in liability in excess of $2.0 million must also be approved by United Banks Directors Loan Committee

All consumer loans in amounts up to $100000 may be approved by certain of the Designated

Individuals All consumer loans in excess of $100000 must be approved by the Loan Committee

We generally require appraisals of all real property securing loans except for home equity loans and

equity lines of credit in which case we may use the assessed tax value of the property securing such loans

Appraisals are performed by independent licensed appraisers All appraisers are approved by the Directors Loan

Committee annually We require fire and extended coverage insurance in amounts at least equal to the principal

amount of the loan

Non-performing and Problem Assets

Asset Quality Process Our internal review
process

involves an ongoing evaluation of credit risk and

risk ratings The Account Officers with the assistance of the Credit Analysts are primarily responsible for the

initial risk rating assignment Secondary responsibility rests with the Chief Lending Officer the SVP of Credit

Administration and the Chief Credit Officer all of whom are responsible for the accuracy of the risk rating

system Loans are graded from pass to loss depending on credit quality with pass representing loans that

are fully satisfactory as additions to our portfolio We engage independent loan review consultants who provided

two on-site reviews of our commercial portfolio during 2012 All loan relationships in excess of $1.0 million and

all classified loans over $500000 were reviewed by the third party consultants In addition the Connecticut

region portfolio was reviewed during the due diligence process leading up to the acquisition of NEBS

We initiate collection efforts when loan becomes ten days past due with system-generated reminder

notices Subsequent late charge and delinquent notices are issued and the account is monitored on regular basis

thereafter Personal direct contact with the borrower is attempted early in the collection process as courtesy

reminder and later to determine the reason for the delinquency and to safeguard our collateral When loan is

more than 60 days past due the credit file is reviewed and if deemed
necessary

information is updated or

confirmed and collateral re-evaluated We make
every

effort to contact the borrower and develop plan of

repayment to cure the delinquency summary report of all loans 30 days or more past due is reported to the

Board of Directors monthly If no repayment plan is in process the file is referred to counsel for the

commencement of foreclosure or other collection efforts

Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when they are more than 90 days delinquent When

loans are placed on non-accrual status unpaid accrued interest is fully reversed
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Non-Performing Assets The table below sets forth the amounts and categories of our non-performing

assets at the dates indicated There were no loans greater than 90 days past due and still accruing interest as of the

dates indicated

At December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands

Non-accrual loans

Residential mortgages 2970 1417 1036 1190 1244

Commercial mortgages 5092 2124 3256 10717 2544

Construction 349 330 410 3280 444

Home equity 137 56 60 492

Commercial and industrial 5538 2641 2885 571 425

Automobile

Other consumer 120 163 55 33 140

Total 14206 6731 7702 16287 4797

Non-accrual troubled debt restructures

Commercial mortgages 504 860 860

Construction 872

Commercial and industrial 863

Total 504 1723 1732

Total non-accrual loans 14710 8454 9434 16287 4797

Other non-performing assets

Other real estate owned 2578 2054 1536 1545 998

Other non-performing assets 52 69

Total 2630 2123 1536 1545 998

Total non-performing assets $17340 10577 10970 17832 5795

Accruing troubled debt restructures

Commercial mortgages 2066 45 257 3473

Construction 591 24 872

Commercial and industrial 1103 34

Total 3760 1129 3473

Ratios

Total non-accrual loans to total loans 0.8 1% 0.75% 0.88% 1.45% 0.55%

Total non-performing assets to total

assets 0.72% 0.65% 0.69% 1.16% 0.46%

Allowance for loan losses to non-

performing loans 82.18% 131.68% 105.86% 56.36% 171.98%

Represents an $860000 troubled debt restructure commercial mortgage loan which was restructured in the second quarter of 2010

Subsequently in the fourth quarter of 2012 $356000 was charged off There were no additional commitments to this borrower

Includes an $872000 in 2010 and $947000 in 2012 troubled debt restructure construction loan which was restructured in the fourth

quarter of 2010 returned to accrual status within the fourth quarter of 2011 as the customer has been current on the new payments for six

months and received principle increase in the first quarter of 2012 There were no additional commitments to this borrower

Includes an $863000 troubled debt restructure commercial and industrial loan which was restructured in the second quarter of 2011 and

returned to accrual status in the first quarter of 2012 There were no additional commitments to this borrower

Includes six troubled debt restructured loans totaling $1.7 million by two different borrowers one with three commercial mortgage loans

and one commercial and industrial loan and the other with two construction loans All six loans were restructured in the beginning of the

first quarter of 2012 and are accruing as the customers have remained current on the new payments

Includes commercial mortgage loan totaling $248000 which was restructured in the first quarter of 2011 and was returned to accrual

status at September 30 2011 as the customer has been current on the new payments for six months

Represents commercial mortgage loan which was restructured in the first quarter of 2010 and was returned to accrual status at

September 30 2010 as the customer has been current on the new payments for six months
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Exclusive of the $7.0 million in non-performing loans acquired in acquisition of NEBS at December31 2012 $163000 and $3.3 million

in non-performing loans acquired in acquisition of CNB Financial at December 2010 and 2009 respectively allowance for loan losses as

percent of non-performing loans would have been 157.72% 107.72% and 70.44% respectively This is non-GAAP financial

measure It is not substitute for GAAP measure and should only be considered in conjunction with the Companys GAAP financial

information These non-GAAP financial measures provide investors with more detailed information that is useful in understanding our

financial performance and condition

As noted in the above table non-accrual loans amounted to approximately $14.7 million and $8.5

million at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The $6.3 million increase in total non-accrual loans from

December 31 2011 to December 31 2012 was primarily due to the acquisition of NEBS Excluding the acquired

non-accrual portfolio the total non-accrual loans would have decreased by $803000 to $7.7 million The non-

accrual loan total for December 31 2012 includes troubled debt restructure commercial real estate loan for

$860000 which was impaired at March 31 2010 restructured during the second quarter of 2010 and

subsequently in the fourth quarter of 2012 $356000 was charged off The non-accrual loan total for

December 31 2011 includes two troubled debt restructure loans an $860000 commercial real estate loan which

was impaired at March 31 2010 and was restructured during the second quarter of 2010 and troubled debt

restructure commercial and industrial loan for $863000 which was restructured in the second quarter of 2011

The $980000 decrease in total non-accrual loans from December 31 2010 to December 31 2011 was mainly

due to decreases of $1.1 million in commercial mortgages and $952000 in construction loans offset by increases

of $619000 in commercial and industrial loans and $381000 in residential mortgages The non-accrual loan total

for December 31 2010 includes two troubled debt restructure loans an $860000 commercial real estate loan

which was impaired at March 31 2010 and was restructured during the second quarter of 2010 and troubled

debt restructure construction loan for $872000 which was restructured in the fourth quarter of 2010 The non-

accrual loan total for December 31 2009 includes $3.5 million commercial real estate loan which was impaired

at December 31 2009 and was restructured during the first quarter of 2010 This loan was classified as troubled

debt restructure and was placed on non-accrual status as of March 31 2010 As of September 30 2010 this loan

was returned to accruing status as the customer has been current on the revised payment structure for more than

six months

Each of the Companys non-performing assets has an active workout plan in place Additional interest

income of approximately $1.3 million $539000 $363000 $281000 and $132000 respectively would have

been recorded during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 and 2008 respectively if the loans

had performed in accordance with their original terms

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the

Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the

contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors considered by management in determining impairment include

payment status collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when

due Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as

impaired Impairment is measured on loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the

present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loans effective interest rate the loans obtainable

market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent

At December 31 2012 and 2011 the recorded investment in impaired loans was $17.4 million and $8.7

million respectively loan reserve of $32000 and $235000 was established on $32000 and $3.5 million of the

impaired loans at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively During the year ended December 31 2012 in

accordance with the Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorating Credit Quality section of the

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification FASB ASC for Receivables

Topic 310 the Company recorded non-accretable credit discount of $2.9 million related to impaired loans of

$9.9 million acquired from NEBS In 2009 the Company recorded non-accretable credit discount of $2.3

million related to impaired loans of $5.2 million acquired from CNB Financial The average balance of impaired

loans was $9.6 million $10.7 million and $14.0 million for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

respectively Interest income recognized on impaired loans during 2012 2011 and 2010 was not significant
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Delinquent Loans The following table sets forth our loan delinquencies greater than 60 days by type

and amount at the dates indicated

Loans Delinquent For

AtDecember3l2012

Residential mortgages

Commercial mortgage

Construction

Home equity

Commercial and industrial

Automobile

Other consumer

At December 31 2011

Residential mortgages

Commercial mortgage

Construction

Home equity

Commercial and industrial

Automobile

Other consumer

At December 31 2010

Residential mortgages

Commercial mortgage

Construction

Home equity

Commercial and industrial

Automobile

Other consumer

Total

At December 31 2009

Residential mortgages

Commercial mortgages
Construction

Home equity

Commercial and industrial

Automobile

Other consumer

Total

At December 31 2008

Residential mortgages

Commercial mortgages

Construction

Home equity

Commercial and industrial

Automobile

Other consumer

15 2450

1136

11

1155

35

4937

1984

1028

205

3218

1001

1088

223

122

2442

939

772

140

126

242

2229

1417

2131

330

56

2728

37 5065

31 6487

298

22 5597

155

$17602

22 3401

14 3159

330

56

17 2933

164

$10043

2037

4344
410

283

3007

58

$10144

2545

13015

3704

649

625

44

$20586

2183

3316

584

126

667

142

7026

Excludes an $860000 commercial mortgage loan which was restructured in the second quarter of 2010 and was placed on non-

accrual status Although this troubled debt restructure loan is reported as non-performing asset the borrower is delinquent for less

than 60 days

Excludes an $872000 construction loan which was restructured in the fourth quarter of 2010 and was placed on non-accrual status

Although this loan is reported as non-performing asset the borrower is current with respect to the restructured payment terms

60-89 Days

Number Amount

90 Days and Over Total

Number Amount Number Amount

Dollars in thousands

Total 36

15

Total 28 60

22 2615

24 5351

137

13 4442

120

68 $12665 104

10

163

32 6825

1036 15

13 3256 19

410

60

13 2885 16

55

37 7702 61

1190 18

13 10717 21

3280

492

15 571 18

33

46 $16287 79

1244 14

2544 11

444

15 425 20

140

35 4797 55

10

24

13

33

20

1355

2298

424

157

54

11

4299

Total
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Other Real Estate Owned Other real estate acquired by us as result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu

of foreclosure is classified as real estate owned until sold When property is acquired it is recorded at the lower of

cost or fair market value at the date of foreclosure establishing new cost basis Holding costs and declines in

fair value after acquisition are expensed At December 31 2012 we had $2.6 million of real estate owned

Classified Assets Office of the Comptroller of the Currency regulations provide that loans and other

assets of lesser quality should be classified as substandard doubtful or loss assets An asset is considered

substandard if it is inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the

collateral pledged if any Substandard assets include those characterized by the distinct possibility that we
will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected Assets classified as doubtful have all of the

weaknesses inherent in those classified substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses present
make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts conditions and values highly

questionable and improbable Assets classified as loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little

value that their continuance as assets without the establishment of specific loss reserve is not warranted We
classif an asset as special mention if the asset has potential weakness that warrants managements close

attention While such assets are not impaired management has concluded that if the potential weakness in the

asset is not addressed the value of the asset may deteriorate adversely affecting the repayment of the asset

We establish general allowances for loan losses in an amount deemed prudent by management for loans

classified substandard or doubtful as well as for other potential problem loans General allowances represent loss

allowances which have been established to recognize the inherent losses associated with lending activities but

which unlike specific allowances have not been allocated to particular problem assets When we classif

problem assets as loss we are required either to establish specific allowance for losses equal to 100% of the

amount of the asset so classified or to charge off such amount Our detennination as to the classification of our

assets and the amount of our valuation allowances is subject to review by the Office of the Comptroller of the

Currency which can order the establishment of additional general or specific loss allowances

The following table shows the
aggregate amounts of our classified assets at the dates indicated for loans

and foreclosed assets The total amount of loans in the table below at December 31 2012 includes twenty-seven

relationships which represent 52.2% of the classified loans The growth in classified assets is primarily attributed

to the acquisition of NEBS $3.0 million classified asset was paid in full on January 2013 Of the $2.6

million in other real estate owned four properties having book value of $1.2 million are under purchase and
sales agreements Two of the properties under purchase and sales agreements are slated to close in the first

quarter of 2013

At December 31

2012 2011

In thousands

Classified Loans

Special mention $45512 $19804
Substandard 46693 39279
Doubtful 653 100

Loss

Total classified loans 92858 59183

Foreclosed Assets

Other real estate owned 2578 2054
Other non-performing assets 52 69

Total classified assets $95488 $61306

The loan portfolio is reviewed on regular basis to determine whether any loans require classification in

accordance with applicable regulations Not all classified assets constitute non-performing assets
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loan is classified as troubled debt restructuring if the Company for economic or legal reasons

related to the borrowers financial difficulties grants concession to the borrower that it would not otherwise

consider This usually includes modification of loan tenns such as reduction of the interest rate to below

market terms capitalizing past due interest or extending the maturity date and possibly partial forgiveness of

debt Interest income on restructured loans is accrued after the borrower demonstrates the ability to pay under the

restructured terms through sustained period of repayment performance which is generally six months

Allowance for Loan Losses

Our allowance for loan losses is maintained at level necessary
to absorb loan losses that are both

probable and reasonably estimable Management in determining the allowance for loan losses considers the

losses inherent in our loan portfolio and changes in the nature and volume of loan activities delinquent and

classified loans and charge-offs along with the general economic and real estate market conditions

description of our methodology in establishing our allowance for loan losses is set forth in under Item

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationCritical Accounting

PoliciesAllowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses as of December 31 2012 was maintained

at level that represents managements best estimate of losses inherent in the loan portfolio However this

analysis process is inherently subjective as it requires us to make estimates that are susceptible to revisions as

more information becomes available Although we believe that we have established the allowance at levels to

absorb probable and estimable losses future additions or deductions may be necessary
if economic or other

conditions in the future differ from the current environment In addition as an integral part of their examination

process the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency has authority to periodically review our allowance for loan

losses Such agencies may require that we recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments of

information available to them at the time of their examination
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Allowance for Loan Losses The following table sets forth activity in our allowance for loan losses for

the
years indicated

At or For the Year Ended December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands
Balance at beginning of period $11132 9987 9180 8250 7714
Charge-offs

Residential mortgages 246 139 69

Commercial mortgages 922 589 529 1399
Construction 127 78 206 135 444

Home equity 225 24 115 42

Commercial and industrial 765 1556 766 545 827

Automobile

Other consumer 70 16 10

Total charge-offs 2364 2392 1637 2163 1336
Recoveries

Residential mortgages

Commercial mortgages 45 52 96

Construction

Home equity

Commercial and industrial 127 235 63 85 17

Automobile

Other consumer

Total recoveries 182 295 159 95 26

Net charge-offs 2182 2097 1478 2068 1310
Provision for loan losses 3139 3242 2285 2998 1846

Balance at end of period 12089 11132 9987 9180 8250

Ratios

Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.18% 0.19% 0.13% 0.23% 0.15%

Allowance for loan losses to non-performing

Ioansatendofperiod 82.20% 131.68% 105.86% 56.36% 171.98%
Allowance for loan losses to total loans at end

of period 0.67% 0.99% 0.93% 0.82% 0.95%

Exclusive of the $7.0 million $163000 and $3.3 million in non-performing acquired loans at December 31 2012 2010 and 2009
respectively allowance for loan losses as percent of non-performing loans would have been 157.72% 107.72% and 70.44%
respectively This is non-GAAP financial measure It is not substitute for GAAP measure and should only be considered in

conjunction with the Companys GAAP financial information These non-GAAP financial measures provide investors with more
detailed information that is useful in understanding our financial performance and condition

Exclusive of the $659.6 million $148.9 million $209.8 million and $242.9 million in acquired loans and $5.0 million $19.1 million

$21.4 million and $22.7 million in loans purchased from other financial institutions allowance for loan losses as percent of total loans

would have been 1.05% 1.17% 1.18% and 1.07% for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively This is

non-GAAP financial measure It is not substitute for GAAP measure and should only be considered in conjunction with the

Companys GAAP financial information These non-GAAP financial measures provide investors with more detailed information that is

useful in understanding our financial performance and condition
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Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses The following table sets forth the allowance for loan losses allocated by loan category the total loan

balances by category and the percent of loans in each category to total loans at the dates indicated The allowance for loan losses allocated to each

category
is not necessarily indicative of future losses in any particular category and does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in other

categories

At December 31

At December 31

At end of period allocated to

Residential mortgages

Commercial mortgages

Construction

Home equity

Commercial and industrial

Automobile

Other consumer

Total allowance

2009

Percent of Percent of

Allowance Loans in

to Total Category to

Allowance Total Loans Amount

Dollars in thousands

2008

Percent of Percent of

Allowance Loans in

to Total Category to

Allowance Total Loans

2012 2011

At end of period allocated to

Residential mortgages

Commercial mortgages

Construction

Home equity

Commercial and industrial

Automobile

Other consumer

Unallocated

Total allowance

Percent of Percent of Percent of

Allowance

Percent of

Loans in

Percent

Allowance Loans in
Allowance Loans in

Total to to Total Category to
to Total Category to

Amount Allowance Total Loans Amount Allowance Total Loans
Amount Allowance Total

2010

602 4.98%
40.13% 5000 50.07% 39.85%

6203 51.31% 44.86% 5572 50.05%

7.73% 2.70% 668 6.69% 2.57%
710 5.87% 2.90% 860

12.08% 623 6.24% 12.87%
383 3.17% 9.86% 474 4.26%

15.69% 2801 28.05% 15.39%
3468 28.69% 16.86% 3446

0.54% 0.70% 90 0.90% 1.03%
49 0.41% 0.36%

0.64% 65 0.64% 0.76%
34 0.28% 0.83% 54 0.48%

640 5.29%

100.00%
12089 100.00% 100.00% 11132 100.00% 100.00% 9987 100.00%

Amount

802 8.74%

42.50% 28.55%
4300 46.84% 36.5 1% 3506

13.20% 3.69%
1194 13.01% 4.35% 1089

604 7.32% 13.87%621 6.76% 12.24%

9.76%
2051 22.34% 14.21% 1911

156 1.89% 1.99%
110 1.20% 1.31%

1.19%
102 1.11% 0.79% 93 1.13%

9180 100.00% 100.00% 8250 100.00% 100.00%



Investments

The investment policy is reviewed annually by management and any changes to the policy are

recommended to and subject to the approval of the Board of Directors Authority to make investments under the

approved investment policy guidelines is delegated to appropriate officers While general investment strategies

are developed and authorized by the Board of Directors the execution of specific actions primarily rests with

United Banks Chief Financial Officer He is both responsible for ensuring that the guidelines and requirements

included in the investment policy are followed and that all securities are considered prudent for investment He

and United Banks Treasurer or his/her designee under his/her direction is authorized to execute investment

transactions purchases and sales up to $10 million per transaction without prior approval and within the scope

of the established investment policy All investment transactions are reviewed and ratified or approved as the

case may be at regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Directors Any investment that subsequent to its

purchase fails to meet the guidelines of the policy is reported to the Board of Directors at its next meeting where

the Board decides whether to hold or sell the investment

The Companys Board of Directors has adopted an investment policy that is substantially identical to the

Banks policy Any references herein to the Bank also apply to the Company

Federally chartered savings banks have authority to invest in various types of assets including U.S

Treasury obligations securities of various federal agencies mortgage-backed securities certain certificates of

deposit of insured financial institutions overnight and short-term loans to other banks corporate debt

instruments and Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac equity securities United Financial Bancorp Inc as savings and

loan holding company may invest in equity securities subject to certain limitations

The investment policy requires that all securities transactions be conducted in safe and sound manner
Investment decisions must be based upon thorough analysis of each security instrument to determine its quality

and inherent risks fit within United Banks overall assetlliability management objectives effect on its risk-based

capital measurement and prospects for yield and/or appreciation The investment policy provides that United

Bank may invest in U.S Treasury obligations U.S and state agency securities mortgage-backed securities

corporate debt securities and other conservative investment opportunities

Securities can be classified as held-to-maturity or available-for-sale at the date of purchase

Mortgage-Backed Securities We purchase mortgage-backed securities insured or guaranteed by

Fannie Mae Freddie Mac or Government National Mortgage Association Ginnie Mae We invest in

mortgage-backed securities to achieve positive interest rate spreads with minimal administrative expense and to

lower our credit risk as result of the guarantees provided by Freddie Mac Fannie Mae or Ginnie Mae Our

investment policy also authorizes the investment in collateralized mortgage obligations CMOs also insured

or issued by Freddie Mac Fannie Mae and Ginnie Mae

Mortgage-backed securities are created by the pooling of mortgages and the issuance of security with

an interest rate that is slightly less than the interest rate on the underlying mortgages Mortgage-backed securities

typically represent participation interest in pool of single-family or multi-family mortgages although we
focus our investments on mortgage-backed securities backed by one- to four-family mortgages The issuers of

such securities generally U.S government agencies and government sponsored enterprises including Fannie

Mae Freddie Mac and Ginnie Mae pooi and resell the participation interests in the form of securities to

investors such as us and guarantee the payment of principal and interest to investors Mortgage-backed securities

generally yield less than the loans that underlie such securities because of the cost of payment guarantees and

credit enhancements However mortgage-backed securities are usually more liquid than individual mortgage
loans and may be used to collateralize our specific liabilities and obligations

At December 31 2012 our mortgage-backed securities totaled $318.4 million or 13.3% of total assets Our

mortgage-backed securities at December 31 2012 were classified as both available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
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At December 31 2012 19.7% of the mortgage-backed securities were backed by adjustable-rate mortgage loans

and 80.3% were backed by fixed-rate mortgage loans The mortgage-backed securities portfolio had weighted

average yield of 2.74% at December 31 2012 The estimated fair value of our mortgage-backed securities at

December 31 2012 was $320.6 million which was $11.6 million more than the amortized cost of $309.0 million

Private label CMOs are included in our mortgage-backed securities portfolio as result of the acquisitions of

NEBS and CNB Financial At December 31 2012 private label CMOs had an estimated fair value of $2.6

million and an amortized cost of $2.2 million representing 0.9% and 0.8% respectively of total mortgage-

backed securities and had weighted average yield of 7.08% Investments in mortgage-backed securities involve

risk that actual prepayments may differ from estimated prepayments over the life of the security which may

require adjustments to the amortization of any premium or accretion of any discount relating to such instruments

thereby changing the net yield on such securities There is also reinvestment risk associated with the cash flows

from such securities or if such securities are redeemed by the issuer In addition the market value of such

securities may be adversely affected by changes in interest rates

Government-Sponsored Enterprises At December 31 2012 our Government-Sponsored Enterprises

securities portfolio totaled $3.2 million all of which was classified as available-for-sale While these securities

generally provide lower yields than other investments in our securities investment portfolio we maintain these

investments to the extent appropriate for liquidity purposes as collateral for borrowings and for prepayment

protection

Corporate Bonds At December 31 2012 our corporate bond portfolio totaled $1.9 million all of

which was classified as available-for-sale consisting of trust preferred securities issued by financial services

companies Although corporate bonds may offer higher yields than U.S Treasury or agency securities of

comparable duration corporate bonds also have higher risk of default due to possible adverse changes in the

credit worthiness of the issuer In order to mitigate this risk our investment policy requires that at the time of

purchase corporate debt obligations be rated in one of the four highest categories by nationally recognized

rating service

Municipal Obligations and Industrial Revenue Bonds Municipal obligations are securities issued by

states counties and municipalities or their agencies The industrial revenue bonds in our portfolio are issued by

the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority an independent public authority created by

Massachusetts to assist nonprofit organizations to borrow funds through tax-exempt bond issuances Our

investment policy requires that the municipal obligations be rated as investment grade at the time of purchase At

December 31 2012 our municipal obligations portfolio consisted of both available-for-sale and held-to-maturity

securities
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Investment Securities Portfolio The following table sets forth the amortized cost and fair value of our

securities portfolio at the dates indicated

At December 31

2012 2011 2010

Amortized Amortized Amortized

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

In thousands

Investment securities

Available-for-sale

Government-sponsored

enterprises 3234 3233 187 192 12747 12502

Government-sponsored and

government-guaranteed

mortgage- backed securities 248370 257762 198446 209493 172003 180766

Private label mortgage-backed

securities 2568 2566 2127 2178 3076 3170

Corporate bonds 1290 1934 1453 1566 1450 1619

Municipal bonds 28713 28827 7759 8384 7760 7795

Total available-for-sale 284175 $294322 209972 $221813 197036 $205852

Held-to-maturity

Government-sponsored and

government-guaranteed

mortgage- backed securities 57986 60200 89955 91949 105312 $105045

Private label mortgage-backed

securities 79 81 163 167 388 389

Industrial revenue bonds 18847 18847 19000 19000 19050 19050

State of Israel bonds 150 150 150 150 150 150

Municipal bonds 5924 6396 6629 7045 7575 7392

Total held-to-maturity 82986 85674 115897 $118311 132475 $132026

At December 31 2012 the Company did not own any securities other than government-sponsored and

government-guaranteed mortgage-backed securities that had an aggregate book value in excess of 10% of our

total capital at that date
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Portfolio Maturities and Yields The composition and maturities of the investment securities portfolio at December 31 2012 are summarized in

the following table Maturities are based on the final contractual payment dates and do not reflect the impact of prepayments or early redemptions that

may occur Equity securities do not have contractual maturities and are excluded from this table Weighted average yields are not presented on

tax-equivalent basis

More than One Year More than Five Years
One Year or Less through Five Years through Ten Years More than Ten Years Total Securities

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average

Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Fair Value

Dollars in thousands

133 4.36%

Investment securities

Available-for-sale

Government-sponsored enterprises

Government-sponsored and government-

guaranteed mortgage- backed securities

Private label mortgage-backed securities

Corporate bonds

Municipal bonds

Total available-for-sale

Held-to-maturity

Government-sponsored and government-

guaranteed mortgage- backed securities

Private label mortgage-backed securities

Industrial revenue bonds

State of Israel bonds

Municipal bonds

Total held-to-maturity

0.00% 500 1.30% 2601 1.33% 3234 1.45% 3233

45 3.15% 808 3.99% 26589 3.59% 220928 2.70% 248370 2.80% 257762
0.00% 0.00% 754 6.09% 1814 7.48% 2568 7.07% 2566
0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 1290 5.97% 1290 5.97% 1934

251 2.25% 1523 2.16% 14279 2.77% 12660 2.81% 28713 2.75% 28827

429 3.00% $2331 2.79% 42122 3.33% $239293 2.74% $284175 2.83% $294322

0.00% 52 3.41% 13730 2.28% 44204 2.27% 57986 2.27% 60200
0.00% 79 7.46% 0.00% 0.00% 79 7.46% 81

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 18847 4.00% 18847 4.00% 18847
25 5.64% 125 1.02% 0.00% 0.00% 150 1.79% 150

0.00% 472 3.82% 1728 3.68% 3724 4.20% 5924 4.02% 6396

25 5.64% 728 3.70% 15458 2.44% 66775 2.87% 82986 2.79% 85674



Sources of Funds

GeneraL Deposits have traditionally been our primary source of funds for lending and investment

activities We also use borrowings primarily Federal Home Loan Bank advances to supplement cash flow needs

to lengthen the maturities of liabilities for interest rate risk management purposes
and to manage the cost of

funds Other sources of funds are scheduled loan payments investment maturities loan prepayments retained

earnings and income on other earning assets While scheduled loan payments and income on earning assets are

relatively stable sources of funds deposit inflows and outflows can vary widely and are influenced by prevailing

interest rates market conditions and levels of competition

Deposits Our deposits are generated primarily from residents and businesses within our primary

market area We offer selection of deposit accounts including demand accounts NOW accounts money

market accounts savings accounts retirement accounts and certificates of deposit Deposit account terms vary

with the principal differences being the minimum balance required the amount of time the funds must remain on

deposit and the interest rate We currently do not accept brokered deposits although we have the authority to do

so

Interest rates paid maturity terms service fees and withdrawal penalties are established on periodic

basis Deposit rates and terms are based primarily on current operating strategies and market rates liquidity

requirements rates paid by competitors and growth goals We rely on personalized customer service long

standing relationships with customers and an active marketing program to attract and retain deposits

The flow of deposits is influenced significantly by general economic conditions changes in money

market and other prevailing interest rates and competition The variety of deposit accounts offered allows us to

be competitive in obtaining funds and responding to changes in consumer demand Based on experience we

believe that our deposits are relatively stable However the ability to attract and maintain deposits and the rates

paid on these deposits have been and will continue to be significantly affected by market conditions At

December 31 2012 $701.1 million or 38.1% of our deposit accounts were certificates of deposit of which

$380.6 million had maturities of one year or less

The following table sets forth the distribution of total deposits by account type at the dates indicated

At December 31

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate

Dollars in thousands

Deposit type
Demand 307302 16.68% 205902 16.74% 175996 15.40%

NOW 87983 4.78% 0.32% 52899 4.30% 0.35% 40922 3.58% 0.48%

Savings 350188 19.01% 0.39% 247664 20.14% 0.60% 203165 17.77% 0.80%

Money market 395293 21.46% 0.42% 301770 24.53% 0.59% 260573 22.79% 0.88%

Certificates of

deposit 701115 38.07% 1.76% 421737 34.29% 1.84% 462530 40.46% 2.16%

Total deposits $1841881 100.00% 0.85% $1229972 100.00% 0.91% $1143186 100.00% 1.23%

Excludes the fair value adjustment balance of $6.3 million $3000 and $115000 recorded in connection with the acquisition of NEBS at

December31 2012 and with the acquisition of CNB Financial at December31 2011 and 2010 respectively
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As of December 31 2012 the aggregate amount of outstanding certificates of deposit in amounts

greater than or equal to $100000 was approximately $358.8 million The following table sets forth the maturity

of those certificates as of December 31 2012 in thousands

Three months or less

Over three months through six months

Over six months through one year

Over one year to three years

Over three years

Total

61123

51601

83153

127869

Borrowings Our borrowings consist of advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston

collateralized repurchase agreements with our customers and other financial institutions and subordinated

debentures As of December 31 2012 we had Federal Home Loan Bank advances of $140.6 million or 6.7% of

total liabilities with weighted average maturity of 2.4 years and weighted average rate of 2.51% As

member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston we can currently borrow up to approximately $180.9 million

from the Federal Home Loan Bank

The following table summarizes infonnation concerning balances and interest rates on our Federal

Home Loan Bank advances at and for the periods indicated

Balance at end of period

Average amount outstanding during year

Interest expense incurred during year

Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end

Average interest rate during the year

Weighted average interest rate on end of period balances

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

In thousands

$1 049842

307532

51072

1508402

3.91%

3.68%

Excludes the fair value adjustment balance of $922000 an average balance of $1.2 million and interest expense of $509000 for

December 31 2012 recorded in connection with the acquisition of NEBS

Excludes the fair value adjustment balance of $1.4 million an average balance of $1.7 million and interest expense of $594000 for

December 31 2011 recorded in connection with the acquisition of CNB Financial

Excludes the fair value adjustment balance of $2.0 million an average balance of $2.3 million and interest expense of $595000 for

December 31 2010 recorded in connection with the acquisition of CNB Financial

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase include funds borrowed from customers on an overnight

basis At December 31 2012 the Company had $49.2 million of repurchase agreements outstanding with its

customers at weighted average rate of 0.57% The following table summarizes our customer repurchase

agreements at and for the periods shown

Balance at end of period

Average amount outstanding during year

Interest expense
incurred during year

Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end

Average interest rate during the
year

Weighted average interest rate on end of period balances

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

In thousands

49229 17260 21029

22077 18408 19240

55 121 185

21952 23033

0.66% 0.96%

0.57% 0.84%

35028

358774

140603

1076681

3869
1406031

.59%
2.5 1%

$15l282

65224i

6360s

14626s

3.85%

3.96%

49229
0.25%

0.57%
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In addition the Company had total of $20.0 million in structured term repurchase agreements secured

through another financial institution The Company entered into $10.0 million repurchase agreement in 2009

due to mature in 2019 is callable in 2014 and has rate of 2.44% The Company had previously entered into

$10.0 million repurchase agreement in 2008 due to mature in 2018 is callable on any interest payment date and

has rate of 2.73% All of the repurchase agreements are secured by mortgage-backed securities issued by

government sponsored enterprises

The Company has outstanding subordinated debt in the form of trust preferred securities issued through

private placement offerings in the face amount of $11.7 million The subordinated debt was recorded as result

of the acquisition of NEBS in 2012 and CNB Financial in 2009 The CNB Financial issue totaling $7.7 million

has maturity date of March 15 2036 and bears floating rate of interest that reprices quarterly at the 3-month

LIBOR rate plus 1.85% The interest rate at December 31 2012 was 2.16% special redemption provision

allows the Company to redeem this issue at par on March 15 June 15 September 15 or December 15 of any

year subsequent to March 15 2011 The NEBS issue totaling $4.0 million has maturity date of August 23

2035 and bears floating rate of interest that reprices quarterly at the 3-month LIBOR rate plus 1.90% The

interest rate at December 31 2012 was 2.21% special redemption provision allows the Company to redeem

this issue at par on February 23 May 23 August 23 or November23 of any year subsequent to August 23 2010

The Company redeemed the NEBS issue on February 23 2013

The Company has unused borrowing capacity with the Federal Reserve Bank of approximately $78.5

million

Subsidiary Activities

UCB Securities Inc is wholly owned subsidiary of United Bank and was established in 1998 as

Massachusetts security corporation for the
purpose

of buying selling and holding investment securities The

income earned on UCB Securities Inc.s investment securities is subject to significantly lower rate of state tax

than that assessed on income earned on investment securities maintained at United Bank At December 31 2012

UCB Securities Inc had total assets of $162.5 million all of which were qualifying securities under the

applicable regulations

UCB Securities Inc II is wholly owned subsidiary of United Bank and was established in 2010 as

Massachusetts security corporation for the purpose of buying selling and holding investment securities The

income earned on UCB Securities Inc IIs investment securities is subject to significantly lower rate of state

tax than that assessed on income earned on investment securities maintained at United Bank At December 31

2012 UCB Securities Inc II had total assets of $62.8 million all of which were qualifying securities under the

applicable regulations

UB Properties LLC is subsidiary of the Bank formed to hold real estate assets acquired through

foreclosure At December 31 2012 UB Properties LLC had total assets of $2.6 million

VB REO LLC is subsidiary of the Bank formed to hold real estate assets acquired through

foreclosure At December 31 2012 YB REO LLC had total assets of $1.5 million

United Wealth Management

United Bank through its division United Wealth Management has partnership with registered

broker-dealer NFP Securities Inc In 2006 United Bank acquired Levine Financial Group in an effort to expand

its customer base with increased opportunities to grow our market share and expand the financial services portion

of business in the Northampton market Together they offer United Bank customers complete range of non

deposit investment products and financial planning services including mutual funds debt equity and

government securities insurance products fixed and variable annuities financial planning for individual and

commercial customers and estate planning services United Bank receives portion of the commissions

generated by United Wealth Management from sales to customers
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Expense and Tax Allocation Agreements

United Bank has entered into an agreement with the Company that generally provides that the Company

will pay to United Bank on quarterly basis fees for its use of United Banks premises furniture equipment

and employees in an amount to be determined by the board of directors of the Company and United Bank Such

fees shall not be less than the fair market value received for such goods or services In addition the Company and

United Bank entered into tax allocation agreement as result of their status as members of an affiliated group

under the Internal Revenue Code The tax allocation agreement generally provides that the Company will file

consolidated federal tax income returns with United Bank and its subsidiaries The tax allocation agreement also

formalizes procedures for allocating the consolidated tax liability of the
group among its members and

establishes procedures for the future payments by United Bank to the Company for tax liabilities attributable to

United Bank and its subsidiaries The financial information and discussion contained in this prospectus primarily

relates to the activities of United Bank

United Charitable Foundation

We established the United Charitable Foundation the Foundation in 2005 in connection with our

minority stock offering At December 31 2012 the Foundation owned 358156 shares of our common stock or

1.8% of the shares outstanding To maintain favorable tax status the Foundation must make annual grants equal

to 5% of its assets and grants are made to community activities and charitable causes in the communities in

which we operate Six of the Foundations seven directors are directors of United Bank All shares of common

stock owned by the Foundation must be voted in the same proportion as all other shares of our common stock are

voted on any matter to come before the stockholders

Personnel

As of December 31 2012 we had 370 full-time employees and 43 part-time employees Our employees

are not represented by any collective bargaining group Management believes that we have good relations with

our employees

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

General

United Bank is subject to extensive regulation examination and supervision by the Office of the

Comptroller of the Currency as its primary federal regulator and by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

as the insurer of its deposits This regulation and supervision establishes comprehensive framework of activities

in which an institution may engage and is intended primarily for the protection of the Deposit Insurance Fund

managed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and depositors Under this system of federal regulation

financial institutions are periodically examined to ensure that they satisfy applicable standards with respect to

their capital adequacy assets management earnings liquidity and sensitivity to market interest rates United

Bank also is member of and owns stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston which is one of the twelve

regional banks in the Federal Home Loan Bank System United Bank also is regulated to lesser extent by the

Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System governing reserves to be maintained against deposits and

other matters United Banks relationship with its depositors and borrowers also is regulated to great extent by

federal law and to much lesser extent state law especially in matters concerning the ownership of deposit

accounts and the form and content of United Banks mortgage documents

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act the Dodd-Frank Act made

extensive changes to the regulation of financial institutions and their holding companies Under the Dodd-Frank

Act the Office of Thrift Supervision was eliminated and responsibility for the supervision and regulation of

federal savings banks was transferred to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency on July 21 2011 The
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Office of the Comptroller of the Currency is the agency that is primarily responsible for the regulation and

supervision of national banks Additionally on that date responsibility for the regulation and supervision of

savings and loan holding companies was transferred to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

Additionally the Dodd-Frank Act created new Consumer Financial Protection Bureau as an independent

bureau of the Federal Reserve Board The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau assumed responsibility for the

implementation of the federal financial consumer protection and fair lending laws and regulations and has

authority to impose new requirements However institutions of less than $10 billion in assets such as United

Bank will continue to be examined for compliance with consumer protection and fair lending laws and

regulations by and be subject to the enforcement authority of their prudential regulators

Certain of the regulatory requirements that are or will be applicable to United Bank and United

Financial Bancorp are described below This description of statutes and regulations is not intended to be

complete explanation of such statutes and regulations and their effects on United Bank and United Financial

Bancorp and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual statutes and regulations

Federal Banking Regulation

Business Activities federal savings bank derives its lending and investment powers from the Home

Owners Loan Act as amended and the regulations of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency Under

these laws and regulations United Bank may invest in mortgage loans secured by residential real estate without

limitations as percentage of assets and non-residential real estate loans which may not in the aggregate exceed

400% of capital commercial business loans up to 20% of assets in the aggregate and consumer loans up to 35%

of assets in the aggregate certain types of debt securities and certain other assets United Bank also may establish

subsidiaries that may engage in activities not otherwise permissible for United Bank including real estate

investment and securities and insurance brokerage

The Dodd-Frank Act authorizes depository institutions to pay interest on business demand deposits

Depending upon competitive responses that change could have an adverse impact on United Banks interest

exposure

Capital Requirements Applicable capital regulations require savings associations to meet three

minimum capital standards 1.5% tangible capital to total assets ratio 4% tier capital to assets leverage ratio

3% for institutions receiving the highest rating on the CAMELS financial institution examination rating system

and an 8% risk-based capital ratio In addition the prompt corrective action standards discussed below also

establish in effect minimum 2% tangible capital standard 4% leverage ratio 3% for institutions receiving

the highest examination rating and together with the risk-based capital standard itself 4% Tier risk-based

capital standard The regulations also require that in meeting the tangible leverage and risk-based capital

standards institutions must generally deduct investments in and loans to subsidiaries engaged in activities as

principal that are not permissible for national bank

The risk-based capital standard for savings associations requires the maintenance of Tier core and

total capital which is defined as core capital and supplementary capital less certain specified deductions from

total capital such as reciprocal holdings of depository institution capital instruments and equity investments to

risk-weighted assets of at least 4% and 8% respectively In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets all

assets including certain off-balance sheet activities recourse obligations residual interests and direct credit

substitutes are multiplied by risk-weight factor of 0% to 100% assigned by the capital regulation based on the

risks believed inherent in the type of asset Core Tier capital is generally defined as common stockholders

equity including retained earnings certain non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus and

minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries less intangibles other than certain mortgage

servicing rights and credit card relationships The components of supplementary capital Tier capital include

cumulative preferred stock long-term perpetual preferred stock mandatory convertible securities subordinated

debt and intermediate preferred stock the allowance for loan and lease losses limited to maximum of 1.25% of
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risk-weighted assets and up to 45% of unrealized gains on available-for-sale equity securities with readily

determinable fair market values Overall the amount of supplementary capital included as part of total capital

cannot exceed 100% of core capital

The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency also has authority to establish individual minimum

capital requirements in appropriate cases upon detennination that an institutions capital level is or may become

inadequate in light of the particular circumstances At December 31 2012 United Banks capital exceeded all

applicable requirements

The current risk-based capital guidelines that apply to the Bank are based on the 1988 capita accord of

the International Base Committee on Banking Supervision Base Committee committee of central banks

and bank supervisors as impemented by the Federal Reserve Board In 2004 the Base Committee published

new capita accord which is referred to as Basel II to replace Base Basel II provides two approaches for

setting capita standards for credit risk an internal ratings-based approach tailored to individua institutions

circumstances and standardized approach that bases risk weightings on external credit assessments to much

greater extent than permitted in existing risk-based capita guidelines which became effective in 2008 for large

international banks total assets of $250 bilion or more or consolidated foreign exposure of $10 biion or more
Other U.S banking organizations can elect to adopt the requirements of this rue if they meet applicable

qualification requirements but they are not required to apply them Basel II emphasizes internal assessment of

credit market and operational risk as well as supervisory assessment and market discipine in determining

minimum capital requirements

In December 2010 and January 2011 the Base Committee published the final texts of reforms on

capital and liquidity which is referred to as Base III Although Basel III is intended to be implemented by

participating countries for large internationally active banks its provisions are likely to be considered by United

States banking regulators in developing new regulations applicable to other banks in the United States Basel III

will require bank holding companies and their bank subsidiaries to maintain substantially more capital with

greater emphasis on common equity The implementation of the Basel III final framework was to occur on

January 2013 The Federal Reserve and other government agencies responsible for implementing the Basel III

framework announced in November 2012 that the originally proposed timeframe for the implementation of the

new rules was not achievable On January 2013 banking institutions were going to be required to meet the

following minimum capital ratios 3.5% Common Equity Tier generally consisting of common shares and

retained earnings to risk-weighted assets ii 4.5% Tier capital to risk-weighted assets and iii 8.0% Total

capital to risk-weighted assets

When fully phased-in on January 2019 and if implemented by the U.S banking agencies Base III

will require banks to maintain

minimum ratio of Common Equity Tier to risk-weighted assets of at least 4.5% plus 2.5% capita

conservation buffer

minimum ratio of Tier capita to risk-weighted assets of at least 6.0% plus the capital conservation

buffer

minimum ratio of Total capita to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.0% plus the capital conservation

buffer and

minimum leverage ratio of 3% calculated as the ratio of Tier capita to balance sheet exposures plus

certain off-balance sheet exposures

Base III also includes the following significant provisions

An additional countercyclical capital buffer to be imposed by applicable national banking regulators

periodically at their discretion with advance notice
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Restrictions on capital distributions and discretionary bonuses applicable when capital ratios fall within

the buffer zone

Deduction from common equity of deferred tax assets that depend on future profitability to be realized

For capital instruments issued on or after January 13 2013 other than common equity loss-

absorbency requirement that the instrument must be written off or converted to common equity if

triggering event occurs either pursuant to applicable law or at the direction of the banking regulator

triggering event is an event that would cause the banking organization to become nonviable without the

write off or conversion or without an injection of capital from the public sector

Since the Basel III framework is not self-executing the rules and standards promulgated under Basel III

require that the U.S federal banking regulators adopt them prior to becoming effective in the U.S Although U.S

federal banking regulators have expressed support for Basel III the timing and
scope

of its implementation as

well as any potential modifications or adjustments that may result during the implementation process are not yet

known

Loans-to-One Borrower Generally federal savings bank may not make loan or extend credit to

single or related group of borrowers in excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus An additional amount

may be loaned equal to 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus if the loan is secured by readily marketable

collateral which generally does not include real estate As of December 31 2012 United Bank was in

compliance with the loans-to-one borrower limitations

Qualified Thrift Lender TesL As federal savings bank United Bank must satisfy the qualified thrift

lender or QTL test Under the QTL test United Bank must maintain at least 65% of its portfolio assets in

qualified thrift investments in at least nine of the most recent 12 months Portfolio assets generally means

total assets of savings institution less the sum of specified liquid assets up to 20% of total assets goodwill and

other intangible assets and the value of property used in the conduct of the savings banks business

savings bank that fails the qualified thrift lender test must either convert to bank charter or operate

under specified restrictions The Dodd-Frank Act also makes noncompliance with the QTL test subject to agency

enforcement action for violation of law and subject to dividend limitations At December 31 2012 United

Bank satisfied this test

Capital Distributions Federal regulations govern capital distributions by federal savings bank
which include cash dividends payments to repurchase its shares and other transactions charged to the capital

account Savings banks must file an application for approval of capital distribution if

the total capital distributions for the applicable calendar year exceed net income for that year to date

plus retained net income for the preceding two years

the savings bank would not be at least adequately capitalized following the distribution

the distribution would violate any applicable statute regulation agreement or Office of the Comptroller

of the Currency imposed condition or

the savings bank is not eligible for expedited treatment of its filings i.e generally examination and

Community Reinvestment Act ratings in top two categories
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Even if an application is not otherwise required every savings bank that is subsidiary of holding

company must still file notice with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System at least 30 days

before the Board of Directors declares dividend or approves capital distribution Notice also must be provided

to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency

notice or application may not be approved if

the association would be undercapitalized following the distribution

the proposed capital distribution raises safety and soundness concerns or

the capital distribution would violate prohibition contained in any statute regulation or agreement

In addition the Federal Deposit Insurance Act provides that an insured depository institution may not

make any capital distribution if after making such distribution the institution would be undercapitalized

Community Reinvestment Act All savings banks have responsibility under the Community

Reinvestment Act and related regulations to help meet the credit needs of their communities including low- and

moderate-income neighborhoods savings banks failure to comply with the provisions of the Community

Reinvestment Act could result in denial of certain corporate applications such as branches or mergers or in

restrictions on its activities United Bank received satisfactory Community Reinvestment Act rating in its

most recent examination

Transactions with Related Parties Federal law limits federal savings banks authority to engage in

transactions with its affiliates e.g company that controls is controlled by or is under common control with an

insured depository institution such as United Bank including United Financial Bancorp In general loan

transactions between an insured depository institution and its affiliate are subject to certain quantitative and

collateral requirements Transactions between an insured depository institution and its affiliate are limited to 10%

of the institutions unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus for transactions with any one affiliate and 20% of

unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus for transactions in the aggregate with all affiliates Collateral in

specified amounts ranging from 100% to 130% of the amount of the transaction must usually be provided by

affiliates to receive loans from the savings bank In addition applicable regulations prohibit savings bank from

lending to any of its affiliates that are engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank holding companies

and from purchasing the securities of any affiliate other than subsidiary Transactions with affiliates must be

consistent with safe and sound banking practices not involve low-quality assets and be on terms that are as

favorable to the institution as comparable transactions with non-affiliates

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits loans by United Financial Bancorp to its executive

officers and directors However the law contains specific exception for loans by depository institution to its

executive officers and directors in compliance with federal banking laws Under such laws United Banks

authority to extend credit to executive officers directors and 10% shareholders insiders as well as entities

such persons control is limited The laws limit both the individual and aggregate amount of loans that United

Bank may make to insiders based in part on United Banks capital level and requires that certain board approval

procedures be followed Such loans are required to be made on terms substantially the same as those offered to

unaffiliated individuals and not involve more than the normal risk of repayment There is an exception for loans

made pursuant to benefit or compensation program that is widely available to all employees of the institution

and does not give preference to insiders over other employees Loans to executive officers are subject to

additional limitations based on the type of loan involved

Enforcement The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency has primary enforcement responsibility

over federal savings banks and has the authority to bring enforcement action against the institution and all

institution-affiliated parties including stockholders and attorneys appraisers and accountants who knowingly
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or recklessly participate in wrongful action likely to have an adverse effect on an insured institution Formal

enforcement action may range from the issuance of capital directive or cease and desist order to removal of

officers and/or directors to the appointment of receiver or conservator or termination of deposit insurance Civil

penalties cover wide range of violations and range up to $25000 per day unless finding of reckless disregard

is made in which case penalties may be as high as $1 million per day The Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation also has the authority to recommend to the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency that

enforcement action be taken with respect to particular savings institution If action is not taken by the Office of

the Comptroller of the Currency the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation has authority to take action under

specified circumstances Federal law also establishes criminal penalties for certain violations

Prompt Corrective Action Regulations Under the prompt corrective action regulations the Office of

the Comptroller of the Currency is required to take supervisory actions against undercapitalized savings banks

the severity of which depends upon the institutions degree of undercapitalization For this purpose savings

bank is placed in one of the following five categories based on the savings banks capital

well-capitalized at least 5% leverage capital 6% Tier risk-based capital and 10% total risk-based

capital

adequately capitalized at least 4% leverage capital 4% Tier risk-based capital and 8% total risk-based

capital

undercapitalized less than 3% leverage capital 4% Tier risk-based capital or 8% total risk-based

capital

significantly undercapitalized less than 3% leverage capital 3% Tier risk-based capital or 6% total

risk-based capital and

critically undercapitalized less than 2% tangible capital

Subject to narrow exception the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency is required to appoint

receiver or conservator for savings bank that is critically undercapitalized within specific time frames The

regulations also provide that capital restoration plan must be filed with the Office of the Comptroller of the

Currency within 45 days of the date savings bank receives notice that it is undercapitalized significantly

undercapitalized or critically undercapitalized Any holding company for the savings bank required to submit

capital restoration plan must guarantee the lesser of an amount equal to 5% of savings banks assets at the

time it was notified or deemed to be undercapitalized or the amount necessary to restore the savings bank to

adequately capitalized status In addition numerous supervisory actions become immediately applicable to an

undercapitalized institution including but not limited to operating restrictions on the savings bank such as

restrictions on the ability to declare and pay dividends pay executive compensation and management fees and

increase assets or expand operations The Office of the Comptroller of the Currency may also take any one of

number of discretionary supervisory actions against undercapitalized savings banks including the issuance of

capital directive and the replacement of senior executive officers and directors Significantly and critically

undercapitalized institutions are subject to additional mandatory and discretionary measures

At December 31 2012 United Bank met the criteria for being considered well-capitalized

Insurance of Deposit Accounts Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporations risk-based

assessment system insured institutions are assigned to one of four risk categories based on supervisory

evaluations regulatory capital levels and certain other factors with less risky institutions paying lower
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assessments An institutions assessment rate depends upon the category to which it is assigned The initial base

assessment rate ranges from five to 35 basis points The rate schedules will automatically adjust in the future

when the Deposit Insurance Fund reaches certain milestones No institution may pay dividend if in default of

the federal deposit insurance assessment

In February 2011 the FDIC adopted new rules that amend its current deposit insurance assessment

regulations The new rules implement provision in the Dodd-Frank Act that changed the assessment base for

deposit insurance premiums from one based on domestic deposits to one based on average consolidated total

assets minus average tangible equity

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation imposed on all insured institutions special emergency

assessment of five basis points of total assets minus Tier capital as of June 30 2009 capped at ten basis points

of an institutions deposit assessment base in order to cover losses to the Deposit Insurance Fund That special

assessment was collected on September 30 2009 The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation provided for

similar assessments during the final two quarters of 2009 if deemed necessary However in lieu of further

special assessments the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation required insured institutions to prepay estimated

quarterly risk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 2009 through the fourth quarter of 2012 The estimated

assessments which include an assumed annual assessment base increase of 5% were recorded as prepaid

expense asset as of December 31 2009 As of December 31 2009 and each quarter thereafter charge to

earnings was recorded for each regular assessment with an offsetting credit to the prepaid asset

Due to the recent difficult economic conditions deposit insurance per account owner has been raised to

$250000 for all types of accounts That coverage was made permanent by the Dodd-Frank Act In addition the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation adopted an optional Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program by which

for fee noninterest bearing transaction accounts would receive unlimited insurance
coverage

until

December 31 2010 and certain senior unsecured debt issued by institutions and their holding companies

between October 13 2008 and December 31 2009 would be guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation through June 30 2012 or in some cases December 31 2012 United Bank participates in the

unlimited noninterest bearing transaction account coverage and United Financial Bancorp participates in the

unsecured debt guarantee program The Dodd-Frank Act extended the unlimited coverage for certain noninterest

bearing transactions accounts through December 31 2012

The Dodd-Frank Act increased the minimum target Deposit Insurance Fund ratio from 1.15% of

estimated insured deposits to 1.35% of estimated insured deposits The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

must seek to achieve the 1.35% ratio by September 30 2020 Insured institutions with assets of $10 billion or

more are supposed to fund the increase The Dodd-Frank Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratio instead

leaving it to the discretion of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation upon finding

that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue

operations or has violated any applicable law regulation rule order or condition imposed by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation or the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency The management of the Bank does not

know of any practice condition or violation that might lead to termination of deposit insurance

Federal Home Loan Bank System United Bank is member of the Federal Home Loan Bank

System which consists of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks The Federal Home Loan Bank provides

central credit facility primarily for member institutions United Bank as member of the Federal Home Loan

Bank of Boston is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in that Federal Home Loan Bank United

Bank was in compliance with this requirement with an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock at

December 31 2012 of$l8.6 million
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Federal Reserve System

Federal Reserve Board regulations require savings banks to maintain noninterest-earning reserves

against their transaction accounts such as negotiable order of withdrawal and regular checking accounts The

regulations generally provide that reserves be maintained against aggregate transaction accounts as follows 3%
reserve ratio is assessed on net transaction accounts up to and including $79.5 million 10% reserve ratio is

applied above $79.5 million The first $12.4 million of otherwise reservable balances subject to adjustments by

the Federal Reserve Board are exempted from the reserve requirements At December 31 2012 United Bank

was in compliance with these reserve requirements

Other Regulations

Interest and other charges collected or contracted for by United Bank are subject to state usury laws and

federal laws concerning interest rates United Banks operations are also subject to federal laws applicable to

credit transactions such as the

Truth-In-Lending Act governing disclosures of credit terms to consumer borrowers

Home Mortgage Disclosure Act requiring financial institutions to provide information to

enable the public and public officials to determine whether financial institution is fulfilling its

obligation to help meet the housing needs of the community it serves

Equal Credit Opportunity Act prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race creed or other

prohibited factors in extending credit

Fair Credit Reporting Act governing the use and provision of information to credit reporting

agencies

Fair Debt Collection Act governing the manner in which consumer debts may be collected by
collection agencies

Truth in Savings Act and

rules and regulations of the various federal agencies charged with the responsibility of

implementing such federal laws

The operations of United Bank also are subject to the

Right to Financial Privacy Act which imposes duty to maintain confidentiality of consumer

financial records and prescribes procedures for complying with administrative subpoenas of

financial records

Electronic Funds Transfer Act and Regulation promulgated thereunder which govern
automatic deposits to and withdrawals from deposit accounts and customers rights and

liabilities arising from the use of automated teller machines and other electronic banking

services

Check Clearing for the 21St Century Act also known as Check 21 which gives substitute

checks such as digital check images and copies made from that image the same legal

standing as the original paper check

The USA PATRIOT Act which requires savings banks to among other things establish

broadened anti-money laundering compliance programs due diligence policies and controls to

ensure the detection and reporting of money laundering Such required compliance programs are

intended to supplement existing compliance requirements also applicable to financial institutions

under the Bank Secrecy Act and the Office of Foreign Assets Control regulations and
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The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act which places limitations on the sharing of consumer financial

information by financial institutions with unaffiliated third parties Specifically the Gramm

Leach-Bliley Act requires all financial institutions offering financial products or services to

retail customers to provide such customers with the financial institutions privacy policy and

provide such customers the opportunity to opt out of the sharing of certain personal financial

information with unaffihiated third parties

Holding Company Regulation

The Company is unitary savings and loan holding company subject to regulation examination and

supervision by the Federal Reserve Board The Federal Reserve Board has enforcement authority over the

Company and its non-savings institution subsidiaries Among other things this authority permits the Federal

Reserve Board to restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to be risk to United Bank Under federal law

and regulations and policy the business activities of the Company are limited to those activities permissible for

financial holding companies under Section 4k of the Bank Holding Company Act and certain additional

activities that have been authorized for savings and loan holding companies by regulation

Federal law prohibits savings and loan holding company from directly or indirectly or through one or

more subsidiaries acquiring more than 5% of the voting stock of another savings institution or savings and loan

holding company without prior written approval of the Federal Reserve Board or from acquiring or retaining

with certain exceptions more than 5% of non-subsidiary holding company or savings association savings

and loan holding company is also prohibited from acquiring more than 5% of company engaged in activities

other than those authorized by federal law or acquiring or retaining control of an institution that is not federally

insured In evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire savings institutions the Federal Reserve

Board must consider among other things the financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the

savings institution and company involved the effect of the acquisition on the risk to the insurance fund the

convenience and needs of the community and competitive factors

The Federal Reserve Board is prohibited from approving any acquisition that would result in multiple

savings and loan holding company controlling savings institutions in more than one state subject to two

exceptions

the approval of interstate supervisory acquisitions by savings and loan holding companies and

the acquisition of savings institution in another state if the laws of the state of the target

savings institution specifically permit such acquisition

The states vary
in the extent to which they permit interstate savings and loan holding company

acquisitions

Capital Savings and loan holding companies are not currently subject to specific regulatory capital

requirements The Dodd-Frank Act however requires the Federal Reserve Board to promulgate consolidated

capital requirements for depository institution holding companies that are no less stringent both quantitatively

and in terms of components of capital than those applicable to institutions themselves That will eliminate the

inclusion of certain instruments such as trust preferred securities from Tier capital Instruments issued before

May 19 2010 will be grandfathered for companies with consolidated assets of $15 billion or less There is five

year transition period from the July 21 2010 date of enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act before the capital

requirements
will apply to savings and loan holding companies However under the most recent Notice of

Proposed Rulemaking issued by the Federal Reserve Board savings and loan holding companies may be subject

to regulatory capital requirements before the end of the five-year period
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Source of Strength The Dodd-Frank Act also extends the source of strength doctrine to savings and

loan holding companies The regulatory agencies must issue regulations implementing the source of strength

policy that holding companies act as source of strength to their subsidiary depository institutions by providing

capital and other support to their subsidiary institutions in times of financial distress

Dividends and Stock Repurchases The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy statement

regarding the payment of dividends and the repurchase of shares of common stock by bank holding companies

that it has made applicable to savings and loan holding companies as well In general the policy provides that

dividends should be paid only out of current earnings and only if the prospective rate of earnings retention by the

holding company appears consistent with the organizations capital needs asset quality and overall financial

condition Regulatory guidance provides for prior regulatory review of capital distributions in certain

circumstances such as where the companys net income for the past four quarters net of dividends previously

paid over that period is insufficient to fully fund the dividend or the companys overall rate of earnings retention

is not consistent with the companys capital needs and overall financial condition The ability of holding

company to pay dividends may be restricted if subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized Moreover

company should inform the Federal Reserve Board reasonably in advance of declaring or paying dividend that

exceeds earnings for the period for which the dividend is being paid The policy statement also provides for

regulatory review prior to holding company redeeming or repurchasing regulatory capital instruments when the

holding company is experiencing financial weaknesses or redeeming or repurchasing common stock or perpetual

preferred stock that would result in net reduction as of the end of quarter in the amount of such equity

instruments outstanding compared with the beginning of the quarter in which the redemption or repurchase

occurred These regulatory policies could affect the ability of the Company to pay dividends repurchase shares

of common stock or otherwise engage in capital distributions

Federal Securities Laws

The Companys common stock is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 As result the Company files quarterly and annual reports with the Securities

and Exchange Commission and is subject to the information proxy solicitation insider trading restrictions and

other requirements under the Securities Exchange Act

Federal Taxation

General The Company and United Bank are subject to federal income taxation in the same general

manner as other corporations with some exceptions discussed below The following discussion of federal

taxation is intended only to summarize certain pertinent federal income tax matters and is not comprehensive

description of the tax rules applicable to United Financial Bancorp Inc or United Bank

Method of Accounting For federal income tax purposes the Company currently reports its income

and expenses on the accrual method of accounting and uses tax year ending December 31 for filing its federal

and state income tax returns

Bad Debt Reserves Historically United Bank has been subject to special provisions in the tax law

regarding allowable bad debt tax deductions and related reserves Tax law changes were enacted in 1996

pursuant to the Small Business Protection Act of 1996 the 1996 Act that eliminated the use of the
percentage

of taxable income method for tax years after 1995 and required recapture into taxable income over six-year

period all bad debt reserves accumulated after 1988 United Bank recaptured its reserves accumulated after 1988

over the six-year period ended December 31 2001

Currently the Companys consolidated group uses the specific charge off method to account for bad

debt deductions for income tax purposes
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Taxable Distributions and Recapture Prior to the 1996 Act bad debt reserves created prior to

November 1988 were subject to recapture into taxable income if United Bank failed to meet certain thrift asset

and definitional tests

At December 31 2012 United Banks total federal base year reserve was approximately $2.6 million

However under current law base-year reserves remain subject to recapture if United Bank makes certain non-

dividend distributions repurchases any of its stock pays dividends in excess of tax earnings and profits or

ceases to maintain bank charter

Alternative Minimum Tax The IRC imposes an alternative minimum tax AMT at rate of 20%

on base of regular taxable income plus certain tax preferences alternative minimum taxable income or

AMTI The AMT is payable to the extent such AMTI is in excess of an exemption amount and the AMT

exceeds the regular income tax Net operating losses can offset no more than 90% of AMTI Certain payments of

alternative minimum tax may be used as credits against regular tax liabilities in future years The Company and

United Bank have not been subject to the alternative minimum tax and have no such amounts available as credits

for carryover

Corporate Dividends-Received Deduction The Company may exclude from its federal taxable

income 100% of dividends received from United Bank as wholly owned subsidiary The corporate

dividends-received deduction is 80% when the dividend is received from corporation having at least 20% of its

stock owned by the recipient corporation 70% dividends-received deduction is available for dividends

received from corporations owned less than 20% by the recipient corporation

State Taxation

Beginning in 2009 due to change in law the Company and United Bank filed combined

Massachusetts return The security corporation subsidiaries continue to file separately The Companys state tax

returns as well as those of United Bank and its subsidiaries are not currently under audit The years after 2009

are open for examination

United Financial Bancorp and United Bank file combined Massachusetts financial institution income tax

returns and are subject to an annual Massachusetts tax at rate of 9.0% of their net income in 2012

Massachusetts net income is defined as gross income other than 95% of dividends received in any taxable year

beginning on or after January 1999 from or on account of the ownership of any class of stock if the institution

owns 15% or more of the voting stock of the institution paying the dividend less the deductions but not the

credits allowable under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code as amended and in effect for the taxable

year The dividends must meet the qualifications under Massachusetts law Deductions with respect to the

following items however are not allowed except as otherwise provided dividends received except as

otherwise provided losses sustained in other taxable years taxes on or measured by income franchise

taxes measured by net income franchise taxes for the privilege of doing business and capital stock taxes imposed

by any state or the deduction allowed by section 168k of the Code

Due to the legislative change beginning in 2010 the Massachusetts financial institution tax rate

decreased by 0.5% each year
for three years until 2012 when it became 9% and will remain at that rate

As Maryland business corporation United Financial Bancorp is required to file annual returns and pay

annual fees to the State of Maryland

United Banks subsidiaries UCB Securities Inc and UCB Securities Inc II are taxed as Massachusetts

security corporations and are subject to state tax rate of 1.32% of their gross income

Beginning in 2010 United Bank began filing corporation income tax returns in Connecticut due to its

lending activity within the state
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

The executive officers of the Company and the Bank are elected annually by the Board of Directors and

serve at the Boards discretion The executive officers of the Company and the Bank are

Name Position

Richard Collins President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank

Mark Roberts Executive Vice President and ChiefFinancial Officer of the

Company and the Bank

Jeffrey Sullivan Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the Bank

Charles Valade Executive Vice President and ChiefLending Officer of the Bank

John Patterson Senior Vice President Risk Management of the Bank

Dena Hall Senior Vice President Marketing and Community Relations of the Bank

Below is information regarding the executive officers who are not also directors Unless otherwise

stated each executive officer has held his current position for at least the last five years Ages presented are as of

December 31 2012

Mark Roberts is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the

Bank He joined the Company and the Bank in 2006 Before that he served as the Vice President and Controller

for The Connecticut Bank and Trust Company in Hartford Connecticut and was the Vice President of Finance at

Woronoco Savings Bank for six years Age 49

Jeffrey Sullivan is Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the Bank Mr Sullivan

previously served as Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer of the Bank from 2003 until he was

appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the Bank effective January 2013

Mr Sullivan joined the Bank in 2003 Age 48

Charles Valade is Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer of the Bank Mr Valade

previously served as Executive Vice President Commercial Lending/Worcester Region of the Bank from 2009

until he was appointed Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer of the Bank effective January 2013

Before joining the Bank in connection with the Companys acquisition of CNB Financial in November 2009

Mr Valade served as President and Chief Executive Officer of CNB Financial since its formation in 2005 Age 61

John Patterson is Senior Vice President Risk Management of the Bank Mr Patterson joined the

Bank in 1993 Age 66

Dena Hall is the Senior Vice President of Marketing and Community Relations of the Bank She

joined the Bank in 2005 Previously she was the Director of Marketing for Woronoco Savings Bank for seven

years Age 39

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves risk You should carefully consider the risks described

below and all other information contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K before you decide to buy our

common stock It is possible that risks and uncertainties not listed below may arise or become material in the

future and affect our business results of operations or the price of our common stock

Return To Recessionary Conditions Could Result In Increases In Our Level Of Non-Performing Loans

And/Or Reduce Demand For Our Products And Services Which Would Lead To Lower Revenue Higher

Loan Losses And Lower Earnings

Following national home price peak in mid-2006 falling home prices and sharply reduced sales

volumes along with the collapse of the United States subprime mortgage industry in early 2007 significantly

contributed to recession that officially lasted until June 2009 although the effects continued thereafter
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Dramatic declines in real estate values and high levels of foreclosures resulted in significant asset write-downs by

financial institutions which have caused many financial institutions to seek additional capital to merge with

other institutions and in some cases to fail Concerns over the United States credit rating which was

downgraded by Standard Poors the European sovereign debt crisis and continued high unemployment in the

United States among other economic indicators have contributed to increased volatility in the capital markets

and diminished expectations for the economy

return of recessionary conditions and/or continued negative developments in the domestic and

international credit markets may significantly affect the markets in which we do business the value of our loans

and investments and our ongoing operations costs and profitability Further declines in real estate values and

sales volumes and continued high unemployment levels may result in higher than expected loan delinquencies

increases in our levels of non-performing and classified assets and decline in demand for our products and

services These negative events may cause us to incur losses and may adversely affect our capital liquidity and

financial condition

Future Changes in Interest Rates Could Reduce Our Profits

Our ability to make profit largely depends on our net interest income which could be negatively

affected by changes in interest rates Net interest income is the difference between the income we earn on our

interest-earning assets such as loans and securities and the
expense we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities

such as deposits and borrowings

The rates we earn on our assets and the rates we pay on our liabilities are generally fixed for

contractual period of time Like many savings institutions our liabilities generally have shorter contractual

maturities than our assets This imbalance can create significant earnings volatility because market interest rates

change over time In period of rising interest rates the interest income earned on our assets may not increase as

rapidly as the interest paid on our liabilities Additionally increases in interest rates may decrease loan demand

and/or make it more difficult for borrowers to repay adjustable-rate loans In period of declining interest rates

the interest income earned on our assets may decrease more rapidly than the interest paid on our liabilities as

borrowers prepay mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities and callable investment securities are called or

prepaid thereby requiring us to reinvest those cash flows at lower interest rates

Changes in interest rates also affect the current fair value of our securities portfolio Generally the value

of securities moves inversely with changes in interest rates At December 31 2012 the fair value of our

available-for-sale securities portfolio consisting of agency securities mortgage-backed securities corporate debt

obligations municipal obligations and preferred stock totaled $294.3 million Unrealized net gains on these

available-for-sale securities totaled $10.1 million at December 31 2012 and are reported as separate component

of stockholders equity Decreases in the fair value of securities available for sale in future periods would have an

adverse effect on stockholders equity

We evaluate interest rate sensitivity using income simulation models that estimate the change in United

Banks net interest income over range of interest rate scenarios Net income at risk measures the risk of

decline in earnings due to potential short-term and long term changes in interest rates At December 31 2012 in

the event of an immediate 200 basis point increase in interest rates the model projects that we would experience

2.02% increase in net interest income over the following 12 months See Managements Discussion and

Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Management of Market Risk

Our Increased Emphasis on Commercial Real Estate and Commercial and Industrial Lending May
Expose Us to Increased Lending Risks

At December 31 2012 our portfolio of commercial real estate loans totaled $814.7 million or 44.9% of our

total loans and our portfolio of commercial and industrial loans totaled $306.2 million or 16.9% of our total loans
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These loans have increased as percentage of our total loan portfolio in recent years
and generally have more risk

and require commensurately higher loan loss allowance than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans

Because the repayment of commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans depends on the successful

management and operation of the borrowers properties or related businesses repayment of such loans can be

affected by adverse conditions in the real estate market or the local economy Many of our borrowers also have more

than one commercial real estate or commercial and industrial loan outstanding with us Consequently an adverse

development with respect to one loan or one credit relationship can expose us to significantly greater risk of loss

compared to an adverse development with respect to one- to four-family residential mortgage loan Finally if we

foreclose on commercial real estate or commercial and industrial loan our holding period for the collateral if any

typically is longer than for one- to four-family residential mortgage
loans because there are fewer potential

purchasers of the collateral Because we plan to continue to increase our originations of these loans it may be

necessary to increase the level of our allowance for loan losses because of the increased risk characteristics associated

with these types of loans Any such increase to our allowance for loan losses would adversely affect our earnings

Our Emphasis On Residential Mortgage Loans and Home Equity Loans And Lines Of Credit Exposes Us

To Lending Risks

At December 31 2012 $441.9 million or 24.3% of our loan portfolio consisted of one- to four-family

residential mortgage loans and $179.0 million or 9.9% of our loan portfolio consisted of home equity loans and

lines of credit Recent declines in the housing market have resulted in declines in real estate values in our market

areas These declines in real estate values could cause some of our mortgage and home equity loans and lines of

credit to be inadequately collateralized which would expose us to greater risk of loss if we seek to recover on

defaulted loans by selling the real estate collateral

Income From Secondary Mortgage Market Operations is Volatile and We May Incur Losses or Charges

With Respect to Our Secondary Mortgage Market Operations Which Would Negatively Affect Our

Earnings

We generally sell in the secondary market the fixed-rate residential mortgage loans that we originate

earning non-interest income When interest rates rise the demand for mortgage loans tends to fall and may

reduce the number of loans available for sale When interest rates fall the demand for fixed-rate mortgage loans

also tends to fall and may reduce the number of loans available for sale In addition to interest rate levels weak

or deteriorating economic conditions also tend to reduce loan demand Although we sell loans in the secondary

market without recourse we are required to give customary representations and warranties to the buyers If we

breach those representations and warranties the buyers can require us to repurchase the loans and we may incur

loss on the repurchase Because we generally retain the servicing rights on the loans we sell in the secondary

market we are required to record mortgage servicing right asset which we test quarterly for impairment The

value of mortgage servicing rights tend to increase with rising interest rates and to decrease with falling interest

rates If we are required to take an impairment charge that would hurt our earnings

If Our Allowance for Loan Losses is Not Sufficient to Cover Actual Loan Losses Our Earnings Could

Decrease

We make various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of our loan portfolio including the

creditworthiness of our borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the

repayment of many of our loans In determining the amount of the allowance for loan losses we review our loans

and our loss and delinquency experience growth of our loan portfolio changes in the composition of our loan

portfolio and the volume and trends in our non-performing and classified loans and charge-offs We also evaluate

economic conditions and general market collateral valuations Because of the degree of uncertainty and

susceptibility of these factors to change our actual losses may vary
from our current estimates If our assumptions

are incorrect our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover losses inherent in our loan portfolio

resulting in additions to our allowance Our allowance for loan losses was 0.67% of total loans and 82.2% of non-

performing loans at December 31 2012 compared to 0.99% of total loans and 131.7% of non-performing loans at

December 31 2011 Material additions to our allowance could materially decrease our net income
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In addition bank regulators periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may require us to

increase our provision for loan losses or recognize further loan charge-offs Any increase in our allowance for

loan losses or loan charge-offs as required by these regulatory authorities may have material adverse effect on

our financial condition and results of operations

Further Declines in the Value of Certain Investment Securities Could Require Write-Downs Which
Would Reduce Our Earnings

At December 31 2012 our investment portfolio included $1.9 million in trust preferred securities and

$34.8 million in municipal bonds In addition we have two cost basis investments totaling $1.0 million We
review our investment securities portfolio at each quarter and reporting period to determine whether the fair

value is below the current carrying value When the fair value of any of our investment securities has declined

below its current carrying value we are required to assess whether the decline is other-than-temporary

Management evaluated the investment portfolio and recognized pre-tax non-cash charge of $165000 for the

year ended December 31 2012 for other-than-temporary impairment OTTI of corporate bond Management
based its assessment on the issuers credit ratings credit outlook payment status and financial condition the

length of time the bond has been in loss position the size of the loss position and other meaningful information

Management has concluded that no other securities have experienced impairments that are other-than-temporary

During 2012 management determined that venture capital investment carried at cost had suffered impairment

that was considered other-than-temporary The cost basis of the investment was written down by $37000 in the

third quarter to fair value as new cost basis and the write down was accounted for as realized loss and was
included in earnings During 2011 and 2010 management determined that an impairment indicator existed on two

cost basis investments and that the investments suffered impairment that was considered
other-than-temporary

The cost basis of the investments were written down by $99000 and $145000 in 2011 and 2010 respectively to

fair value as new cost basis and the write down was accounted for as realized loss and was included in

earnings number of factors or combinations of factors could cause us to conclude in one or more future

reporting periods that an unrealized loss that exists with
respect to these securities constitutes an impairment that

is other-than-temporary These factors include but are not limited to changes in the expected cash flows failure

to make scheduled interest payments an increase in the severity of the unrealized loss on particular security an

increase in the continuous duration of the unrealized loss without an improvement in value or changes in market

conditions and/or industry or issuer specific factors that would render us unable to forecast full
recovery in

value An other-than-temporary impairment write-down would reduce our earnings

Regulatory Reform May Have Material Impact on Our Operations

In 2010 the President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act

the Dodd-Frank Act The Dodd-Frank Act restructured the regulation of depository institutions Under the

Dodd-Frank Act the Office of Thrift Supervision which formerly regulated United Bank was merged into the

Office of the Comptroller of the Currency which regulates national banks Savings and loan holding companies
became regulated by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System The Dodd-Frank Act also created

new federal agency to administer consumer protection and fair lending laws function that was formerly

performed by the depository institution regulators The federal preemption of state laws that was formerly

accorded federally chartered depository institutions was reduced as well and State Attorneys General now have

greater authority to bring suit against federally chartered institution for violations of certain state and federal

consumer protection laws The Dodd-Frank Act also imposed consolidated capital requirements on savings and

loan holding companies effective in five years The Dodd-Frank Act contains various other provisions designed

to enhance the regulation of depository institutions and prevent the recurrence of financial crisis such as

occurred in 2008-2009 The full impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our business and operations will not be known
for

years until regulations implementing the statute are written and adopted The Dodd-Frank Act may have

material impact on our operations particularly through increased regulatory burden and compliance costs

In addition to the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act the federal regulatory agencies recently have begun
to take stronger supervisory actions against financial institutions that have experienced increased loan losses and
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other weaknesses as result of the recent economic crisis The actions include entering into written agreements

and cease and desist orders that place certain limitations on operations Federal bank regulators recently have

also been using with more frequency their ability to impose individual minimal capital requirements on banks

which requirements may be higher than those imposed under the Dodd-Frank Act or which would otherwise

qualify the bank as being well capitalized under the Office of the Comptroller of the Currencys prompt

corrective action regulations If we were to become subject to supervisory agreement or higher individual

minimum capital requirements such action may have negative impact on our ability to execute our business

plan as well as our ability to grow pay dividends or engage in mergers and acquisitions and may result in

restrictions in our operations

Additionally on August 30 2012 the federal banking regulatory agencies issued proposed rules that

would implement the Basel III regulatory capital reforms and changes required by the Dodd-Frank Act If

adopted as proposed Basel III and regulations proposed by the federal banking regulatory agencies will require

holding companies and banks to undertake significant activities to demonstrate compliance with the new and

higher capital standards Compliance with these rules which are still being analyzed will impose additional costs

on banking entities and their holding companies

We Operate in Highly Regulated Environment and We May be Adversely Affected by Changes in Laws

and Regulations

We are subject to extensive regulation supervision and examination by the Federal Reserve Board and

the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency our primary federal regulators and the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation as insurer of its deposits Such regulation and supervision governs the activities in which an

institution and its holding company may engage and are intended primarily for the protection of the insurance

fund and the depositors and borrowers of the Bank rather than for holders of our common stock Regulatory

authorities have extensive discretion in their supervisory and enforcement activities including the imposition of

restrictions on our operations the classification of our assets and determination of the level of our allowance for

loan losses Any change in such regulation and oversight whether in the form of regulatory policy regulations

legislation or supervisory action may have material impact on our operations

Increased and/or Special FDIC Assessments Will Hurt Our Earnings

The recent economic recession caused high level of bank failures which dramatically increased FDIC

resolution costs and led to significant reduction in the balance of the Deposit Insurance Fund As result the

FDIC has significantly increased the initial base assessment rates paid by financial institutions for deposit

insurance Increases in the base assessment rate have increased our deposit insurance costs and negatively

impacted our earnings In addition in May 2009 the FDIC imposed special assessment on all insured

institutions Our special assessment which was reflected in earnings for the quarter ended June 30 2009 was

$538000 In lieu of imposing an additional special assessment the FDIC required all institutions to prepay their

assessments for all of 2010 2011 and 2012 which for us totaled $4.8 million Additional increases in the base

assessment rate or additional special assessments would negatively impact our earnings

Strong Competition Within Our Market Area May Limit Our Growth and Profitability

We face intense competition in making loans and attracting deposits In our market area we compete

with commercial banks savings and cooperative institutions mortgage brokerage firms credit unions finance

companies mutual funds insurance companies and brokerage and investment banking firms operating locally

and elsewhere The competition has made it more difficult for us to make new loans and at times has forced us to

offer higher deposit rates Price competition for loan and deposits might result in us earning less on our loans and

paying more on our deposits which could reduce net interest income Some of our competitors have substantially

greater resources and lending limits than we have have greater name recognition and market presence that

benefit them in attracting business and offer certain services that we do not or cannot provide In addition larger
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competitors may be able to price loans and deposits more aggressively than we do Our profitability depends

upon our continued ability to successfully compete in our market area The greater resources and deposit and

loan products offered by some of our competitors may limit our ability to increase our interest-earning assets

If Our Investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston is Classified as Other-Than-Temporarily

Impaired or as Permanently Impaired Our Earnings and Stockholders Equity Would Decrease

We owned $18.6 million in common stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston at December 31
2012 We hold this stock to qualify for membership in the Federal Home Loan Bank System and to be eligible to

borrow funds under the Federal Home Loan Bank of Bostons advance program There is no market for our

Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston common stock Published reports indicate that certain member banks of the

Federal Home Loan Bank System may be subject to accounting rules and asset quality risks that could result in

materially lower regulatory capital levels In an extreme situation it is possible that the capitalization of

Federal Home Loan Bank including the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston could be substantially diminished

if the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston is unable to meet minimum regulatory capital requirements or is

required to aid the remaining Federal Home Loan Banks there is risk that our investment in Federal Home

Loan Bank of Boston common stock could be impaired at some time in the future If this occurs it would cause

our earnings and stockholders equity to decrease by the after-tax amount of the impainnent charge

Our Wholesale Funding Sources May Prove Insufficient to Replace Deposits at Maturity and Support Our

Future Growth

We must maintain sufficient funds to respond to the needs of depositors and borrowers As part of our

liquidity management we use number of funding sources in addition to core deposit growth and repayments

and maturities of loans and investments As we continue to grow we are likely to become more dependent on

these sources which include Federal Home Loan Bank advances borrowings from the Federal Reserve Bank

reverse repurchase agreements brokered CDs and proceeds from the sale of loans and securities and liquidity

resources of the holding company Our financial flexibility will be severely constrained if we are unable to

maintain our access to funding or if adequate financing is not available to accommodate future growth at

acceptable interest rates Finally if we are required to rely more heavily on more expensive funding sources to

support future growth our revenues may not increase proportionately to cover our costs In this case our

operating margins and profitability would be adversely affected

Our Future Growth May Require Us to Raise Additional Capital in the Future But That Capital May Not

Be Available When It Is Needed

We are required by regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support our

operations We believe that our current capital levels will satisfy our regulatory requirements for the foreseeable

future We may at some point however need to raise additional capital to support our continued growth Our

ability to raise additional capital will depend in part on conditions in the capital markets at that time which are

outside our control and on our financial performance Accordingly we may be unable to raise additional capital

if and when needed on terms acceptable to us or at all If we cannot raise additional capital when needed our

ability to further expand our operations through internal growth and acquisitions could be materially impaired In

addition if we decide to raise additional equity capital your interest in our common stock could be diluted

If The Goodwill That We Recorded In Connection With Business Acquisition Becomes Impaired It

Could Have Negative Impact On Our Profitability

Goodwill represents the amount of acquisition cost over the fair value of net assets we acquired in the

purchase of another financial institution We review goodwill for impairment at least annually or more

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of the asset might be impaired We
determine impairment by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying

amount of that goodwill If the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of
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that goodwill an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess Any such adjustments are

reflected in our results of operations in the periods in which they become known At December 31 2012 our

goodwill totaled $40.7 million While we have recorded no such impairment charges since we initially recorded

the goodwill our future evaluations of goodwill may result in findings of impairment and related write-downs

which may have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

The Building Of Market Share Through The Creation Of New Branches Or Loan Production Offices

Could Cause Our Expenses To Increase Faster Than Revenues

We have opened two loan production offices and new branch office in the past two years We may

continue to build market share in our primary market areas by opening new branches or loan production offices

There are considerable costs involved in opening branches and new branches generally require period of time to

generate sufficient revenues to offset their costs especially in areas in which we do not have an established

presence Accordingly any new branch or loan production office can be expected to negatively impact our

earnings for some period of time until the branch or loan production office reaches certain economies of scale

We have no assurance any new branches or loan production offices will be successful even after they have been

established

Our Estimates Of Discounts On Acquired Loans With Deteriorated Credit Quality May Be Insufficient

Under generally accepted principles for business combinations there is no loan loss allowance recorded

for acquired loans which are recorded at net fair value on the acquisition date This net fair value generally

includes embedded loss estimates for acquired loans with deteriorated credit quality These estimates are based

on projections of expected cash flows for these problem loans If the projections are incorrect the fair value

estimates may exceed the actual collectability of the balances and this may result in the related loans being

considered impaired

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Not applicable

ITEM PROPERTIES

The Company conducts its business through its executive office at 95 Elm Street West Springfield

Massachusetts its 38 full service branch offices two loan production offices two financial services facilities

and two drive-up express branches Of the 38 full service branch offices 14 are owned and 24 are leased one of

the financial services facilities is owned and one is leased and one of the drive-up branches is owned and one is

leased The Company also has three remote ATM locations two of which are leased Lease expiration dates

range from 2012 to 2034 with renewal options ranging from five to ten years See Note in the Companys

Consolidated Financial Statements for more information
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ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

United Bank as successor in interest to Commonwealth National Bank is involved in litigation relating

to its foreclosure on certain loan property The litigants claim that Commonwealth National Bank acted in bad

faith and in violation of applicable law and that its actions resulted in sale of the underlying property for less

than its market value thereby causing damage to the parties trial was held in the third quarter of 2011 and the

judge ruled in United Banks favor The litigants have appealed the decision United Bank believes these

claims and the appeal are without merit and is vigorously defending the litigation No estimate of any reasonably

possible loss or range of loss to United Bank can be made at this time

In addition the Company and its subsidiary are subject to various legal actions arising in the normal

course of business In the opinion of management after consultation with legal counsel the ultimate disposition

of these matters is not expected to have material adverse effect on the Companys financial condition results of

operations or cash flows

ITEM MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable

PART II

ITEM MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our shares of common stock are traded on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol

UBNK The approximate number of holders of record of United Financial Bancorp Inc.s common stock as of

March 2013 was 3584 Certain shares of the Company are held in nominee or street name accordingly

the number of beneficial owners of such shares is not known or included in the foregoing number

The following table presents quarterly market information and dividends declared for the common stock

of the Company for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 The high and low sales prices for the quarterly

periods noted below were obtained from the NASDAQ Global Select Market

Price Per Share
Cash

High Low Dividend Declared

2012

Fourth quarter 15.75 14.13 0.10

Third quarter 14.93 13.73 0.10

Second quarter 16.88 13.36 0.09

First quarter 16.93 15.10 0.09

2011

Fourth quarter 17.02 13.49 0.09

Third quarter 16.75 13.68 0.09

Second quarter 16.76 14.35 0.08

First quarter 16.51 13.84 0.08
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Set forth hereunder is stock performance graph comparing the cumulative total return on the

common stock for the period beginning on December 31 2007 through December 31 2012 the cumulative

total return on stocks included in the SNL Thrift Index over such period and the cumulative total return on

stocks included in the Russell 2000 Index over such period The stock performance graph is being furnished

solely to accompany this report pursuant to Item 201e of Regulation S-K and is not being filed for
purposes of

Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and is not to be incorporated by reference into

any filing of the Company whether made before or after the date hereof regardless of any general incorporation

language in such filing

The cumulative total return on the common stock was computed assuming the reinvestment of cash

dividends during the period and is expressed in dollars based on an assumed initial investment of $100

Future dividends depend upon earnings financial condition appropriate legal restrictions and other

factors in existence at the time the Board of Directors considers dividend declaration In addition future

dividends are dependent primarily on cash flows from the investment portfolio and dividends or capital

distributions from United Bank

United Financial Bancorp Inc

Total Return Performance

175

150

125

100

75

tedFinanciaIBancorplnc._

50

Russell 2000
25

SNL Thrift Index

12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12

Period Ending

Index 12131/07 12131/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12

United Financial Bancorp Inc 100.00 139.43 123.30 146.70 158.00 158.29

Russell 2000 100.00 66.21 84.20 106.82 102.36 119.09

SNL Thrift Index 100.00 63.64 59.35 62.01 52.17 63.45
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For discussion of United Banks ability to pay dividends see Part IItem BusinessSupervision

and RegulationFederal Banking Regulation and Holding Company Regulation

Not Applicable

The following table provides certain information with regard to shares repurchased by the

Company in the fourth quarter of 2012

Maximum Number or
Total Number of Approximate Dollar

Shares or Units Value of

Total Number Average Price Purchased as Part Shares or Units that

of Shares Paid Per of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased

or Units Share Announced Plans Under the

Period Purchased or Unit or Programs Plans or Programs

October 31 2012 4933 13.83 69189

November 30 2012 224970a 14.99 96501 741688

December 31 2012 667980i 15.71
_______________

741688

Total 893443 15.53 96501

On October 26 2010 the Board of Directors approved plan to repurchase up to 5% or approximately 807803 shares of the

Companys common stock The Company completed its stock repurchase program at cost of approximately $12.1 million and at an

average price of $15.02 on November 19 2012

On October 18 2012 the Board of Directors approved plan to repurchase up to 5% or approximately 769000 shares of the

Companys common stock This repurchase program commenced immediately upon completion of the previous plan approved on

October 26 2010 As of December 31 2012 the Company repurchased 27312 shares at cost of approximately $407000 and an

average price of$14.91 under this plan

Represents withholdings subject to restricted stock awards under the United Financial Bancorp Inc 2008 Equity Incentive Plan as

payment of taxes due upon the vesting of the restricted stock awards

Includes the purchase of 128469 shares at cost of approximately $2.0 million and an average price of $15.28 from the New England

Bank ESOP in connection with the termination of the ESOP plan The proceeds from this sale were used to repay in full the outstanding

ESOP loan balance

On December 20 2012 the Board of Directors voted to terminate the Banks Employee Stock Ownership Plan the ESOP effective

December 31 2012 In connection with the termination of the ESOP the ESOP Trustee transferred approximately 664552 shares to the

Company to satisfj the ESOP loan in full The Company has elected to treat these shares as treasury stock at cost of approximately

$10.4 million and an average price of $15.72 Also included is the withholding of 3428 shares at $13.91 per share subject to restricted

stock awards under the United Financial Bancorp Inc 2008 Equity Incentive Plan as payment of taxes due upon the vesting of the

restricted stock awards
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The summary financial information presented below is derived in part from the consolidated financial

statements of the Company The following is only summary and you should read it in conjunction with the

consolidated financial statements and notes beginning on page F- The information at December 31 2012 and

2011 and for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 is derived in part from the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company that
appear

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K The information for the

years
ended December 31 2009 and 2008 is derived in part from audited consolidated financial statements that

do not appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

At December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

In thousands

Selected Financial Condition Data

Total assets 2402303 1623752 $1584877 1541040 1263134

Cash and cash equivalents 30679 61518 83069 21877 13572

Short-term investments 1096 1071

Investment securities available-for-sale 294322 221813 205852 243304 313506

Investment securities held-to-maturity 82986 115897 132475 63174 3191

Loansnet1 1807401 1112941 1066197 1115416 864421

Deposits 1848175 1229975 1143301 1038927 782663

FHLB advances 141525 106417 153307 208173 208564

Repurchase agreements 69229 37260 41029 47303 28042

Subordinated debentures 9630 5539 5448 5357

Stockholders equity 307189 227361 222576 225246 227714

Non-performing assets 17337 10577 10970 17832 5795

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts
Selected Operating Data

Interest and dividend income 71171 71074 73858 62986 64814

Interest expense 14992 18261 20947 21986 25003

Net interest income before provision

for loan losses 56179 52813 52911 41000 39811

Provision for loan losses 3139 3242 2285 2998 1846

Net interest income after provision for

loan losses 53040 49571 50626 38002 37965

Non-interest income 10623 9353 8716 8676 5220

Non-interest expense 56240 44062 43841 36858 30690

Income before taxes 7423 14862 15501 9820 12495

Income tax expense 3795 3678 5469 4014 5197

Netincome 3628i 11184 10032a 5806a 7298s

Basic earnings per share 0.24 0.75 0.66 0.38 0.44

Diluted earnings per share 0.24 0.74 0.65 0.38 0.44

Dividends per share 0.38 0.34 0.30 0.28 0.27

Number of shares outstanding

Basic 15234896 14929714 15302505 15265192 16445388

Diluted 15421777 15198702 15394761 15273375 16445388
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At or For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data

Performance Ratios

Return on average assets 0.2 1% 0.70% 0.65%8 o.46%8 0.62%

Return on average equity 1.52% 4.94% 449%8 2.67% 3.23%

Average equity to average assets 13.70% 14.15% 14.56% 17.17% 19.06%

Tangible equity to tangible assets at end of

period 1.12% 13.53%b0 13.54% 14.13%b0 18.03%

Interestratespread1l 3.18% 3.17% 3.25% 2.83% 2.69%

Net interest margin 12 3.45% 3.51% 3.65% 3.39% 3.47%

Average interest-earning assets to average

interest-bearing liabilities 129.12% 128.20% 127.83% 130.87% 135.95%

Total non-interest expense to average total

assets 3.22% 2.75% 2.85% 2.91% 2.59%

Efficiency ratio 15 85.08% 71.08% 71.42% 7545%14 66.16%

Dividend payout ratio 152.18% 45.31% 45.74% 72.99% 60.78%

Regulatory Capital Ratios 16
Tier risk-based capital 12.98% 16.17% 15.49% 15.73% 17.76%

Tier core capital 10.69% 12.23% 11.53% 12.14% 12.31%

TangibleEquityRatio 10.69% 12.23% 11.53% 12.14% 12.31%

Total risk-based capital 13.61% 17.09% 16.34% 16.53% 18.71%

Asset Quality Ratios

Non-performing assets as percent of total

assets 0.72% 0.65% 0.69% 1.16% 0.46%

Non-performing loans as percent of total

loans 0.81% 0.75% 0.88% 1.45% 0.55%

Allowance for loan losses as percent of total

loans 0.67% 99%l7 93%17 0.82% 0.95%

Allowance for loan losses as percent of

non-performing loans 82.20%18 131.68% 105.86%18 56.36%18 171.98%

Number of full service customer facilities 38 22 22 22 15

The allowance for loan losses at December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 and 2008 was $12.1 million $11.1 million $10.0 million $9.2

million and $8.3 million respectively

Non-performing assets consist of non-performing loans foreclosed other real estate owned OREO and other non-performing assets

Non-performing loans consist of non-accrual and accruing loans 90 days or more overdue while OREO consists of real estate acquired

through foreclosure and real estate acquired by acceptance of deed-in-lieu of foreclosure

Exclusive of the $5.0 million acquisition-related expenses $4.5 million ESOP plan termination expense $207000 in FHLBB

prepayment penalties the $202000 other-than-temporary impairment charge and the $660000 income tax effect related to these items

for the year ended December 31 2012 net income would have been $12.8 million

Exclusive of the $819000 and $2.5 million after tax in acquisition related expenses for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively and $3 18000 after tax special FDIC insurance assessment for the year ended December 31 2009 net income would

have been $10.9 million and $8.7 million respectively

Exclusive of the $1.4 million OTTI charge and related tax effect of $550000 net income in 2008 would have been $8.1 million

50



Asset Quality Ratios and Regulatoiy Capital Ratios and the tangible equity to tangible assets ratio are end-of-period ratios With the

exception of end-of-period ratios all ratios are based on average monthly balances during the indicated periods and are annualized where

appropriate Tangible equity and measures that refer to tangible equity are non-GAAP financial measures They are used by investors as an

alternate measure of capital strength Many regulatory capital measures also
adjust equity to exclude goodwill and most intangible assets

Exclusive of the $5.0 million acquisition-related expenses $4.5 million ESOP plan termination expense $207000 in FHLBB

prepayment penalties the $202000 other-than-temporary impairment charge and the $660000 income tax effect related to these items

for the year ended December 31 2012 the return on average assets would have been 0.73% and the return on average equity would have

been 5.34% respectively

Exclusive of the $819000 and $2.5 million after tax in acquisition related expenses for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively and $318000 after tax special FDIC insurance assessment for the year ended December 31 2009 the return on average

assets would have been 0.7 1% and 0.68% and average equity would have been 4.85% and 3.97% respectively

Exclusive of the $1.4 million OTTI charge and related tax effect of $550000 the return on average assets and average equity would have

been 0.68% and 3.59% respectively

10 Excludes the impact of goodwill and other intangible assets of $44.4 million at December 31 2012 $8.9 million at December 31 2011

$9.2 million at December31 2010 and $8.8 million at December31 2009

11 The interest rate spread represents the difference between weighted-average yield on interest-earning assets and the weighted-average

cost of interest-bearing liabilities

12 The net interest margin represents net interest income as percent of average interest-earning assets

13 Exclusive of the $5.0 million acquisition-related expenses $4.5 million ESOP plan termination expense $207000 in FHLBB

prepayment penalties for the year ended December 31 2012 non-interest expense to average total assets would have been 2.67% and the

efficiency ratio would have been 70.49%

14 Exclusive of the $1.1 million and $2.9 million in acquisition related expenses for the years ended December 31 2010 and 2009

respectively and $538000 special FDIC insurance assessment for the year ended December 31 2009 non-interest expense to average

total assets would have been 2.78% and 2.64% and the efficiency ratio would have been 69.55% and 68.49% respectively

15 The efficiency ratio represents non-interest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and non-interest income and excludes

gains/losses on sales of securities and loans and impairment charges on securities

16 Regulatory Capital Ratios are reported for United Bank only

17 Exclusive of the $659.6 million $148.9 million $209.8 million and $242.9 million in loans acquired and $5.0 million $19.1 million

$21.4 million and $22.7 million in loans purchased from other financial institutions allowance for loan losses as percent of total loans

would have been 1.05% 1.17% 1.18% and 1.07% at December31 2012 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

18 Excluding the $7.0 million $163000 and $3.3 million in non-performing loans acquired allowance for loan losses as percent of non-

performing loans would have been 157.72% 107.72% and 70.44% at December31 2012 2010 and 2009 respectively

These are non-GAAP financial measures presented for comparative purposes only They are not substitute for GAAP measures and

should only be considered in conjunction with the Companys GAAP financial information These non-GAAP financial measures

provide investors with more detailed information that is useful in understanding our financial performance and condition

ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis reflects our consolidated financial statements and other relevant statistical

data and is intended to enhance your understanding of our financial condition and results of operations The

information in this section has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements which
appear

beginning on page F- of this Annual Report You should read the information in this section in conjunction with

the business and financial information regarding the Company provided in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Overview

Our results of operations depend primarily on our net interest income Net interest income is the

difference between the interest income we earn on our interest-earning assets consisting primarily of loans

investment securities including mortgage-backed securities other securities and corporate and municipal bonds
and other interest-earning assets primarily Federal Home Loan Bank stock and cash and cash equivalents and

the interest paid on our interest-bearing liabilities consisting primarily of savings accounts money market

accounts transaction accounts certificates of deposit and Federal Home Loan Bank advances
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Our results of operations are also affected by our provision for loan losses non-interest income and non-

interest expense Non-interest income consists primarily of deposit account fees wealth management income

increases in cash value of bank-owned life insurance gains and losses on the sales of loans and of securities

impairment charges for securities and miscellaneous other income Non-interest expense consists primarily of

compensation and employee benefits data processing occupancy marketing and public relations professional

services printing and office supplies acquisition related costs and other operating expenses Our results of

operations also may be affected significantly by general and local economic and competitive conditions changes

in market interest rates governmental policies and actions of regulatory authorities

Critical Accounting Policies

The SEC defines critical accounting policies as those that require application of managements mosi

difficult subjective or complex judgments often as result of the need to make estimates about the effect of

matters that are inherently uncertain and may change in future periods The Companys significant accounting

policies are described in Note to the consolidated financial statements Please see those policies in conjunction

with this discussion Management believes that the following policies would be considered critical under the

SECs definition

Allowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses is the amount estimated by management as

necessary to cover credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance sheet date The allowance is

established through the provision for loan losses which is charged against income The methodology for

determining the allowance for loan losses is considered critical accounting policy by management due to the

high degree ofjudgment involved the subjectivity of the assumptions utilized and the potential for changes in the

economic environment that could result in adjustments to the amount of the recorded allowance for loan losses

Management performs quarterly evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses We

consider variety of factors in establishing this estimate including but not limited to prior loss experience

current economic conditions trends in nonperforming loans and delinquency rates the adequacy of the

underlying collateral the financial strength of the borrower results of internal loan reviews and other relevant

factors This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires material estimates by management that may be

susceptible to significant change based on changes in economic and real estate market conditions The allowance

consists of specific general and unallocated components as further described below

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the

Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the

contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors considered by management in determining impairment include

payment status collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when

due Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as

impaired

The Company periodically may agree to modif the contractual terms of loans When loan is modified

and concession is made to borrower experiencing financial difficulty the modification is considered

troubled debt restructuring TDR All TDRs are initially classified as impaired

Specific component The specific component relates to loans that are classified as impaired

Impairment is measured on loan by loan basis for the commercial segment commercial and industrial

commercial real estate and construction by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at

the loans effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent specific

allowance is established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value of the impaired loan is lower than

the carrying value of the loan Groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are collectively evaluated for

impairment Accordingly the Company does not separately identify individual loans in the consumer segment

residential real estate home equity and consumer loans for impairment disclosures unless such loans are

subject to troubled debt restructuring agreement
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The Company has established Business Banking unit within its Commercial Lending Department The

portfolio is made up of both commercial and industrial loans less than $250000 and commercial real estate loans

less than $500000 which are managed by exception This grouping of loans is considered homogenous pooi of

loans and collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly the Company does not separately identif

individual loans within this unit for impairment disclosures unless such loans are subject to troubled debt

restructuring agreement

General component The general component is based on historical loss experience adjusted for

qualitative factors stratified by each of the loan classes commercial and industrial commercial real estate

construction residential real estate home equity and consumer Management uses an average of historical losses

based on time frame appropriate to capture relevant loss data for each loan class This historical loss factor for

each loan class is adjusted for the following qualitative factors the levels/trends in delinquencies and

nonaccruals levels and trends in charge..offs and recoveries trends in volume and terms of loans effects of

changes in risk selection and underwriting standards and other changes in lending policies procedures and

practices experience ability and depth of lending management and staff national and local economic trends and

conditions industry conditions and effects of changes in credit concentrations This analysis establishes factors

that are applied to each loan class to determine the amount of the general component of the allowance for loan

losses In the second quarter of 2012 management refined to its allowance for loan loss methodology to

incorporate the Business Banking unit into the Companys approach This refinement did not have significant

effect on the loan loss provision or the total allowance for loan loss

Unallocated component An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could

affect managements estimate of probable losses The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the

margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating allocated

and general reserves in the portfolio

Reserve for Unfunded Commitments The Company also maintains reserve for unfunded credit

commitments to provide for the risk of loss inherent in these arrangements The reserve is determined using

methodology similar to the analysis of the allowance for loan losses taking into consideration probabilities of

future funding requirements The reserve for unfunded commitments is included in other liabilities and was

$213000 and $0 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Evaluation of the Investment Portfolio for Other-Than-Temporary Impairment The evaluation of

the investment portfolio for other-than-temporary impairment is also critical accounting estimate On

quarterly basis we review securities with decline in fair value below the amortized cost of the investment to

determine whether the decline in fair value is temporary or other-than-temporary Declines in the fair value of

marketable equity securities below their cost that are deemed to be other-than-temporary based on the severity

and duration of the impairment are reflected in earnings as realized losses In estimating other-than-temporary

impairment losses for held to maturity and available for sale debt securities impairment is required to be

recognized if we intend to sell the security it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the

security before recovery of its amortized cost basis or the present value of expected cash flows is not

sufficient to recover the entire amortized cost basis For all impaired held to maturity and available for sale

securities that we intend to sell or more likely than not will be required to sell the full amount of the other-than-

temporary impairment is recognized through earnings For all other impaired held to maturity or available for

sale securities credit-related other-than-temporary impairment is recognized through earnings while non-credit

related other-than-temporary impairment is recognized in other comprehensive income net of applicable taxes

Income Taxes The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes in

which deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for the temporary differences between the financial

reporting basis and the tax basis of the Companys asset and liabilities The realization of the net deferred tax

asset generally depends upon future levels of taxable income and the existence of prior years taxable income to

which carry back refund claims could be made valuation allowance is maintained for deferred tax assets that
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management estimates are more likely than not to be unrealizable based on available evidence at the time the

estimate is made Significant management judgment is required in determining income tax expense
and deferred

tax assets and liabilities In determining the valuation allowance the Company uses historical and forecasted

future operating results based upon approved business plans including review of the eligible carryforward

periods tax planning opportunities and other relevant considerations These underlying assumptions can change

from period to period For example tax law changes or variances in future projected operating performance

could result in change in the valuation allowance Should actual factors and conditions differ materially from

those considered by management the actual realization of the net deferred tax asset could differ materially from

the amounts recorded in the financial statements If the Company is not able to realize all or part of our net

deferred tax asset in the future an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance would be charged to

income tax expense in the period such determination was made

Goodwill and Identifiable Intangible Assets Goodwill and identifiable intangible assets are recorded

as result of business acquisitions and combinations These assets are evaluated for impairment annually or

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of these assets may not be recoverable

If the carrying amount exceeds fair value an impairment charge is recorded to income The fair value is based on

observable market prices when practicable Other valuation techniques may be used when market prices are

unavailable including estimated discounted cash flows and market multiples analyses These types of analyses

contain uncertainties because they require management to make assumptions and to apply judgment to estimate

industry economic factors and the profitability of future business strategies In the event of future changes in fair

value the Company may be exposed to an impairment charge that could be material

Fair Valuation of Financial Instruments The Company uses fair value measurements to record fair

value adjustments to certain financial instruments and to determine fair value disclosures Trading assets

securities available for sale and derivative instruments are recorded at fair value on recurring basis

Additionally from time to time the Company may be required to record at fair value other assets on

nonrecurring basis or to establish loss allowance or write-down based on the fair value of impaired assets

Further the notes to financial statements include information about the extent to which fair value is used to

measure assets and liabilities the valuation methodologies used and its impact to earnings Additionally for

financial instruments not recorded at fair value the notes to financial statements disclose the estimate of their fair

value Due to the judgments and uncertainties involved in the estimation process the estimates could result in

materially different results under different assumptions and conditions

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to operate as well-capitalized and profitable community bank dedicated to

providing exceptional personal service to our individual and business customers Over the past several years we

have emphasized the origination of commercial and industrial loans and loans secured by commercial real estate

and we intend to increase our origination of these loans in the future In addition we intend to expand our branch

network in our primary market area which consists of Hampden Hampshire and Worcester Counties

Massachusetts as well as Hartford Tolland New Haven and Litchfield counties in Connecticut We also intend

to evaluate opportunities to expand into new markets both in Central Massachusetts and throughout Northern and

Central Connecticut

Highlights of our business strategy are as follows

Remaining Community-Oriented Financial Institution We were established in 1882 and

have been operating continuously since that time growing through internal growth and acquisitions We

have been and continue to be committed to meeting the financial needs of the communities in which

we operate and we are dedicated to providing quality personal service to our customers We provide

broad range of individualized consumer and business financial services
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Expanding our Franchise We currently operate from 38 full-service banking offices two

loan production offices and two drive-up express branches We also maintain two financial services

facilities that offer insurance and investment products and financial planning services We intend to

evaluate new branch expansion opportunities through acquisitions and de novo branching to expand

our presence
within and outside our primary market area In addition we intend to evaluate acquisitions

of other financial institutions as opportunities present themselves

Increasing our Commercial Real Estate and Commercial and Industrial Lending We

intend to continue to increase our origination of commercial real estate and commercial and industrial

loans as means of increasing our interest income and improving our net interest margin We have

supplemented our existing staff of commercial loan officers increased our credit analysis resources and

enhanced the outside loan review process We originated $115.7 million of commercial real estate loans

and $134.3 million of commercial and industrial loans during the year
ended December 31 2012 At

December 31 2012 our commercial real estate loans and commercial and industrial loans totaled

$814.7 million and $306.2 million respectively Originating more commercial real estate loans and

commercial and industrial loans exposes us to increased risks as discussed in the Risk Factors section of

this Annual Report

Maintaining High Asset Quality We have emphasized maintaining strong asset quality by

following conservative underwriting criteria and by originating loans secured primarily by real estate

We will continue to focus on maintaining high asset quality as we seek to expand our commercial

lending activities Our loan portfolio has no exposure to sub-prime borrowers In addition net charge

offs decreased from 0.19% of average loans outstanding for the
year

ended December 31 2011 to

0.18% of our average loans outstanding for the year ended December 31 2012 Deterioration in the

economy and the real estate market may lead to future increases in non-performing assets and net

charge-offs

Increasing our Share of Lower-Cost Deposits We remain committed to gathering lower cost

and more stable core deposits We attract and retain core deposits with competitive products and rates

excellent customer service comprehensive marketing program and well-established incentive-based

cross-sales program Our efforts to attract and retain core deposits have resulted in an increase in core

account balances and total number of accounts during 2012 At December 31 2012 core deposits

demand deposits NOW accounts money market accounts and savings accounts totaled $1.14 billion

or 61.7% of total deposits compared to $808.2 million or 65.7% of our total deposits at December 31

2011

Increasing and Diversifying our Sources of Non-interest Income In order to reduce our

reliance on net interest income and the impact of market rates on our financial results we have sought to

diversify our revenue stream In connection with our success in growing our deposit base our fee

income derived from deposits has increased Through United Wealth Management Group division of

United Bank we offer United Bank customers and others complete range of non-deposit investment

products and financial planning services including mutual funds debt equity and government

securities insurance products fixed and variable annuities financial planning for individual and

commercial customers and estate planning services United Wealth Management Group offers these

services through its partnership with NFP Securities Inc We have also invested in bank-owned life

insurance for certain executive officers and directors providing another source of non-interest income

through the recognition of the growing cash surrender value of this insurance over time

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31 2012 and 2011

Balance Sheet Summary Total assets increased $778.6 million or 47.9% to $2.40 billion at

December 31 2012 from $1.62 billion at December 31 2011 reflecting the acquisition of NEBS $746 million

as well as growth in net loans securities available for sale and bank-owned life insurance partially offset by
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decrease in interest-bearing deposits and held to maturity investment securities Net loans increased $693.6

million or 62.3% to $1.81 billion at December 31 2012 from $1.11 billion at December 31 2011 due in large

part to the NEBS acquisition $554 million as well as origination activity partially offset by normal

amortization and repayments Securities available for sale increased $72.5 million or 32.7% to $294.3 million at

December 31 2012 from $221.8 million at December 31 2011 primarily due to the NEBS acquisition $53

million partially offset by maturities calls and repayments of government-sponsored agency debt and

mortgage-backed securities of $66.3 million Bank-owned life insurance increased $12.2 million or 30.0%

mainly resulting from the NEBS acquisition Goodwill increased $31.7 million due to the NEBS acquisition

Interest-bearing deposits decreased $39.7 million or 95.9% reflecting the use of excess cash to fund loan growth

and pay down FHLBB advances Securities held to maturity decreased $32.9 million or 28.4% as result of

repayments of mortgage-backed securities At year end the Company continued to have considerable liquidity

consisting of large amount of marketable loans and investment securities substantial unused borrowing

capacity at the Federal Home Loan Bank and the Federal Reserve Bank and access to funding through the

repurchase agreement and brokered deposit markets The Companys balance sheet is also supported by strong

capital position with total stockholders equity of $307.2 million or 12.8% of total assets at December 31 2012

Loans Net loans increased $693.6 million or 62.3% to $1.81 billion at December 31 2012 from $1.11

billion at December 31 2011 Commercial real estate loans increased $364.5 million or 81.0% to $814.7 million

and commercial and industrial loans increased $130.1 million or 73.9% to $306.2 million primarily attributable to

the NEBS acquisition business development efforts and competitive products and pricing One- to four-family

residential mortgage loans increased $127.0 million or 40.3% to $441.9 million due to the NEBS acquisition

originations of 10- and 15-year loans as result of promotional efforts and continued lower market interest rates

partially offset by payments and sales of 30-year fixed rate loan originations Construction loans increased $22.5

million or 74.4% to $52.8 million due to the NEBS acquisition and successful business development efforts

significant portion of these loans mature in less than year and will either convert to permanent financing or pay-off

in full We continued to focus our efforts on growing the commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loan

portfolios in order to increase our interest income and improve our net interest rate spread

Asset Quality Throughout 2012 economic conditions improved modestly Our asset quality has also

been impacted by strategy adopted several years ago to emphasize the origination of commercial and industrial

loans and commercial mortgages These loans have increased as percentage of our total loan portfolio in recent

years and generally have more risk than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans Because the repayment

of commercial and industrial loans and commercial mortgages depends on the successful management and

operation of the borrowers properties or related businesses repayment of such loans can be affected by adverse

conditions in the real estate market or the local economy

As result of the NEBS acquisition we experienced an increase in non-performing loans and classified

assets in 2012 Non-performing loans increased $6.3 million to $14.7 million or 0.81% of total loans at

December 31 2012 as compared to $8.5 million or 0.75% of total loans at December 31 2011 primarily as

result to the NEBS acquisition In addition to non-performing loans the Company has identified $95.5 million of

classified assets at December 31 2012 compared to $61.3 million at December 31 2011 The increase of $34.2

million or 55.8% in classified assets is due in large part to the NEBS acquisition Classified assets include loans

that are currently performing are of lesser quality and are reported as special mention substandard doubtful or

loss as well as other real estate owned At December 31 2012 and 2011 classified loans primarily consisted of

special mention and substandard commercial business loans and commercial mortgages Commercial real estate

loans make up 56.9% of total classified assets while construction loans for single family homes subdivisions

and condominium developments represent 7.3% Other real estate owned totaled $2.6 million at December 31
2012 and comprises thirteen properties of which seven are residential properties and six are commercial

properties Management cannot predict the extent to which economic conditions may worsen or other factors

may impact borrowers and the classified assets Accordingly additional loans may become 90 days or more past

due be placed on nonaccrual status become classified or restructured or require increased allowance coverage

and provision for loan losses
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Deposits Total deposits increased $618.2 million or 50.3% to $1.85 billion at December 31 2012

from 1.230 billion at December 31 2011 primarily due to growth in core deposits accounts of $332.5 million

or 41.1% to $1.14 billion at December 31 2012 from $808.2 million at December 31 2011 The growth in core

deposit account balances was driven by the NEBS acquisition $306.5 million as well as competitive products

and pricing attention to excellence in customer service and targeted promotional activities Certificates of

deposit increased by $285.7 million or $67.7% to $707.4 million at December 31 2012 compared to $421.7

million at December 31 2011 mainly as result of the NEBS acquisition $290.5 million

FHLB Advances FHLB advances increased $35.1 million or 33.0% to $141.5 million at

December 31 2012 as additional advances were utilized to fund loan originations

Total Stockholders Equity Total stockholders equity increased $79.8 million or 35.1% to $307.2

million at December 31 2012 from $227.4 million at December 31 2011 primarily as result of the NEBS

acquisition Other items which affected total stockholders equity included the termination of the United Bank

ESOP plan $4.5 million net income of $3.6 million stock-based compensation credits totaling $1.5 million and

ESOP compensation credits of $1.1 million These increases were partially offset by repurchases of common

stock totaling $17.4 million cash dividend payments amounting to $5.5 million and other comprehensive losses

of $1.4 million

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Net Income Net income for the year ended December 31 2012 totaled $3.6 million or $0.24 per

diluted share compared to net income of $11.2 million or $0.74 per diluted share for the same period in 2011

The 2012 results were impacted by acquisition related expenses of $5.0 million $4.5 million ESOP plan

termination expense FHLB advance prepayment penalties totaling $227000 and the related tax benefit of

$607000 Excluding these items net income would have been $12.8 million or $0.83 per diluted share
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Average Balances and Yields The following table sets forth average balance sheets average yields

and costs and certain other information for the periods indicated No tax-equivalent yield adjustments were

made as the effect thereof was not material Loan fees are not included in interest income amounts All average

balances are daily average balances Non-accrual loans were included in the computation of average balances

but have been reflected in the table as loans carrying zero yield

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011

Average Interest and Yield/ Average Interest and YieldI

Balance Dividends Cost Balance Dividends Cost

Dollars in thousands

Interest-earning assets

Loans

Residential real estate 331143 14926 4.51% 317445 15643 4.93%
Commercial real estate 551980 29717 5.38% 464438 27724 5.97%
Home equity loans 144411 5152 3.57% 138440 5273 3.81%
Commercial and industrial 203667 9781 4.80% 169078 8617 5.10%

Consumerandother 15206 825 5.43% 17518 963 5.50%

Total loans 1246407 60401 4.85% 1106919 58220 5.26%

Investment securities 341868 10544 3.08% 351074 12728 3.63%

Other interest-earning assets 39816 226 0.57% 46150 126 0.27%

Total interest-earning assets 1628091 71171 4.37% 1504143 71074 4.73%

Noninterest-earning assets 116252 95739

Total assets $1744343 1599882

Interest-bearing liabilities

Savings accounts 270349 1328 0.49% 232284 1694 0.73%
Money market accounts 316228 1501 0.47% 276249 1963 0.71%
NOW accounts 57780 204 0.35% 42220 159 0.38%
Certificates of deposit 451991 7433 1.64% 440047 8633 1.96%

Total interest-bearing deposits 1096348 10466 0.95% 990800 12449 1.26%

FHLB advances 108818 3360 3.09% 132501 4513 3.41%
Other interest-bearing liabilities 55732 1166 2.09% 49964 1299 2.60%

Total interest-bearing

liabilities 1260898 14992 1.19% 1173265 18261 1.56%

Demand deposits 232569 190136
Other noninterest-bearing liabilities 11865 10138

Total liabilities 1505332 1373539
Stockholders equity 239011 226343

Total liabilities and

stockholders equity $1744343 1599882

Net interest income 56179 52813

Interest rate spread 3.18% 3.17%

Net interest-earning assets 367193 330878

Net interest margin 3.45% 3.5 1%

Average interest-earning assets to

average interest-bearing

liabilities 129.12% 128.20%

Includes loans held for sale

Loans including non-accrual loans are net of deferred loan origination costs and advanced funds

Includes bank-owned life insurance the income on which is classified as non-interest income

Interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the cost of average interest-bearing

liabilities

Net interest-earning assets represent total
interest-earning assets less total

interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets
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Rate/Volume Analysis The following table presents
the effects of changing rates and volumes on our

net interest income for the periods indicated The rate column shows the effects attributable to changes in rate

changes in rate multiplied by prior volume The volume column shows the effects attributable to changes in

volume changes in volume multiplied by prior rate The net column represents the sum of the prior columns

For purposes of this table changes attributable to both rate and volume which cannot be segregated have been

allocated proportionately based on the changes due to rate and the changes due to volume

Years Ended December 31
2012 vs 2011

Increase Decrease Due to

Volume Rate Net

In thousands

Interest-earning assets

Loans

Residential real estate 656 1373 717

Commercial real estate 4889 2896 1993

Home equity loans 221 342 121
Commercial and industrial 1683 519 1164

Consumer and other 125 13 138

Total loans 7324 5143 2181

Investment securities 327 1857 2184
Other interest-earning assets 19 119 100

Total interest-earning assets 6978 6881 97

Interest-bearing liabilities

Savings accounts 248 614 366

Money market accounts 255 717 462

NOW accounts 56 11 45

Certificates of deposit 229 1429 1200

Total interest-bearing deposits 788 2771 1983

FHLB advances 758 395 1153

Other interest-bearing liabilities 139 272 133

Total interest-bearing liabilities 169 3438 3269

Change in net interest income 6809 3443 3366

Includes loans held for sale

Net Interest Income Before Provision for Loan Losses Net interest income before provision for loan

losses increased $3.4 million or 6.4% to $56.2 million for the year ended December 31 2012 from $52.8

million for 2011 as result of an increase in average
interest earning assets partially offset by net interest margin

compression Total average interest-earning assets increased $123.9 million or 8.2% to $1.63 billion for the year

ended December 31 2012 mainly due to growth in loans offset by decreases in investment securities and other

interest-earning assets Net interest margin decreased basis points to 3.45% for the for the year
ended

December 31 2012 from 3.51% for the prior year period primarily attributable to the downward repricing of

certain fixed rate loans and investments as result of the lower interest rate environment These items were

partially offset by lower funding costs

Interest Income Interest income increased $97000 or 0.1% to $71.2 million for the year ended

December 31 2012 from $71.1 million for the prior year
due to an increase in average interest-earning assets

partially offset by decrease in the yield on earning assets The yield on average interest-earning assets

decreased by 36 basis points to 4.37% in connection with the lower interest rate environment The decrease in

market rates contributed to the downward repricing of portion of the Companys existing assets and to lower

rates for new assets

Interest Expense Interest expense decreased $3.3 million or 17.9% to $15.0 million for the year

ended December 31 2012 from $18.3 million for the prior year due to decrease in the average rate paid on

interest-bearing liabilities partially offset by growth in average interest-bearing liabilities The average rate paid
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on interest-bearing liabilities declined 37 basis points to 1.19% for the year ended December 31 2012 reflecting

the repricing of savings money market NOW account and certificate of deposit balances in response to the

lower interest rate environment and pay downs of higher-rate FHLB advances Average interest-bearing

liabilities increased $87.6 million or 7.5% to $1.26 billion for the year ended December 31 2012 reflecting

growth in interest-bearing deposits offset in part by the pay down of FHLB advances Total average interest-

bearing deposits increased $105.5 million or 10.7% to $1.10 billion for the year ended December 31 2012 due

to growth in savings money market and NOW account balances attributable to the NEBS acquisition as well as

attractive products competitive pricing and excellent customer service

Provision for Loan Losses We establish provisions for loan losses which are charged to operations

at level necessary to absorb known and inherent losses that are both probable and reasonably estimable at the

date of the financial statements In evaluating the level of the allowance for loan losses management considers

historical loss experience the size and composition of the loan portfolio trends in non-performing loans

classified assets and delinquency rates adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay the

estimated value of any underlying collateral peer group information and prevailing economic conditions This

evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more

information becomes available or as future events occur The provision for loan losses was $3.1 million for the

year ended December 31 2012 as compared to $3.2 million for 2011 The allowance for loan losses was $12.1

million or 0.67% of loans outstanding at December 31 2012 The provision was lower in 2012 despite an

increase in the loan portfolio due to the acquisition of NEBS As discussed in Note to the Consolidated

Financial Statements the loans acquired from NEBS were recorded at their market value as of the acquisition

date Therefore no provision for losses were added for these loans during 2012

Non-interest Income Non-interest income increased $1.3 million or 13.6% to $10.6 million for the

year ended December 31 2012 Excluding impairment charges on securities of $202000 in 2012 and $99000 in

2011 and gains on sales and calls of securities of $254000 in 2012 non-interest income would have increased

$1.1 million or 12.0% Gains from sales of loans increased $371000 or 135.4% due to an increase in the

volume of loan sales and improved pricing Fee income on depositors accounts increased $368000 or 6.6%
reflecting growth in transaction accounts and volume Income from bank-owned life insurance increased

$183000 or 11.1% due to the purchase of $10.0 million of insurance policies in the second quarter of 2011 and

the addition of policies acquired in the NEBS merger Wealth management income increased $107000 or

11.6% as result of growth in commissions from annuity sales and fees from assets under management

Non-interest Expense Non-interest
expense increased $12.2 million or 27.6% to $56.2 million for

the year ended December 31 2012 from $44.1 million for the prior year Excluding acquisition-related expenses
of $5.0 million and $4.5 million ESOP termination expense incurred in 2012 total non-interest expense would

have increased $2.7 million or 6.2% Total salaries and benefits increased $1.7 million or 6.9% mainly driven

by armual wage increases additional costs incurred in the fourth quarter of 2012 to operate the NEBS franchise

and staffing costs associated with new loan production office and new branch partially offset by lower stock-

based compensation Data processing expense increased $630000 or 15.9% primarily due to increases in fees

paid to the Banks core processor as result of the increased number of loan and deposit accounts related to the

acquisition of NEBS Occupancy expense increased $454000 or 13.7% largely attributable to expenses related

to the new NEBS branches These items were partially offset by decreases of $288000 or 13.2% in professional

services and $143000 or 8% in marketing expenses These decreases were the result of efforts undertaken to

control non-interest expense

Income Tax Expense Income tax expense increased $117000 to $3.8 million for the year ended

December 31 2012 from $3.7 million for the comparable 2011 period primarily due to higher effective tax rate

offset by lower pre-tax net income The effective tax rate increased from 24.8% in the 2011 period to 51.1% for

the year ended December 31 2012 largely as result of non-deductible merger related and ESOP termination

expenses incurred in 2012
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Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Net Income Net income for the year
ended December 31 2011 totaled $11.2 million or $0.74 per

diluted share compared to net income of $10.0 million or $0.65 per diluted share for the same period in 2010

Excluding acquisition-related expenses of $1.1 million $819000 net of tax benefit net income would have been

$10.9 million or $0.70 per diluted share in 2010 The 2011 results were impacted by decrease in net interest

income higher provision for loan losses increases in non-interest income and expense and lower effective tax

rate

Average Balances and Yields The following table sets forth average balance sheets average yields

and costs and certain other information for the periods indicated No tax-equivalent yield adjustments were

made as the effect thereof was not material Loan fees are not included in interest income amounts All average

balances are daily average balances Non-accrual loans were included in the computation of average balances

but have been reflected in the table as loans carrying zero yield

Years Ended December 31

2011 2010

Interest Interest

Average and Yield/ Average and Yield/

Balance Dividends Cost Balance Dividends Cost

Dollars in thousands

Interest-earning assets

Loans

Residential real estate 317445 15643 4.93% 322241 17308 5.37%

Commercial real estate 464438 27724 5.97% 459901 28958 6.30%

Home equity loans 138440 5273 3.81% 139633 5730 4.10%

Commercial and industrial 169078 8617 5.10% 155036 8306 5.36%

Consumerandother 17518 963 5.50% 22201 1252 5.64%

Total loans 1106919 58220 5.26% 1099012 61554 5.60%

Investment securities 351074 12728 3.63% 301542 12238 4.06%

Other interest-earning assets 46150 126 0.27% 49498 66 0.13%

Total interest-earning assets 1504143 71074 4.73% 1450052 73858 5.09%

Noninterest-earning assets 95739 86042

Total assets $1599882 $1536094

Interest-bearing liabilities

Savings accounts 232284 1694 0.73% 185336 1679 0.91%

Money market accounts 276249 1963 0.7 1% 236158 2121 0.90%

NOW accounts 42220 159 0.38% 38224 199 0.52%

Certificates of deposit 440047 8633 1.96% 456039 9848 2.16%

Total interest-bearing deposits 990800 12449 1.26% 915757 13847 1.51%

FHLB advances 132501 4513 3.41% 167566 5765 3.44%

Other interest-bearing liabilities 49964 1299 2.60% 51004 1335 2.62%

Total interest-bearing liabilities 1173265 18261 1.56% 1134327 20947 1.85%

Demand deposits 190136 168189

Other noninterest-bearing liabilities 10138 9971

Total liabilities 1373539 1312487

Stockholders equity 226343 223607

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $1599882 $1536094

Net interest income 52813 52911

Interest rate spread
3.17% 3.26%

Net interest-earning assets 330878 315725

Net interest margin
3.5 1% 3.65%

Average interest-earning assets to average

interest-bearing liabilities
128.20% 127.83%

Includes loans held for sale

Loans including non-accrual loans are net of deferred loan origination costs and advanced funds
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Includes bank-owned life insurance the income on which is classified as non-interest income

Interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on average interest-earning assets and the cost of average interest-bearing

liabilities

Net
interest-earning assets represent total interest-earning assets less total interest-bearing liabilities

Net interest margin represents annualized net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets

Rate/Volume Analysis The following table presents the effects of changing rates and volumes on our

net interest income for the periods indicated The rate colunin shows the effects attributable to changes in rate

changes in rate multiplied by prior volume The volume column shows the effects attributable to changes in

volume changes in volume multiplied by prior rate The net colunm represents the sum of the prior columns

For
purposes of this table changes attributable to both rate and volume which cannot be segregated have been

allocated proportionately based on the changes due to rate and the changes due to volume

Years Ended December 31
2011 vs 2010

Increase Decrease
Due to

Volume Rate Net

In thousands

Interest-earning assets

Loans

Residential real estate 255 $l4l0 1665
Commercial real estate 284 1518 1234
Home equity loans 49 408 457
Commercial and industrial 728 417 311

Consumer and other 258 31 289
Total loans 450 3784 3334

Investment securities 1880 1390 490

Other interest-earning assets 64 60

Total interest-earning assets 2326 5110 2784
Interest-bearing liabilities

Savings accounts 378 363 15

Money market accounts 326 484 158
NOW accounts 19 59 40
Certificates of deposit 336 879 1215

Total interest-bearing deposits 387 1785 1398
FHLB advances 1195 57 1252
Other interest-bearing liabilities 27 36

Total interest-bearing

liabilities 835 1851 2686

Change in net interest income 3161 $3259 98

Includes loans held for sale

Net Interest Income Before Provision for Loan Losses Net interest income before provision for loan

losses decreased $98000 or 0.2% to $52.8 million for the year ended December 31 2011 from $52.9 million for

2010 as result of net interest margin compression partially offset by an increase in
average interest earning

assets Net interest margin decreased 14 basis points to 3.51% for the for the
year ended December 31 2011 from

3.65% for the prior year period primarily attributable to decrease of $897000 in amortization of certain

acquisition accounting adjustments to $1.7 million for the 2011 period from $2.6 million for the same period in

2010 as well as the downward repricing of certain fixed rate loans and investments as result of the lower
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interest rate environment These items were partially offset by lower funding costs Total average interest-earning

assets increased $54.1 million or 3.7% to 1.504 billion for the year ended December 31 2011 mainly due to

growth in investment securities

Interest In come Interest income decreased $2.8 million or 3.8% to $71.1 million for the
year

ended

December 31 2011 from $73.9 million for the prior year due to decrease in the yield on earning assets partially

offset by an increase in average interest-earning assets The yield on average interest-earning assets decreased by

37 basis points to 4.73% in connection with the lower interest rate environment and reduction of $400000 in

the accretion of certain loan fair value accounting adjustments to $1.1 million for the year ended December 31
2011 from $1.5 million for the same period in 2010 The decrease in market rates contributed to the downward

repricing of portion of the Companys existing assets and to lower rates for new assets

Interest Expense Interest expense decreased $2.7 million or 12.8% to $18.3 million for the year

ended December 31 2011 from $20.9 million for the prior year due to decrease in the
average rate paid on

interest-bearing liabilities partially offset by growth in average interest-bearing liabilities The
average rate paid

on interest-bearing liabilities declined 29 basis points to 1.56% for the year ended December 31 2011 reflecting

the repricing of savings money market NOW account and certificate of deposit balances in
response to the

lower interest rate environment as well as $497000 reduction in interest expense associated with the

amortization of certain deposits and borrowings fair value accounting adjustments Average interest-bearing

liabilities increased $38.9 million or 3.4% to $l.173 billion for the
year

ended December 31 2011 reflecting

growth in interest-bearing deposits Total average interest-bearing deposits increased $75.0 million or 8.2% to

$990.8 million for the year ended December 31 2011 due to growth in savings money market and NOW account

balances attributable to attractive products competitive pricing and excellent customer service These increases

were partially offset by decrease in average FHLBB advances as result of retirements of maturing debt

Provision for Loan Losses We establish provisions for loan losses which are charged to operations

at level necessary to absorb known and inherent losses that are both probable and reasonably estimable at the

date of the financial statements In evaluating the level of the allowance for loan losses management considers

historical loss experience the types of loans and the amount of loans in the loan portfolio trends in

nonperforming loans and delinquency rates adverse situations that may affect the borrowers ability to repay the

estimated value of any underlying collateral peer group information and prevailing economic conditions This

evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more

information becomes available or as future events occur The provision for loan losses was $3.2 million for the

year ended December 31 2011 as compared to $2.3 million for 2010 The increase in the 2011 provision is

primarily the result of an increase in net charge-offs reserves for classified loans and growth in net loan

originations The allowance for loan losses was $11.1 million or 0.99% of loans outstanding at December 31
2011 Excluding the impact of the $148.9 million of loans acquired from CNB Financial and $19.1 million of

loans acquired from other financial institutions the ratio of the allowance for loan losses to total loans would

have been 1.17%

Non-interest Income Non-interest income increased $637000 or 7.3% to $9.4 million for the year

ended December 31 2011 Excluding impairment charges on securities of $99000 in 2011 and $145000 in

2010 and losses on sales and calls of securities of $185000 in 2010 non-interest income would have increased

$406000 or 4.5% Income from bank-owned life insurance increased $252000 or 18.1% due to the purchase of

$10.0 million of insurance policies in the second quarter of 2011 Fee income on depositors accounts increased

$227000 or 4.3% due to higher ATM and debit card income in connection with growth in transaction accounts

and volume Wealth management income increased $165000 or 21.9% as result of growth in commissions

from annuity sales and fees from assets under management These items were offset in part by $299000

reduction in gains from sales of loans due to decrease in the volume of loan sales

Non-interest Expense Non-interest
expense increased $221000 or 0.5% to $44.1 million for the

year ended December 31 2011 from $43.8 million for the prior year Excluding acquisition-related expenses of
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$1.1 million in 2010 total non-interest expenses
would have increased $1.4 million or 3.2% Other expenses

increased $1.2 million or 20.6% primarily as result of low income housing tax credit fund write-downs of

$837000 compared to $181000 in 2010 as well as higher levels of other real estate owned costs write-downs

of mortgage servicing rights and branch related expenses Total salaries and benefits increased $762000 or

3.2% mainly driven by annual wage increases staffing costs for new loan production office opened in 2011

and higher ESOP expense due to an increased stock price partially offset by lower stock-based compensation

Professional services expenses
increased $362000 or 20.0% due to expanded legal costs incurred of $170000

in connection with litigation and $125000 in consulting fees in connection with third party loan review risk

management consulting and other corporate activities These items were partially offset by $441000 or

30.0% decrease in FDIC premium expense which reflects the positive impact of the new assessment calculation

which was effective April 2011 In addition marketing expenses
decreased $294000 or 14.1% reflecting the

cost of promotional activities in 2010 to support the Companys entry into the Worcester market and decrease

in the usage of direct mail in 2011

Income Tax Expense Income tax expense decreased $1.8 million to $3.7 million for the year ended

December 31 2011 from $5.5 million for the comparable 2010 period primarily due to lower effective tax rate

The effective tax rate decreased from 35.3% in the 2010 period to 24.8% for the
year

ended December 31 2011

largely as result of tax credits from an investment in low income housing tax credit fund and an increase in

tax exempt municipal investment income in 2011

Management of Market Risk

General The majority of our assets and liabilities are monetary in nature Consequently our most

significant form of market risk is interest rate risk IRR Our assets the largest portion of which are mortgage

loans have longer maturities than our liabilities consisting primarily of deposits As result principal part of

our business strategy is to manage IRR and reduce the exposure
of our net interest income NI to changes in

market interest rates Accordingly our Board of Directors has established an Asset/Liability Management

Committee which is responsible for evaluating the IRR inherent in our assets and liabilities for determining the

level of risk that is appropriate given our business strategy operating environment capital liquidity and

performance objectives and for managing this risk consistent with the guidelines approved by the Board of

Directors With the assistance of an IRR management consultant the committee monitors the level of IRR on

regular basis and meets at least quarterly to review our asset/liability policies and IRR position

Economic Value of Equity Simulation Analysis We have sought to manage our IRR in order to

minimize the exposure
of our earnings and capital to changes in interest rates As part of our ongoing asset-

liability management we currently use the following strategies to manage our IRR using alternative funding

sources such as advances from the FHLBB to match fund certain longer-term loans ii continued emphasis

on increasing core deposits iii offering adjustable rate and shorter-term residential real estate home equity

loans commercial real estate loans construction loans and commercial and industrial loans iv offering

variety of consumer loans which typically have shorter-terms investing in mortgage-backed securities with

variable rates or fixed rates with shorter durations and vi selling thirty-year fixed rate residential real estate

loans Reducing the average maturity of our interest-earning assets by increasing our investments in shorter-term

loans and securities as well as loans and securities with variable rates of interest helps to better match the

maturities and interest rates of our assets and liabilities thereby reducing the exposure of our Nil to changes in

market interest rates
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Net interest income at-risk measures the risk of decline in earnings due to potential short-term and

long term changes in interest rates The table below represents an analysis of our IRR as measured by the

estimated changes in NI for the following twelve months resulting from an instantaneous and sustained parallel

shift in the yield curve of 200 and -100 basis points at December 31 2012 and 2011

Net Interest Income At-Risk

Estimated Increase Decrease Estimated Increase Decrease
Change in Interest Rates in NIl in NI

basis points December 31 2012 December 31 2011

-100 3.3% 3.9%
Stable 0.0% 0.0%

200 2.0% 0.3%

The preceding income simulation analysis is for United Bank and its subsidiaries only and does not

represent forecast of Nil and should not be relied upon as being indicative of expected operating results These

hypothetical estimates are based upon numerous assumptions which are subject to change including the nature

and timing of interest rate levels including the yield curve shape prepayments on loans and securities deposit

decay rates pricing decisions on loans and deposits reinvestment/replacement of asset and liability cash flows

and others Also market conditions prepayment/refinancing levels the varying impact of interest rate changes

on caps and floors embedded in adjustable rate loans early withdrawal of deposits changes in product

preferences and other internal/external variables and other factors may vary significantly from assumptions used

Economic Value of Equity Simulation Analysis We also analyze the amounts by which the net

present value of an institutions cash flows from assets liabilities and off balance sheet items the institutions

economic value of equity or EVE would change in the event of range of assumed changes in market interest

rates The model has estimated the economic value of each type of asset liability and off-balance sheet contract

under the assumption that the United States Treasury yield curve increases or decreases instantaneously by 100 to

300 basis points in 100 basis point increments However given the low level of market interest rates an

economic value of equity calculation for an interest rate decrease of greater than 100 basis points was not

prepared basis point equals one-hundredth of one percent and 200 basis points equals two percent An

increase in interest rates from 3% to 5% would mean for example 200 basis point increase in the Change in

Interest Rates column below
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The tables below set forth at the dates indicated the estimated changes in our economic value of equity

that would result from the designated instantaneous changes in the United States Treasury yield curve

Computations of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous assumptions

including relative levels of market interest rates loan prepayments and deposit decay and should not be relied

upon as indicative of actual results This data is for United Bank and its subsidiary only and does not include any

yield curve changes in the assets of the Company

December 31 2012

EVE as Percentage of Present

Value of Assets

Change in
Estimated

Increase
Decrease Increase

Interest Rates Estimated
in EVE

________________ Decrease

basis points EVE Amount Percent EVE Ratio basis points

Dollars in thousands

300 253448 58910 19% 11.31% 169
200 290998 21360 12.64 36
100 311510 848 13.22 22

312358 13.00

-100 317039 4681 12.99

December 31 2011

EVE as Percentage of Present

Value of Assets

Change in
Estimated Increase Decrease in

Increase

Interest Rates Estimated
EVE

________________ Decrease

basis points EVE Amount Percent EVE Ratio basis points

Dollars in thousands

300 183875 $53540 23% 12.06% 241
200 213647 23768 10 13.61 86
100 231936 5479 14.42

237415 14.47

-100 239393 1978 14.38 10

Assumes an instantaneous uniform change in interest rates at all maturities

EVE is the discounted present value of expected cash flows from assets liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts

Present value of assets represents the discounted present value of incoming cash flows on interest-earning assets

EVE ratio represents EVE divided by the present value of assets

The tables above indicate that at December 31 2012 and 2011 in the event of 300 basis point increase

in interest rates United Bank would experience 19% and 23% respectively decrease in economic value of

equity In the event of 100 basis point decrease in interest rates at December 31 2012 and 2011 United Bank

would experience 2% and 1% respectively increase in economic value of equity

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology used in the above interest rate risk measurement

Modeling changes in economic value of equity require making certain assumptions that may or may not reflect

the manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates In this regard the

economic value of equity table presented assumes that the composition of our interest-sensitive assets and

liabilities existing at the beginning of period remains constant over the period being measured and assumes that

particular change in interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration or

repricing of specific assets and liabilities Accordingly although the economic value of equity table provides an

indication of our interest rate risk exposure at particular point in time such measurements are not intended to

and do not provide precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on our net interest income

and will differ from actual results
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity is the ability to meet current and future financial obligations of short-term nature Our

primary sources of funds consist of deposit inflows loan repayments maturities and sales of securities and sales

of loans While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities are predictable sources of funds

deposit flows mortgage prepayments and loan and security sales are greatly influenced by general interest rates

economic conditions and competition Our Asset/Liability Management Committee is responsible for

establishing and monitoring our liquidity targets and strategies in order to ensure that sufficient liquidity exists

for meeting the borrowing needs of our customers as well as unanticipated contingencies We seek to maintain

liquidity ratio defined as liquid assets less short-term liabilities of 10% or greater At December 31 2012 our

liquidity ratio was 13.29%

We regularly adjust our investments in liquid assets based upon our assessment of expected loan

demand expected deposit flows yields available on interest-earning deposits and securities and the

objectives of our asset/liability management program Excess liquid assets are invested generally in interest-

earning deposits and short- and intermediate-term securities

Our most liquid assets are cash and cash equivalents The levels of these assets are dependent on our

operating financing lending and investing activities during any given period At December 31 2012 cash and

cash equivalents totaled $30.7 million Securities classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity which

provide additional sources of liquidity totaled $294.3 million and $83.0 million respectively at December 31

2012 In addition at December 31 2012 we had the ability to borrow total of approximately $180.9 million

from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston On that date we had $140.6 million in advances outstanding

Our cash flows are derived from operating activities investing activities and financing activities as

reported in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows included in our Consolidated Financial Statements

At December 31 2012 we had $64.0 million in loan commitments outstanding In addition to

commitments to originate loans we had $308.7 million in unused lines of credit to borrowers Certificates of

deposit due within one year of December 31 2012 totaled $380.6 million or 20.6% of total deposits If these

deposits do not remain with us we will be required to seek other sources of funds including other certificates of

deposit Federal Home Loan Bank advances borrowings from the Federal Reserve Bank reverse repurchase

agreements and brokered deposits Depending on market conditions we may be required to pay higher rates on

such deposits or other borrowings than we currently pay on the certificates of deposit due on or before

December 31 2012 We believe however based on past experience significant portion of our certificates of

deposit will remain with us We have the ability to attract and retain deposits by adjusting the interest rates

offered

Our primary investing activities are the origination of loans and the purchase of securities In 2012 we

originated $445.4 million of loans and purchased $99.2 million of securities In 2011 we originated $280.2

million of loans and purchased $96.0 million of securities

Financing activities consist primarily of activity in deposit accounts and Federal Home Loan Bank

advances We experienced net increase in total deposits of $618.2 million and $56.7 million for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively Deposit flows are affected by the overall level of interest rates the

interest rates and products offered by us and our local competitors and other factors

Liquidity management is both daily and long-term function of business management If we require

funds beyond our ability to generate them internally borrowing agreements exist with the Federal Home Loan

Bank of Boston which provide an additional source of funds Federal Home Loan Bank advances increased

$35.7 million for the year ended December 31 2012 to fund loan growth and decreased $46.9 million for the

year
ended December 31 2011 reflecting the use of cash flows received from the loan and investment portfolios
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to pay down maturing Federal Home Loan Bank advances Federal Home Loan Bank advances have primarily

been used to fund loan demand and to purchase securities Our current asset/liability management strategy has

been to match-fund certain longer-term commercial real estate loans and one- to four-family residential

mortgage loans with Federal Home Loan Bank advances United Banks unused borrowing capacity with the

Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston excluding its available line of credit balance of $12.0 million at

December 31 2012 and 2011 was approximately $28.3 million at December 31 2012 and $107.1 million at

December 31 2011 At December 31 2012 and 2011 United Bank had no borrowing against the line of credit

We also have access to funding through the repurchase agreement and brokered CD markets as well as the

Federal Reserve Bank discount window United Banks unused borrowing capacity with the FRB was

approximately $78.5 million at December 31 2012

The Company is separate legal entity from United Bank and must provide for its own liquidity In

addition to its operating expenses United Financial is responsible for paying any dividends declared to its

shareholders The Company also has repurchased shares of its common stock At December 31 2012 the

Company had liquid assets of $16.6 million

United Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements including risk-based capital

measure The risk-based capital guidelines include both definition of capital and framework for calculating

risk-weighted assets by assigning balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet items to broad risk categories At

December 31 2012 United Bank exceeded all regulatory capital requirements United Bank is considered well-

capitalized under regulatory guidelines See Item BusinessSupervision and RegulationFederal Banking

RegulationCapital Requirements and Note of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contractual Obligations

Commitments As financial services provider we routinely are party to various financial

instruments with off-balance-sheet risks such as commitments to extend credit standby letters of credit and

unused lines of credit While these contractual obligations represent our future cash requirements significant

portion of commitments to extend credit may expire without being drawn upon Such commitments are subject to

the same credit policies and approval process accorded to loans made by us We consider commitments to extend

credit in determining our allowance for loan losses For additional information see Note Commitments and

Contingencies to our Consolidated Financial Statements

Contractual Obligations In the ordinary course of our operations we enter into certain contractual

obligations Such obligations include operating and capitalized leases for premises and equipment
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The following table summarizes our significant fixed and determinable contractual obligations and other

funding needs by payment date at December 31 2012 The payment amounts represent
those amounts due to the

recipient and do not include any unamortized premiums or discounts or other similar carrying amount

adjustments

Payments Due by Period In Thousands

Less Than One to Three Three to More than

One Year Years Five Years Five Years Total

Contractual Obligations

Certificates of deposit 380626 253428 67061 701115

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 69913 13000 42690 15000 140603

Repurchase agreements 49229 20000 69229

Subordinated debentures 11732 11732

Standby letters of credit 3573 3573

Operating leases 2134 4316 3536 11487 21473

Capitalized leases 423 847 848 5228 7346

Future benefits to be paid under

retirement plans 3690 162 1530 5398 10780

Total 509588 271753 $115665 68845 965851

Commitments
Commitments to extend credit 412595 412595

Investment in venture capital fund 300 300

Investment in low income tax credit

fund 2429 413 2842

Total 415324 413 415737

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standards

Update ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement Topic 820 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value

Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in US GAAP and IFRS The guidance clarifies and expands the

disclosures pertaining to unobservable inputs used in Level fair value measurements including the disclosure

of quantitative information related to the valuation
processes used the sensitivity of the fair value

measurement to changes in unobservable inputs and the interrelationships between those unobservable inputs

and use of nonfinancial asset in way that differs from the assets highest and best use The guidance also

requires disclosure of the level within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

in the statement of financial position but for which the fair value is disclosed This ASU was adopted in the first

quarter of 2012 and did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements as the

amendments relate only to changes in financial statement presentation

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 201 1-05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220 Presentation of

Comprehensive Income This ASU amends the disclosure requirements for the presentation of comprehensive

income The amended guidance eliminates the option to present components of other comprehensive income

OCI as part of the statement of changes in stockholders equity Under the amended guidance all changes in

OCI are to be presented either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but

consecutive financial statements This ASU was adopted in the first quarter of 2012 and did not have an impact

to the consolidated financial results as the amendments relate only to changes in financial statement presentation

See the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
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In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-08 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Topic 350

Testing Goodwill for Impairment This ASU is intended to reduce the complexity and cost of performing an

evaluation of impairment of goodwill Under the new guidance an entity will have the option of first assessing

qualitative factors events and circumstances to determine whether it is more likely than not meaning
likelihood of more than 50 percent that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If after

considering all relevant events and circumstances an entity determines it is not more likely than not that the fair

value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount then performing the two-step impairment test will be

unnecessary This ASU was adopted in the first quarter of 2012 and did not have material impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU 20 11-09 Compensation Retirement Benefits --

Multiemployer Plans Subtopic 715-80 Disclosures about an Employers Participation in Multiemployer

Plan This ASU requires new and expanded disclosures for individually material multi-employer pension plans

This ASU was adopted for the year ended December 31 2012 See Note to the consolidated financial

statements

In July 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012-02 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Topic 350 Testing

Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment This ASU states that an entity has the option first to assess

qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events and circumstances indicates that it is more likely

than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired If after assessing the totality of events and

circumstances an entity concludes that it is not more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is

impaired then the entity is not required to take further action However if an entity concludes otherwise then it

is required to determine the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset and perform the quantitative

impairment test by comparing the fair value with the carrying amount in accordance with Codification Subtopic

350-30 Intangibles Goodwill and Other General Intangibles Other than Goodwill Under the guidance in this

ASU an entity also has the option to bypass the qualitative assessment for any indefinite-lived intangible asset in

any period and proceed directly to performing the quantitative impairment test An entity will be able to resume

performing the qualitative assessment in any subsequent period The amendments in this ASU are effective for

annual and interim impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15 2012 Early

adoption is permitted including for annual and interim impairment tests performed as of date before July 27

2012 if public entitys financial statements for the most recent annual or interim period have not yet been

issued or for nonpublic entities have not yet been made available for issuance The Company adopted this ASU

for the year ended December 31 2012 and it did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

In August 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012-03 Technical Amendments and Corrections to SEC
SectionsAmendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No 114 Technical

Amendments Pursuant to SEC Release No 33-9250 and Corrections Related to FASB Accounting Standards

Update 2010-22 This ASU amends various SEC paragraphs pursuant to the issuance of Staff Accounting

Bulletin No 114 pursuant to the issuance of the SECs Final Rule Technical Amendments to Commission

Rules and Forms Related to the FASB Accounting Standards CodfIcation Release Nos 33-9250 34-65052

and IC-29748 August 2011 and related to ASU No 2010-22 Accounting for Various Topics The

Company does not expect that the adoption of this ASU will have an impact on the Companys consolidated

financial statements

In October 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012-04 Technical Amendments and Corrections to SEC

Sections 2011-08 This ASU is intended to clarif the Codification of correct unintended application of guidance

and includes amendments identifing when the use of fair value should be linked to the definition of fair value in

Topic 820 Fair Value Measurement Amendments to the Codification without transition guidance are effective

upon issuance for both public and non-public entities For public entities amendments subject to transition

guidance will be effective for fiscal periods beginning after December 15 2013 The Company does not expect

that the adoption of this ASU will have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements
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Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements and related notes of United Financial Bancorp Inc have been

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America GAAP
GAAP generally requires the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical

dollars without consideration for changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation

The impact of inflation is reflected in the increased cost of our operations Unlike industrial companies our

assets and liabilities are primarily monetary in nature As result changes in market interest rates have greater

impact on performance than the effects of inflation
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ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

For information regarding market risk see Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial

Conditions and Results of Operations
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WOLF
v1PANY I.C

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

United Financial Bancorp Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of United Financial Bancorp Inc

and subsidiary the Company as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated

statements of income comprehensive income stockholders equity and cash flows for the years

then ended These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial

statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles

used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all

material respects the financial position of United Financial Bancorp Inc and subsidiary as of

December 31 2012 and 2011 and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years

then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States United Financial Bancorp Inc and subsidiarys internal control

over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Infernal

ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO and our report dated March 15 2013 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the effectiveness of United Financial Bancorp Inc.s internal control over financial

reporting

1Uo1
Boston Massachusetts

March 15 2013
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GrantThornton

Grant Thornton LLP

226 Causeway Street 6th Floor

Boston MA 021142155

1617.723.7900

617.7233640

GrantThornton.corri

Iinkd.in/GrantThorntonUS

twitter.corn/GrantThorntonUS

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial Statements

To the Board of Directors of

United Financial Bancorp Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of earnings comprehensive income stockholders equity

and cash flows of United Financial Bancorp Inc and
subsidiary

for the year ended December 31 2010 These

financial statements are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly in all material respects the

results of operations and cash flows of United Financial Bancorp Inc and subsidiary for the
year

ended

December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

7t 1%
Boston Massachusetts

March 14 2011

Grant Thorntoi LIP

U.S member firm of Grant Thornton oternational Ltd F2



UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31 2012 and 2011

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

2012 2011

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks 28972 20112

Interest-bearing deposits
1707 41406

Total cash and cash equivalents 30679 61518

Securities available for sale at fair value 294322 221813

Securities held to maturity at amortized cost fair value of $85674 at December 31 2012

and $118311 at December31 201 82986 115897

Loans held for sale 632 53

Loans net of allowance for loan losses of$ 12089 at December 31 2012 and $11132 at

December 31 2011 1807401 1112941

Other real estate owned 2578 2054

Accrued interest receivable 6790 4846

Deferred tax asset net 20178 14006

Stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston 18554 15365

Premises and equipment net 25064 16438

Bank-owned life insurance 52876 40688

Goodwill 39852 8192

Other assets 20391 9941

TOTAL ASSETS $2402303 $1623752

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Liabilities

Deposits

Interest-bearing $1540873 $1024073

Non-interest-bearing 307302 205902

Total deposits 1848175 1229975

Short-term borrowings 79229 17260

Long-term debt 133969 126857

Subordinated debentures 9630 5539

Escrow funds held for borrowers 4315 2103

Capitalized lease obligations 4711 4874

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 15085 9783

Total liabilities 2095114 1396391

Commitments and contingencies Notes and

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock par value $0.01 per share authorized 50000000 shares none issued

Common stock par value $0.01 per share authorized 100000000 shares shares issued

24266428 at December 31 2012 and 18706933 at December 31 2011 243 187

Paid-in capital 272822 182433

Retained earnings 87153 89019

Unearned compensation
10047

Treasury stock at cost 4114310 shares at December 31 2012 and 2994036 shares at

December 31 2011 58430 40983

Accumulated other comprehensive income net of taxes 5401 6752

Total stockholders equity 307189 227361

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY $2402303 $1623752

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Net Income

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

2012 2011 2010

Interest and dividend income

Loans 60401 58220 61554

Investments 10544 12728 12238
Other interest-earning assets 226 126 66

Total interest and dividend income 71171 71074 73858

Interest expense

Deposits 10466 12449 13847

Short-term borrowings 60 123 229

Long-term debt 4466 5689 6871

Total interest expense 14992 18261 20947
Net interest income before provision for loan losses 56179 52813 52911
Provision for loan losses 3139 3242 2285

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 53040 49571 50626

Non-interest income

Fee income on depositors accounts 5922 5554 5327
Wealth management income 1026 919 754

Income from bank-owned life insurance 1825 1642 1390
Net gain on sales of loans 645 274 573

Net gain loss on sales/calls of securities 254 185
Impairment charges on securities 202 99 145
Other income 1153 1062 1002

Total non-interest income 10623 9353 8716

Non-interest expense

Salaries and benefits 26533 24818 24056

Occupancy expenses 3771 3317 3397

Marketing expenses 1654 1797 2091
Data processing expenses 4600 3970 4099
Professional fees 1886 2174 1812
ESOP plan termination expense 4482

Acquisition related
expenses 4952 1148

FDIC insurance assessments 1135 1029 1470

Other expenses 7227 6957 5768

Total non-interest expense 56240 44062 43841

Income before provision for income taxes 7423 14862 15501

Provision for income tax expense 3795 3678 5469

Net income 3628 11184 10032

Earnings per share

Basic 0.24 0.75 0.66

Diluted 0.24 0.74 0.65

Weighted average shares outstanding

Basic 15234896 14929714 15302505
Diluted 15421777 15198702 15394761

Dividends paid per share 0.38 0.34 0.30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands

2012 2011 2010

Net Income $3628 $11184 $10032

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gains on securities

Unrealized holding losses gains on availible-for-sale

securities $1605 3026 920

Reclassification adjustment for gains losses realized in

income 89 142

Net change in unrealized gains
1694 3025 778

Tax effect
633 1198 351

Net of tax amount 1061 1827 427

Pension liability components

Pension liability for retirement plans
19 61 279

Pension liability adjustment 406 152 151

Net change in pension liability 387 91 128

Tax effect
97 24 55

Net of tax amount 290 67 73

Total other comprehensive income loss 1351 1894 500

Comprehensive income 2277 $13078 9532

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of the consolidated financial statements
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity
December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

Balances at December 31 2009

Net income

Net unrealized loss on securities available for sale

net of reclassification adjustments and taxes

Adjustments to pension and other
post-retirement

benefit plans net of reclassification
adjustments

and taxes

Shares repurchased in connection with restricted

stock forfeited for tax
purposes

Tax benefit from Management Retention Plan

vesting

Tax withheld on options exercised

Reissuance of
treasury shares in connection with

stock options exercised

Cash dividends paid $0.30 per share

Treasury stock purchases

Stock-based compensation
ESOP shares committed to be released

Balances at December 31 2010

Net income

Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale

net of reclassification
adjustments and taxes

Adjustments to pension and other post-retirement

benefit plans net of reclassification adjustments

and taxes

Shares repurchased in connection with restricted

stock forfeited for tax purposes

Restricted shares forfeited

Cash paid for in the money stock options exercised

Excess tax benefit on stock compensation plans
Cancellation of shares for tax withholdings on

options exercised

Reissuance of treasury shares in connection with

stock options exercised

Reissuance of
treasury

shares in connection with

stock warrants exercised

Reissuance of
treasury shares in connection with

restricted stock grants

Cash dividends paid $0.34 per share

Treasury stock
purchases

Stock-based compensation
ESOP shares committed to be released

Balances at December 31 2011

Net income

Net unrealized loss on securities available for sale

net of reclassification adjustments and taxes

Adjustments to pension and other post-retirement

benefit plans net of reclassification
adjustments

and taxes

Shares issued pursuant to the acquisition ofNEBS
Shares repurchased in connection with restricted

stock forfeited for tax
purposes

Restricted shares forfeited

Excess tax benefit on stock compensation plans

Cancellation of shares for tax withholdings on

options exercised

Reissuance of
treasury shares in connection with

stock options exercised

Reissuance of
treasury shares in connection with

restricted stock
grants

Cash dividends paid $0.38 per share

Treasury stock purchases

Stock-based compensation
ESOP shares committed to be released

ESOP plan termination New England Bank

ESOP plan termination United Bank

Balances at December 31 2012

115

29

82495 1087
4589

783926
2383

274

16109106 187 180322 82899

11184

102

259 10

445 37

5521

1453

392

2161

5579

$272822 $87153

403
181

427 427

73 73

401 401

115

29

4589
10646

2383

965

4858 222576

11184

1827 1827

67 67

5067
6377

1891

1114

6752 227361

3628

1061 1061

290 290
81486

205

29

102

366 97

408

5521
5455 5455

1453
697

1089

1963 198

9350 10447 4482

$58430 5401 $307189

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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Accumulated
Common

Other
Shares Common Paid-In Retained Unearned

Treasury Comprehensive
Outstanding Stock Capital Earnings Compensation Stock Income Loss Total

16838598 $187 $178666 $77456 $It441 $24980 5358 $225246

10032 10032

28061

691

10750

l087

10646

34940

403

91

55

89

426

181

91

55

110 II

28

296 42

5067

1891

411

182433 89019

3628

56 81430

151

29

210

454

254

6377

40983

703

10047

26411
10910

14820

35091

17500

426299

15712897

5559495

14934
11000

26596

29500

357415

128469
664552

20152118

205
151



UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands

2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 3628 11184 10032

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities

Provision for loan losses 3139 3242 2285

ESOPexpense 5769 1114 965

Stock-based compensation 1453 1891 2383

Excess tax benefits on stock compensation plan 29 91 115
Amortization of premiums and discounts 2209 1654 1355

Depreciation and amortization 1865 1320 1516

Amortization of intangible assets 179 101 110

Provision for other real estate owned 130 37

Loans originated for sale 18127 11267 17423
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 18193 11488 17906

Net gain on sales of loans 645 274 573
Net loss gain on sale and writedown of other real estate owned 573 48 122
Net gain on sale of property and equipment

Net gain loss on sale/call of available for sale securities 254 185

Impairment charges on securities 202 99 145

Deferred tax benefit provision 1186 4199 672

Net increase in cash surrender value of bank-owned life

insurance 1622 1508 704
Increase decrease in accrued interest receivable 35 59 304

Increase decrease in other assets 1138 1371 1523
Increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities 3457 917 645

Net cash provided by operating activities 17624 17278 18080

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchases of securities available for sale 97785 82614 49283
Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 6216 11586

Proceeds from calls maturities and principal repayments of

securities available for sale 69899 66253 76679

Purchases of securities held to maturity 1455 13432 90876
Proceeds from maturities calls and principal repayments of

securities held to maturity 33143 28780 20723

Decrease in investment in short-term time deposits 1096

Redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston stock 911

Proceeds from sales of other real estate owned 2053 1843 1681

Net loan originations purchases and principal repayments 145295 52525 35624

Proceeds from sales of loans 9725

Purchases of property and equipment 4570 2180 1134
Cash provided by business combination 68908

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 85

Purchases of bank-owned life insurance 10000

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 67890 63875 15821

Continued
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Concluded
For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands

2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in deposits 21206 86674 104374

Net change in short-term borrowings 36135 3769 36274
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 24759 10440

Repayment of long-term debt net of amortization of

discount 51255 56799 24775
Net increase decrease in escrow funds held for

borrowers 163 204 78
Payments on capitalized lease obligation 424 406 406
Excess tax benefits on stock compensation plans 29 91 115

Cancellation of shares for tax withholdings on options

exercised 102 55 29
Reissuance of treasury shares in connection with

restricted stock warrants 426

Reissuance of treasury shares in connection with stock

options exercised 97 89

Treasury stock purchases 5660 6780 11047
Cash paid for in the money stock options exercised

Cash dividends paid 5521 5067 4589

Net cash provided by financing activities 19427 25046 27291

Decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 30839 21551 61192

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 61518 83069 21877

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 30679 61518 83069

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the period

Interest on deposits and other borrowings 16021 19020 22378

Income taxes net 2460 5073 4648

Non-cash items

Transfer of loans to other real estate owned 1679 2539 1587

Trade date accounting for securities purchased 3002 3002

Transfer of treasury shares to pay-off ESOP loan 12410

In conjunction with the purchase acquisition detailed

in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair value of assets acquired net of cash acquired $676888

Goodwill and core deposit 35390

Fair value of liabilities assumed 664310

Shares issued 81430

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of United Financial Bancorp Inc

and its wholly-owned subsidiary United Bank the Bank UCB Securities Inc and UCB

Securities Inc II are subsidiaries of the Bank and are engaged in buying selling and holding

of securities UB Properties LLC and VB REO LLC are subsidiaries of the Bank formed to

hold real estate assets acquired through foreclosure All significant intercompany accounts and

transactions have been eliminated in consolidation These entities are collectively referred to

herein as the Company

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America U.S GAAP and general practices

within the banking industry

Use ofEstimates

In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S GAAP management is

required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet

and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results

could differ from those estimates Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to

significant change are the determination of the allowance for loan losses other than temporary

impairment of securities goodwill fair value of financial instruments and income taxes

The following is description of the Companys more significant accounting policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company classifies cash and due from banks interest-bearing deposits in other banks and

overnight funds sold as cash and cash equivalents as these liquid assets have maturities at date

of purchase of 90 days or less

Investment Securities

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are

classified as held to maturity and recorded at amortized cost Securities not classified as

held to maturity or trading including equity securities with readily determinable fair values

are classified as available for sale and recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and

losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the level yield

method over the tenns of the securities Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded

on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method

Each reporting period the Company evaluates all securities classified as available-for-sale or

held-to-maturity with decline in fair value below the amortized cost of the investment to

determine whether or not the impairment is deemed to be other-than-temporary OTT
OTTI is required to be recognized if the Company intends to sell the security if it is

more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the security before recovery

of its amortized cost basis or for debt securities the present value of expected cash flows

is not sufficient to recover the entire amortized cost basis Marketable equity securities are

evaluated for OTT based on the severity and duration of the impairment and if deemed to be

other-than-temporary the declines in fair value are reflected in earnings as realized losses For

impaired debt securities that the Company intends to sell or more likely than not will be

required to sell the full amount of the depreciation is recognized as OTT through earnings

For all other impaired debt securities credit-related OTT is recognized through earnings and

non-credit related OTT is recognized in other comprehensive income net of applicable taxes

Federal Home Loan Bank stock

The Company as member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston the FHLBB is

required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLBB Based on redemption

provisions of the FHLBB the stock has no quoted market value and is carried at cost At its

discretion the FHLBB may declare dividends on the stock Management reviews its

investment in FHLBB stock for other than temporary impairment based upon an assessment of

the ultimate recoverability of the par value Management concluded that no other-than-

temporary impairment charge was necessary as of December 31 2012

Sign jflcant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

substantial portion of the Companys loans are secured by real estate in Hampden
Hampshire and Worcester Counties of Massachusetts and Hartford Tolland and New Haven

Counties of Connecticut Accordingly the ultimate collectability of the Companys loan

portfolio is susceptible to changing conditions in these market areas Note discusses the

types of lending that the Company engages in The Company does not have any significant

concentrations in any one industry or customer
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December31 2012 2011 and2OlO

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Loans

The Companys loan portfolio includes commercial and industrial commercial real

estate construction business banking and commercial real estate residential real estate

home equity and consumer segments Loans are stated at their unpaid principal balance net of

unearned loan fees and costs and the allowance for loan losses

Interest on most loans is included in income as earned based upon interest rates applied to

unpaid principal using the simple interest method Accrual of interest on loans is discontinued

when in the judgment of management the collectibility of principal or interest becomes

doubtful or when loan becomes contractually past due 90 days with respect to principal or

interest Past due status is based on the contractual tenns of the loan The accrual of interest on

residential mortgage loans however may continue even though they are 90 days past due if

management deems it appropriate provided that the loans are well secured and in the process

of collection In all cases loans are placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if

collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful

When loan is placed on non-accrual status all interest previously accrued is reversed against

current period interest income Interest subsequently received on non-accrual loans is either

applied against principal or recorded as income based on managements judgment as to the

collectibility of principal Interest accruals are resumed on such loans only when they are

brought fully current as to principal and interest and when in the judgment of management

the loans are estimated to be fully collectible

Loan origination and commitment fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred

and the net amount is amortized over the contractual term of the loan as an adjustment of

yield In addition discounts related to fair value adjustments for loan receivables acquired in

business combination or asset purchase are accreted into earnings over the contractual term as

an adjustment of yield If acquired loans experience credit quality deterioration after

acquisition the Company evaluates the difference between the contractually required

payments at acquisition and the cash flows expected to be collected Changes in the expected

cash flows from the date of acquisition will impact the accretable yield and may also result in

charge to the provision for loan losses to the extent the cash flow shortfall is greater than the

non-accretable difference

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through

provision for loan losses charged to earnings Loan losses are charged against the allowance
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

when management believes the uncollectibility of loan balance is confirmed Subsequent

recoveries if any are credited to the allowance The adequacy of the allowance for loan losses

is evaluated on quarterly basis by management Factors considered in evaluating the

adequacy of the allowance include prior loss experience current economic conditions and

their effect on borrowers the composition and size of the loan portfolio trends in

nonperforming loans classified assets and delinquency rates and the performance of

individual loans in relation to contractual terms This evaluation is inherently subjective as it

requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes

available In addition various regulatory agencies as an integral part of their examination

process periodically review the allowance for loan losses Such agencies may require the

Company to recognize additions to the allowance based on judgments different from those of

management

loan is considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable

that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest

when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Factors considered by

management in determining impairment include payment status collateral value and the

probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due Loans that

experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as

impaired Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls

on case-by-case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the

loan and the borrower including the length of the delay the reasons for the delay the

borrowers prior payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal

and interest owed Impairment is measured on loan-by-loan basis for commercial and

construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the

loans effective interest rate the loans obtainable market price or the fair value of the

collateral if the loan is collateral dependent

The Company periodically may agree to modify the contractual terms of loans When loan is

modified and concession is made to borrower experiencing financial difficulty the

modification is considered troubled debt restructure TDR This usually includes

modification of loan terms such as reduction of the interest rate to below market terms

capitalizing past due interest or extending the maturity date or partial forgiveness of debt

Restructured loans are returned to accrual status after the borrower demonstrates the ability to

pay under the restructured terms through sustained period of repayment performance which

is generally six months All TDRs are initially classified as impaired

The allowance consists of specific general and unallocated components as further described

below
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Specific component

The specific component relates to loans that are classified as impaired specific allowance is

established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value of the impaired loan is lower

than the carrying value of the loan Groups of smaller balance homogenous loans are

collectively evaluated for impairment Accordingly the Company does not separately identify

individual residential real estate home equity and consumer loans for impairment disclosures

unless such loans are subject to troubled debt restructuring agreement

The Company has established Business Banking unit within its Commercial Lending

Department The portfolio is made up of both commercial and industrial loans less than $250

and commercial real estate loans less than $500 which are managed by exception This

grouping of loans is considered homogenous pool of loans and collectively evaluated for

impairment Accordingly the Company does not separately identify individual loans within

this unit for impairment disclosures unless such loans are subject to troubled debt

restructuring agreement

General component

The general component is based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors

stratified by the following loan segments CIcommercial real estate construction business

banking CI and commercial real estate residential real estate home equity and consumer

Management uses an average of historical losses based on time frame appropriate to capture

relevant loss data for each loan class This historical loss factor for each loan class is adjusted

for the following qualitative factors the levels/trends in delinquencies and non-accruals

levels and trends in charge-offs and recoveries trends in volume and terms of loans effects of

changes in risk selection and underwriting standards and other changes in lending policies

procedures and practices experience ability and depth of lending management and staff

national and local economic trends and conditions industry conditions and effects of changes

in credit concentrations This analysis establishes factors that are applied to each loan class to

determine the amount of the general component of the allowance for loan losses In the second

quarter of 2012 management made refinements to its allowance for loan loss methodology to

incorporate the establishment of the Business Banking unit into the Companys approach This

refinement did not have significant effect on the loan loss provision or the total allowance

for loan loss
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

The qualitative factors are determined based on the various risk characteristics of each loan

segment Relevant risk characteristics are as follows

Commercial and industrial loans including business banking Loans in these segments are

made to businesses Generally these loans are secured by assets of the business and repayment

is expected from the cash flows of the business weakened economy and resultant

decreased consumer and/or business spending may have an effect on the credit quality in

these loan segments

Commercial real estate including business banking Loans in these segments include

income-producing investment properties and owner-occupied real estate used for business

purposes The underlying properties are generally located in our primary market area The

cash flows of the income-producing investment properties may be adversely impacted by

downturn in the economy as vacancy rates may increase which in turn will have an effect on

credit quality Generally management obtains annual financial information for borrowers with

loans in excess of $250 in these segments In the case of owner-occupied real estate used for

business purposes weakened economy and resultant decreased consumer and/or business

spending may have an adverse effect on credit quality

Construction loans Loans in this segment primarily include land loans to local individuals

contractors and developers for developing the land for sale or for making improvements

thereon Repayment is derived from sale of the lots/units including any pre-sold units Credit

risk is affected by market conditions time to sell at an adequate price and cost overruns To

lesser extent this class includes commercial development projects we finance which in most

cases have an interest-only phase during construction and then convert to permanent

financing Credit risk is affected by cost overruns market conditions and the availability of

permanent financing to the extent such permanent financing is not being provided by us

Residential real estate Loans in this segment are made to and secured by one- to four-family

owner-occupied residential real estate and repayment is dependent on the credit quality of the

individual borrower The overall health of the economy including unemployment rates and

housing prices may have an effect on the credit quality in this loan class The Company

generally does not originate loans with loan-to-value ratio greater than 95 percent and does

not originate subprime loans

Home equity loans Loans in this segment are made to and secured by one- to four-family

owner occupied residential real estate and repayment is dependent on the credit quality of the

individual borrower The overall health of the economy including unemployment rates and

housing prices may have an effect on the credit quality in this loan segment
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Consumer loans Loans in this segment may be either secured or unsecured and repayment is

dependent on the credit quality of the individual borrower and if applicable sale of the

collateral securing the loan such as automobile or mobile home Therefore the overall health

of the economy including unemployment rates and housing prices may have an effect on the

credit quality in this loan segment

Loans acquired with evidence of credit quality deterioration since origination and for which it

is probable at purchase that the Company will be unable to collect all contractually required

payments are accounted for as required by and in accordance with the Receivables Topic of

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification

ASC Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorating Credit Quality ASC 310

Evidence of credit quality deterioration as of the purchase date may include statistics such as

past due status refreshed borrower credit scores and refreshed loan-to-value LTV some of

which are not immediately available as of the purchase date The Company continues to

evaluate this information and other credit-related information as it becomes available ASC

310 addresses accounting for differences between contractual cash flows and cash flows

expected to be collected from the Companys initial investment in loans if those differences

are attributable at least in part to credit quality

The initial fair values for loans within the scope of ASC 310 are determined by discounting

both principal and interest cash flows expected to be collected using an observable discount

rate for similar instruments with adjustments that management believes market participant

would consider in determining fair value The Company estimates the cash flows expected to

be collected at acquisition using internal credit risk interest rate and prepayment risk models

that incorporate managements best estimate of current key assumptions such as default rates

loss severity and payment speeds

Unallocated component

An unallocated component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect

managements estimate of probable losses The unallocated component of the allowance

reflects the margin of imprecision inherent in the underlying assumptions used in the

methodologies for estimating allocated and general reserves in the portfolio

Reserve for Unfunded Commitments

The Company also maintains reserve for unfunded credit commitments to provide for the

risk of loss inherent in these arrangements The reserve is determined using methodology

similar to the analysis of the allowance for loan losses taking into consideration probabilities

of future funding requirements The reserve for unfunded commitments is included in other

liabilities and was $213 and $0 at December 31 2012 and 2011
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the cost of business acquisition over the sum of the

amounts assigned to identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired less liabilities

assumed Goodwill is not amortized but is assessed for impairment annually as of the end of

November or more frequently if circumstances warrant

Management has the option of first assessing qualitative factors such as events and

circumstances to determine whether it is more likely than not meaning likelihood of more
than 50% that the value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If after

considering all relevant events and circumstances management determines it is not more
likely than not that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount then

performing an impairment test is unnecessary For the year ended December 31 2012
management determined that it was not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting

unit the consolidated Company in our case was less than its carrying amount If

management had determined otherwise the following two-step process would have been

completed to determine the impairment and necessary write-down of goodwill

The first step Step is used to identi1 potential impairment and involves comparing the

reporting units estimated fair value to its carrying amount including goodwill If the

estimated fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount goodwill is not deemed
to be impaired Should the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceed its estimated fair

value an indicator of impairment is deemed to exist and second step is performed to

measure the amount of such impairment if any The second step Step involves

calculating the implied fair value of goodwill The implied fair value of goodwill is

determined in manner similar to how the amount of goodwill is determined in business

combination i.e by measuring the excess of the estimated fair value as determined in Step

over the aggregate estimated fair values of the individual assets liabilities and identifiable

intangibles as of the impairment testing date If the implied fair value of goodwill exceeds the

carrying amount of goodwill assigned to the reporting unit no impairment exists If the

carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill an impairment
loss is recorded in an amount equal to such excess An impairment loss cannot exceed the

canying amount of goodwill and the loss write-down establishes new carrying amount for

the goodwill Subsequent reversal of goodwill impairment losses is not permitted Application

of the goodwill impairment test requires significant judgments including estimation of future

cash flows which are dependent on internal forecasts estimation of the long-term rate of

growth the period over which cash flows will occur and determination of our cost of capital

Changes in these estimates and assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair

value andlor conclusions related to goodwill impairment
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Business Segments

As community oriented financial institution substantially all of the Companys operations

involve the delivery of loan and deposit products to customers Management makes operating

decisions and assesses performance based on an ongoing review of these community-banking

operations which constitutes the Companys only operating segment for financial reporting

purposes

Bank-owned Life Insurance

Bank-owned life insurance policies are reflected on the consolidated balance sheet at cash

surrender value net of any deferred fees or loans Changes in the net cash surrender value of

the policies as well as insurance proceeds received are reflected in non-interest income on the

consolidated statements of net income and are not subject to income taxes

Off-balance Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business the Company enters into off-balance sheet financial

instruments consisting primarily of credit related financial instruments These financial

instruments are recorded in the consolidated financial statements when they are funded or

related fees are incurred or received

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share have been calculated by dividing net income by weighted average

shares outstanding before any dilution and adjusted to exclude the weighted average number

of unallocated shares held by the United Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan the ESOP
Diluted earnings per share have been calculated by dividing net income by weighted average

shares outstanding after giving effect to the potential dilution that could occur if potential

common shares were converted into common stock using the treasury stock method

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned OREO is comprised of properties acquired through foreclosure

proceedings or acceptance of deed in lieu of foreclosure OREO is held for sale and is

initially recorded at fair value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure establishing new

cost basis Losses arising from the acquisition of such properties are charged against the

allowance for loan losses Operating expenses are charged to current period operations as

incurred Gains and losses upon disposition are reflected in income as realized
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Foreclosed assets held for sale are recorded at the lower of fair value less estimated costs to

sell or cost Subsequent changes in the fair value of the foreclosed assets are reflected through

valuation allowance

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost Buildings and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation Depreciation is computed for financial reporting purposes on the straight-line

method over the estimated useful life of each type of asset Leasehold improvements are

amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term including

consideration of renewal options or the estimated useful life of the asset The cost of

maintenance and repairs is charged against income as incurred The Company reviews for

possible impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of an entire financial asset group of entire financial assets or participating

interest in an entire financial asset are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has

been surrendered Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when the

assets have been isolated from the Company the transferee obtains the right to pledge or

exchange the transferred assets and the Company does not maintain effective control over

the transferred assets

During the normal course of business the Company may transfer portion of financial asset

for example participation loan or the government guaranteed portion of loan In order to

be eligible for sales treatment the transfer of the portion of the loan must meet the criteria of

participating interest If it does not meet the criteria of participating interest the transfer

must be accounted for as secured borrowing In order to meet the criteria for participating

interest all cash flows from the loan must be divided proportionately the rights of each loan

holder must have the same priority the loan holders must have no recourse to the transferor

other than standard representations and warranties and no loan holder has the right to pledge

or exchange the entire loan

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

The Company accounts for securities sold under agreements to repurchase as secured

borrowings as the Company maintains effective control over the transferred assets Securities

sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected at the amount of cash received in connection

with the transaction The Company may be required to provide additional collateral based on

the fair value of the underlying securities
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Retirement Benefits

The Company has established defined contribution plan for eligible employees The

Company matches employee contributions up to 5% of an employees qualified compensation

In 2007 the Company established an unfunded Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan

SERP for certain employees that provides benefits that cannot be paid from qualified

retirement plan due to Internal Revenue Code restrictions This plan is nonqualified under the

Internal Revenue Code and assets used to fund benefit payments are not segregated from other

assets of the Company therefore in general participants or beneficiarys claim to benefits

under these plans is as general creditor The Company recognizes the plans under-funded

status as liability with an offsetting adjustment to Accumulated Other Comprehensive

Income AOCI to the extent not previously recognized in earnings Actuarial gains and

losses and prior service costs or credits are recognized as component of AOCI

As part of the acquisition of New England Bancshares Inc further described in Note the

Company assumed defined benefit multi-employer pension plan Disclosures for this plan

are made in Note

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes income taxes under the asset and liability method Under this

method deferred tax assets and liabilities are established for the tax consequences attributable

to the temporary differences between the financial statement carrying amount and the tax

bases of the Companys assets and liabilities and certain tax carryforwards at enacted tax

rates

The provision for deferred income taxes is the result of changes in deferred tax assets and

liabilities valuation allowance is recorded against deferred tax assets when management

deems portion of the asset to be more likely than not unrealizable The Companys valuation

allowance is reviewed and adjustments are made to the valuation allowance based on

managements judgments relating to the realizability of the deferred tax asset It is

managements belief that it is more likely than not that the reversal of deferred tax liabilities

and results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred

tax assets Therefore no valuation allowance was necessary at December 31 2012 or 2011 for

deferred tax assets

The Company may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more

likely than not the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities

based on the technical merits of the position The tax benefits recognized in the financial
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

statements from such position are measured based on the largest benefit that has greater

than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate resolution The Company reports

interest and penalties associated with tax obligations in other non-interest expense The

Company does not have any uncertain tax positions at December 31 2012 and 2011 which

require accrual or disclosure

The Companys income tax returns are subject to review and examination by federal and state

taxing authorities The Company is currently open to audit under the applicable statutes of

limitations by the Internal Revenue Service for the years ended December 31 2009 through
2012 The years open to examination by state taxing authorities vary by jurisdiction no years

prior to 2009 are open

Stock Compensation Plan

Share-based compensation costs are based on the grant date fair value and these costs are

recognized over the requisite vesting period For all of our stock option grants the fair value

of each grant was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model

Black-Scholes utilizes assumptions related to volatility the risk-free interest rate the dividend

yield and employee exercise behavior Expected volatilities utilized in the model are based on

the historic volatility of the Companys stock price The risk free interest rate is derived from

the U.S Treasury Yield curve in effect at the time of the grant The model incorporates

exercise and post-vesting forfeiture assumptions based on an analysis of historical data

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

The Companys ESOP was terminated on December 31 2012 Prior to this compensation

expense for the ESOP was recorded at an amount equal to the shares allocated by the ESOP
multiplied by the average fair market value of the shares during the period The Company
recognized compensation expense ratably over the year based upon the Companys estimate of

the number of shares expected to be allocated by the ESOP Unearned compensation

applicable to the ESOP was reflected as reduction of stockholders equity in the consolidated

balance sheet The difference between the average fair market value and the cost of the shares

allocated by the ESOP was recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital Cash

dividends received on shares held in suspense were applied to the scheduled annual debt

payment

Treasury Stock

Common stock shares repurchased are recorded as treasury stock at cost
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NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue expenses gains and losses

be included in net income Although certain changes in assets and liabilities such as

unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities are reported as separate

component of stockholders equity such items along with net income are components of

comprehensive income

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income are as follows

Gross Tax Net of

December 31 2012 Amount Effect Tax

Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 10147 $3847 $6300

Pension liability
1432 533 899

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 8715 $3314 $5401

Gross Tax Net of

December 31 2011 Amount Effect Tax

Unrealized gain on securities available for sale 11841 $4480 $7361

Pension liability
1045 436 609

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 10796 $4044 $6752

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred

Reclassifications

Amounts reported for prior periods are reclassified as necessary to be consistent with the

current-period presentation

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting

Standards Update ASU 2011-04 Fair Value Measurement Topic 820 Amendments to

Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure Requirements in US GAAP and

IFRS The guidance clarifies and expands the disclosures pertaining to unobservable inputs

used in Level fair value measurements including the disclosure of quantitative information

related to the valuation processes used the sensitivity of the fair value measurement to

changes in unobservable inputs and the interrelationships between those unobservable inputs
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NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

and use of nonfinancial asset in way that differs from the assets highest and best use
The guidance also requires disclosure of the level within the fair value hierarchy for assets and
liabilities not measured at fair value in the statement of financial position but for which the

fair value is disclosed This ASU was adopted in the first quarter of 2012 and did not have an

impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements as the amendments relate only to

changes in financial statement presentation

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 20 11-05 Comprehensive Income Topic 220
Presentation of Comprehensive Income This ASU amends the disclosure requirements for the

presentation of comprehensive income The amended guidance eliminates the option to

present components of other comprehensive income OCI as part of the statement of changes
in stockholders equity Under the amended guidance all changes in OCT are to be presented
either in single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but

consecutive financial statements This ASU was adopted in the first quarter of 2012 and did

not have an impact to the consolidated financial results as the amendments relate only to

changes in financial statement presentation See the Consolidated Statements of

Comprehensive Income

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-08 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Topic
350 Testing Goodwill for Impairment This ASU is intended to reduce the complexity and
cost of performing an evaluation of impairment of goodwill Under the new guidance an
entity will have the option of first assessing qualitative factors events and circumstances to

determine whether it is more likely than not meaning likelihood of more than 50 percent
that the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount If after considering all

relevant events and circumstances an entity determines it is not more likely than not that the

fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount then performing the two-step

impairment test will be unnecessary This ASU was adopted in the first quarter of 2012 and
did not have material impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU 201 1-09 Compensation Retirement Benefits

Multiemployer Plans Subtopic 715-80 Disclosures about an Employers Participation in

Multiemployer Plan This ASU requires new and expanded disclosures for individually

material multi-employer pension plans This ASU was adopted for the year ended
December 31 2012 See Note to the consolidated financial statements

In July 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012-02 Intangibles Goodwill and Other Topic 350
Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment This ASU states that an entity has

the option first to assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events and
circumstances indicates that it is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset
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NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Concluded

is impaired If after assessing the totality of events and circumstances an entity concludes

that it is not more likely than not that the indefinite-lived intangible asset is impaired then the

entity is not required to take further action However if an entity concludes otherwise then it

is required to determine the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible asset and perform the

quantitative impairment test by comparing the fair value with the carrying amount in

accordance with Codification Subtopic 350-30 Intangibles Goodwill and Other General

Intangibles Other than Goodwill Under the guidance in this ASU an entity also has the

option to bypass the qualitative assessment for any indefinite-lived intangible asset in any
period and proceed directly to performing the quantitative impairment test An entity will be

able to resume performing the qualitative assessment in any subsequent period The
amendments in this ASU are effective for annual and interim impairment tests performed for

fiscal years beginning after September 15 2012 Early adoption is permitted including for

annual and interim impairment tests performed as of date before July 27 2012 if public

entitys financial statements for the most recent annual or interim period have not yet been

issued or for nonpublic entities have not yet been made available for issuance The Company
adopted this ASU for the year ended December 31 2012 and it did not have material impact
on the Companys consolidated financial statements

In August 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012-03 Technical Amendments and Corrections to

SEC SectionsAmendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin

No 114 Technical Amendments Pursuant to SEC Release No 33-9250 and Corrections

Related to FASB Accounting Standards Update 2010-22 This ASU amends various SEC
paragraphs pursuant to the issuance of Staff Accounting Bulletin No 114 pursuant to

the issuance of the SECs Final Rule Technical Amendments to Commission Rules and Forms
Related to the FASB Accounting Standards Codification Release Nos 3-9250 34-65052
and IC-29748 August 2011 and related to ASU No 2010-22 Accounting for Various

Topics This ASU was effective upon issuance and it did not have an impact on the

Companys consolidated financial statements

In October 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012-04 Technical Corrections This ASU is

intended to clarify the Codification to correct unintended application of guidance and includes

amendments identifying when the use of fair value should be linked to the definition of fair

value in Topic 820 Fair Value Measurement Amendments to the Codification without

transition guidance are effective upon issuance for both public and non-public entities For

public entities amendments subject to transition guidance will be effective for fiscal periods

beginning after December 15 2012 The Company does not expect that the adoption of this

ASU will have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial statements
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NOTE RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS

The Company is required to maintain average balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve

Bank At December 31 2012 and 2011 these reserve balances amounted to $6990 and

$1321 respectively

NOTE ACQUISITION

On November 16 2012 the Company acquired New England Bancshares Inc NEBS the

holding company for New England Bank The transaction qualified as tax-free

reorganization for federal income tax purposes The final consideration paid in the transaction

to stockholders of NEBS consisted of 5559495 shares of United Financial common stock and

$2337 in cash including $2318 paid to holders of options to purchase NEBS shares Based

upon the Companys $14.24 per share closing price on November 16 2012 the transaction

was valued at approximately $81504

The Company accounted for the transaction using the acquisition method pursuant to FASB

ASC 805 Business Combinations ASC 805 Accordingly the Company recorded merger

and acquisition expenses totaling $4952 during the year ended December 31 2012 The

Companys results of operations include NEBS from the date of acquisition Additionally

ASC 805 requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at

fair value as of the acquisition date

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities

assumed as of the date of the acquisition

Assets

Cash 68926

Investments 53430

Loans 553983

Premises and equipment 5985

Goodwill 31660

Core deposit intangible
3730

Other real estate owned 1471

Other assets
26629

Total Assets Acquired
745814

Liabilities

Deposits
596994

Borrowings
63533

Other liabilities 3783

Total Liabilities Assumed 664310

Net Assets Acquired 81504
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NOTE ACQUISITION Concluded

As noted above the Company acquired loans with fair value of $553983 Included in this

amount was $9911 of loans with evidence of deterioration of credit quality since origination

for which it was probable at the time of the acquisition that the Company would be unable to

collect all contractually required payments receivable In accordance with the Loans and

Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorating Credit Quality section of FASB ASC 310

Receivables the Company recorded non-accretable credit discount of $2870 which is

defined as the loans contractually required payments receivable in excess of the amount of its

cash flows expected to be collected The Company considered factors such as payment
history collateral values and accrual status when determining whether there was evidence of

deterioration of loans credit quality at the acquisition date

The following summarizes the unaudited pro forma results of operations as if the Company
acquired NEBS on January 2011 The NEBS results for 2012 includes activity through
November 16 2012

Years Ended December 31

2912 2011

Net interest income before provision for loan losses 76138 78231
Net income 1236612 16609
Earnings per share basic 0.6 12 0.81

Earnings per share diluted 0.6 12 0.80

Net income excludes the $4952 in acquisition related expenses net of the $616 tax effect Net income for NEBS excludes $7352 of

merger related expenses net of the $1933 tax effect of these expenses

Excluding the $4482 ESOP termination expense $207 FHLBB prepayment penalties and $202 other-than-temporary impairment

charge net of the $44 tax effect of these items net income would have been $17213 Basic and diluted EPS would have been $0.85 and

$0.84 respectively These are non-GAAP financial measures presented for comparative purposes only They are not substitute for

GAAP measures and should only be considered in conjunction with the Companys GAAP financial information These non-GAAP
financial measures provide investors with more detailed information that is useful in understanding our financial performance and

condition
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NOTE INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and fair values of securities classified as available for sale and held to

maturity are as follows

Amortized
Unrealized

Cost Gain Losses Fair Value

Securities Available for Sale

December 31 2012

Debt Securities

Government-sponsored enterprises 3234 3233

Government-sponsored and

government-guaranteed mortgage-

backed securities 248370 9836 444 257762

Private label mortgage-backed

securities 2568 54 56 2566

Municipal bonds 28713 595 481 28827

Corporate bonds 1290 644 1934

Total 284175 11131 984 294322

Securities Available for Sale

December 31 2011

Debt Securities

Government-sponsored enterprises
187 192

Government-sponsored and

government-guaranteed mortgage-

backed securities 198446 11047 209493

Private label mortgage-backed

securities 2127 68 17 2178

Municipal bonds 7759 625 8384

Corporate bonds 1453 244 131 1566

Total 209972 11989 148 221813
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NOTE INVESTMENT SECURITIES Continued

Securities Held to Maturity

December 31 2012

Government-sponsored and government-

guaranteed mortgage-backed securities

Private label mortgage-backed securities

Industrial revenue bonds

State of Israel bonds

Municipal bonds

Total

Securities Held to Maturity

December 31 2011

Govermnent-sponsored and government-

guaranteed mortgage-backed securities

Private label mortgage-backed securities

Industrial revenue bonds

State of Israel bonds

Municipal bonds

Total

89955 $2026

163

60200

81

18847

150

6396

85674

The Companys portfolio of mortgage-backed securities which represent interests in pools of

residential mortgage loans consists of securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corporation Freddie Mac the Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae and the

Government National Mortgage Association Ginnie Mae all of which are federal

government owned or sponsored agencies

As of December 31 2012 the Bank has pledged securities with an amortized cost of $139995

and fair value of $146560 to secure municipal deposits reverse repurchase agreements

treasury tax and loan deposits at the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston and customers

repurchase agreements Additionally there is blanket lien on certain securities to

collateralize borrowings from the FHLBB as discussed further in Note

Unrealized

Gain Losses Fair Value

Amortized

Cost

57986

79

18847

150

5924

82986

$2214

472

$2688

19000

150

6629

$115897

$32 91949

167

19000

150

7045

$32 $118311

416

$2446
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NOTE IN VESTMENT SECURITIES Continued

Gross unrealized losses and fair values at December 31 2012 and 2011 aggregated by

investment category and the length of time that individual securities have been in continuous

unrealized loss position follow

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total

Unrealized Unrealized Number of Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Securities Fair Value Losses

2012

Securities Available for Sale

Debt Securities

Government-sponsored enterprises

Government-sponsored and

government- guaranteed mortgage-

backed securities

Private label mortgage-backed securities

2011

Securities Available for Sale

Debt Securities

Private label mortgage-backed

securities

Corporate bonds

Securities Held to Maturity

Government-sponsored and

government- guaranteed

mortgage-backed securities

Total

1998 1998

41537 444 81 41537 444
1671 56 1671 56

16293 481 38 16293 481

$61499 984 133 $61499 984

Management evaluated the securities in the preceding table and recognized pre-tax non-cash

charge of $165 for the year ended December 31 2012 for other-than-temporary impairment

OTT of corporate bond Management based its assessment on the issuers credit rating

credit outlook payment status and financial condition the length of time the bond has been in

loss position the size of the loss position and other meaningful information The OTTI

charge was credit related and charged to earnings with no amount recognized in other

comprehensive income Management has concluded that no other securities have experienced

impairments that are other-than-temporary In 2011 management determined that no declines

in the fair value of the Companys security portfolio were deemed to represent OTT
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Municipal bonds

Total

There were no securities classified as held to maturity in an unrealized loss position as of

December 31 2012

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total

Total

Unrealized Unrealized Number of Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Securities Fair Value Losses

614 17 614 17
198 131 198 131

812 148 812 148

7444 32 7444 32

7444 32 7444 32
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NOTE INVESTMENT SECURITIES Concluded

In its evaluation management considered the types of securities including if the securities

were U.S Government issued the credit rating on the securities credit outlook payment

status and financial condition the length of time the bond has been in loss position the size

of the loss position our intent and ability to hold the securities to expected recovery of value

and other meaningful information The Company does not intend to sell any debt securities

and is unlikely to be required to sell any security before its maturity or market price recovery

Realized gains and losses and the proceeds from sales of securities available for sale are as

follows for the years ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Proceeds from sales/calls 7846 2500 11586

Gross gains 267 88

Gross losses 13 273

The scheduled maturities of debt securities held to maturity and available for sale at

December 31 2012 are shown below Actual maturities will differ from contractual

maturities because issuers generally have the right to call or prepay obligations with or

without call or prepayment penalties

At December 31 2012

Securities Securities Held to

Available for Sale Maturity

Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less 384 385 25 25

Due fromone yearto five years 1523 1527 597 619

Due from five years to ten years 14779 15083 1728 1861

Due afterten years 16551 16999 22571 22888

33237 33994 24921 25393

Mortgage-backed securities 250938 260328 58065 60281

$284175 $294322 82986 85674

Maturities are based on the final contractual payment dates and do not reflect the impact of

potential prepayments or early redemptions Such securities have been classified within the

category that represents the final maturity date
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NOTE LOANS NET

The components of loans are as follows at December 31

2012 2011

Commercial

Commercial and industrial 306192 176086

Commercial real estate 814692 450180

Construction 52778 30271

Consumer

Residential real estate 441874 314839

Home equity loans 179039 135518

Consumer 21501 14985

Total loans 1816076 1121879

Net deferred loan costs and fees 3414 2194

Allowance for loan losses 12089 11132

Loans net $1807401 $1112941

The Companys lending activities are conducted principally in Hampden Hampshire and

Worcester counties of Massachusetts and Hartford Tolland and New Haven counties of

Connecticut The Company originates single family and multi-family residential loans

commercial real estate loans commercial loans and variety of consumer loans In addition

the Company grants loans for the construction of residential homes multi-family properties

and commercial real estate properties Most loans originated by the Company are

collateralized by real estate The Company also from time-to-time purchases commercial

loans secured by real estate The ability and willingness of the single family residential

commercial and consumer borrowers to honor their repayment commitments is generally

dependent on the level of overall economic activity within the borrowers geographic areas

and real estate values The ability and willingness of commercial real estate and construction

loan borrowers to honor their repayment commitments is generally dependent on the health of

the real estate economic sector in the borrowers geographic areas and the general economy

The Company has transferred portion of its originated commercial real estate and

commercial and industrial loans to participating lenders The amounts transferred have been

accounted for as sales and are therefore not included in the Companys accompanying

consolidated balance sheets The Company and participating lenders share ratably in any gains

or losses that may result from borrowers lack of compliance with contractual terms of the

loan The Company continues to service the loans on behalf of the participating lenders and

as such collects cash payments from the borrowers remits payments net of servicing fees to

participating lenders and disburses required escrow funds to relevant parties At December 31

2012 and 2011 the Company was servicing loans for participants aggregating $57722 and

$43780 respectively
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

As of December 31 2012 there were two transfers of financial assets accounted for as

secured borrowing in the amount of $2444 At December 31 2011 there was one transfer of

financial asset accounted for as secured borrowing in the amount of $440 Secured

borrowings are accounted for as long-term debt on the consolidated balance sheets

Certain officers and directors of the Company and certain corporations and individuals related

to such persons incurred indebtedness in the form of loans as customers These loans were

made on substantially the same terms including interest rates and collateral as those

prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other customers and did not involve

more than the normal risk of collectibility

The following table summarizes the Companys lending activity with its directors and

executive officers all of which was conducted with terms consistent with those offered to

unrelated parties

December 31

2012 2011

Beginning balance $2230 $1737

New loans 1670 1076

Repayments 595 583

Ending balance $3305 $2230

In 2012 and 2011 the Company recognized proceeds of $18193 and $11488 respectively from

sales of residential mortgage loans originated for the purpose of selling them in the secondary

market Loans serviced by the Company for others totaled $98155 and $68270 at December 31

2012 and 2011 respectively The balances of mortgage servicing rights related to such loans were

not material to the consolidated financial statements at December 31 2012 and 2011

summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31 follows

2012 2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year $11132 9987 9180

Provision for loan losses 3139 3242 2285

Charge-offs 2364 2392 1637
Recoveries 182 295 159

Balance at end of year 12089 11132 9987

In accordance with FASB ASC 805 Business Combinations the Company recorded loans acquired from NEBS at fair value and as

such no allowance for loan losses for these loans existed as of the acquisition date of November 16 2012
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

summary of the activity pertaining to the allowance for loan losses for the years ended

December 31 2012 and2011 is as follows

Year Ended December 31 2012

Business Banking

Commercial Commercial

and Commercial and Commercial Home
Industrial Real Estate Construction Industrial Real Estate Residential Equity Consumer Unallocated Total

Beginning

balance 3446 5572 860 666 474 114 $11132

Charge
offs 637 870 127 128 52 246 225 79 2364

Recoveries 125 45 182

Provision

credit 254 750 24 914 758 182 134 39 640 3139

Ending

balance 2680 5497 710 788 706 602 383 83 640 12089

Year Ended December 31 2011

Business Banking

Commercial Commercial

and Commercial and Commercial Home
Industrial Real Estate Construction Industrial Real Estate Residential Equity Consumer Unallocated Total

Beginning

balance 2801 5000 668 740 623 155 9987
Charge

offs 1556 589 78 139 24 2392
Recoveries 235 52 295

Provision

credit 1966 1109 267 65 125 40 3242

Ending

balance 3446 5572 860 666 474 114 $11132
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

Further information pertaining to the allowance for loan losses at December 31 2012 and 2011 is

as follows

Business Banking

Commercial Commercial

and Commercial and Commercial

Industrial Real Estate Construction Industrial Real Estate Residential Home Equity Consumer Unallocated Total

At December 31

2012

Amount of

allowance for

loan losses for

loans deemed to

be impaired and

individually

evaluated for

impairment 32 32

Amount of

allowance for

loan losses for

loans not

deemed to be

impaired and

collectively

evaluated for

impairment 2648 5497 710 788 706 602 383 83 640 12057

Financing

Receivables

Total loans $272789 $732272 $52778 $33403 $82420 $441874 $179039 $21501 $1816076

Loans deemed to

be impaired and

individually

evaluated for

impairment 5943 3882 591 10416

Loans not deemed

to be impaired

and collectively

evaluated for

impairment $266091 $722470 $51838 $33403 $82420 $441874 $179039 $21501 $1798636

Loans acquired

with deteriorated

credit quality

and deemed to

be impaired 755 5920 349 7024
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

Commercial
and Commercial Home

Industrial Real Estate Construction Residential Equity Consumer Total

At December 31 2011

Amount of allowance for

loan losses for loans

deemed to be impaired

and individually

evaluated for

impairment 65 70 135

Amount of allowance for

loan losses for loans not

deemed to be impaired

and collectively

evaluated for

impairment 3381 5472 790 666 474 114 10897

Amount of allowance for

loan losses for loans

acquired with

deteriorated credit

quality 100 100

Financing Receivables

Total loans $176086 $450180 30271 $314839 $135518 $14985 $1121879

Loans deemed to be

impaired and

individually evaluated

for impairment 3084 1770 330 1169 56 163 6572

Loans not deemed to be

impaired and

collectively evaluated

for impairment 172582 $446939 29941 $313422 $135462 $14822 $1113168

Loans acquired with

deteriorated credit

quality and deemed to

be impaired 420 1471 248 2139
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

The following is summary of past due loans at December 31 2012 and 2011

Recorded

Investments

90 Days Total 90 Days
30-59 Days 60-89 Days and Over Total Financing and

Past Due Past Due Past Due Past Due Current Receivables Accruing

At December 31 2012

Commercial

Commercial and

industrial 3974 1155 4442 9571 296621 306192

Commercial real estate 6326 1136 5351 12813 801879 814692

Construction 2853 2853 49925 52778

Consumer

Residential real estate 11760 2450 2615 16825 425049 441874

Home equity 1044 161 137 1342 177697 179039

Consumer 329 35 120 484 21017 21501

Total $26286 4937 $12665 $43888 $1772188 $1816076

At December 31 2011

Commercial

Commercial and

industrial 544 205 2728 3477 172609 176086

Commercial real estate 2518 1028 2131 5677 444503 450180

Construction 330 330 29941 30271

Consumer

Residential real estate 8747 1984 1417 12148 302691 314839

Home equity 1087 56 1143 134375 135518

Consumer 376 163 540 14445 14985

Total $13272 3218 6825 $23315 $1098564 $1121879
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

The following is summary of impaired loans at December 31 2012 and 2011

At December 31 2012 At December 31 2011

Unpaid Unpaid
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Principal Related

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Balance Allowance

With no related allowance

recorded

Commercial

Commercial and industrial 6666 6997 1379 $2115

Commercial real estate 9802 10736 1961 2073

Construction 940 940 190 259

Consumer

Residential real estate 1417 1417

Home Equity 56 56

Consumer 164 164

Total 17408 $18673 5167 $6084

With an allowance

recorded

Commercial and industrial 32 32 32 2125 2125 65

Commercial real estate 1279 1279 100

Construction 140 140 70

Total 32 32 32 3544 3544 235

By portfolio segment
Commercial portfolio

segment 17440 18705 32 7074 7991 235

Consumer portfolio

segment 1637 1637

Total impaired loans 17440 18705 32 8711 9628 235

Loans acquired from NEBS and CNB Financial Corp CNB Financial that are impaired at

December 31 2012 and 2011 are included in the above table
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

The following summaries of information pertaining to impaired and non-accrual loans

Commercial

Commercial and

industrial

Commercial real estate

Construction

Consumer

Residential real estate

Home Equity

Consumer

Year Ended December 31 2012

Average

Recorded

Investment

on

Impaired

Loans

4725 21

4158 72

735 25

9618 124

Interest Income

Recognized

on Cash

Recognized Basis

36

147

28

63 63

305 288

Average recorded investment on impaired loans

Interest income recognized on impaired loans

Interest income recognized on cash basis on impaired loans

Year Ended
December 31 2010

14070

120

120

The following is summary of non-accrual loans as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Commercial

Commercial and industrial

Commercial real estate

Construction

Consumer

Residential real estate

Home equity

Consumer

December 31

Year Ended December 31 2011

Interest Income

Recognized

on Cash

Recognized Basis

Average

Recorded

Investment

on

Impaired
Loans

Total

36

152

40

21 3580

17 4370

1011

1536

82

94

44 10673

2012 2011

5538 3504

5596 2984

349 330

2970 1417

137 56

Total

120

14710

163

8454

F-37



UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE LOANS NET Continued

The following represents modifications that were deemed to be troubled debt restructures for

the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Troubled Debt Restructurings

For the Year Ended December 31 2012

Commercial and industrial

Commercial real estate

Construction

For the Year Ended December 31 2011

Commercial and industrial

Commercial real estate

Construction

Total
________________ _________________

In 2012 the modifications provided on one commercial and industrial loan and four

commercial real estate loans are related to one borrower relationship The modification

extended the maturity of demand notes that had reached maturity The modifications provided

on the two construction loans are related to one borrower relationship The modification

extended the maturity of demand notes that had reached maturity Management performs

discounted cash flow calculation to determine the amount of impaired reserve required on

each of the troubled debt restructures Any reserve required is recorded through the provision

for loan losses

In 2011 the modification on the commercial and industrial loan provided twenty month

principal moratorium The modification to the commercial real estate loan provided additional

funds to sustain operations Management performs discounted cash flow calculation to

determine the amount of impaired reserve required on each of the troubled debt restructures

Any reserve required is recorded through the provision for loan losses

Total

Number of

Contracts

Outstanding Recorded Investment

Pre-Modification Post-Modification

140

1211

613

1964

863

248

1111

140

121

613

1964

863

263

1126
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

The following is summary of troubled debt restructurings as of December 31 2011 that have

subsequently defaulted defined as thirty or more days past due within one year of

modification As of December 31 2012 there have been no TDRs that have subsequently

defaulted within one year of modification

Year Ended December 31 2011

Number of Recorded

Contracts Investment

Troubled Debt Restructurings That

Subsequently Defaulted

Commercial real estate 860

Construction 872

Total 1732

The defaults as of December 31 2011 on the commercial real estate and construction troubled

debt restructures were the result of the borrowers delinquent loan payment As of

December 31 2012 and 2011 the commercial real estate loan was current and accruing

interest and the construction loan was current and on non-accrual The Company evaluates

the levels/trends in delinquencies and non-accruals as part of the qualitative factors within the

allowance for loan loss framework

CREDIT QUALITY INFORMATION

The Company utilizes nine grade risk rating system for commercial and industrial

commercial real estate and construction loans as follows

Pass Loans in these five categories are considered low to average risk

Special Mention Loans in this category portray one or more weaknesses that may be tolerated

in the short run Assets in this category are currently protected but show signs of potential

weakness and are being closely monitored by management

Substandard Loans in this category are considered inadequately protected by the current

sound worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged There is distinct

possibility that the Company will sustain some loss if the weakness is not corrected

Doubtful Loans in this category have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified substandard

with the added characteristic that the weaknesses make the collection or liquidation in full on

the basis of currently existing facts conditions and values highly questionable and improbable

The possibility of loss is extremely high however its classification as an estimated loss is

deferred until more exact determination of the extent of the loss is ascertained
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

Loss Loans in this category are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their

continuance as loans is not warranted

The Company does not assign risk ratings to residential real estate home equity and consumer

loans unless they are contractually past due 90 days or more or where legal action has

commenced against the borrower All other consumer loans are charged off when they become

contractually past due 120 days Those loans not assigned rating are considered pass

On an annual basis or more often if needed the Company formally reviews the ratings on all

commercial and industrial commercial real estate and construction loans Semi-annually the

Company engages an independent third-party to review significant portion of loans within

these segments Management uses the results of these reviews as part of its annual review

process

The following table presents the Companys loan class by internally assigned grades

At December 31 2012

Commercial Commercial

Industrial Real Estate Construction Total

Commercial

Grade

Pass 275279 762240 46196 $1083715

Special Mention 14788 29092 1632 45512

Substandard 15472 23360 4950 43782

Doubtful 653 653

Total 306192 814692 52778 $1173662

Residential Home Equity Consumer Total

Consumer

Grade

Pass 439201 178920 21382 639503

Special Mention

Substandard 2673 119 119 2911

Doubtful
____________

Total 441874 179039 21501 642414
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NOTE LOANS NET Continued

At December 31 2011

Commercial

Industrial Total

The following is summary of loans acquired with evidence of credit deterioration from

NEBS as of December 31 2012

Balance at acquisition date of

November 16 2012

2012 Collections

Balance as of December 31 2012

Commercial

Grade

Pass

Special Mention

Substandard

Doubtful

Total

Consumer

Grade

157026

7730

11230

100

176086

Commercial

Real Estate Construction

419818 23955

10965 1057

19397 5259

450180 30271

$600799

19752

35886

100

$656537

Residential Home Equity Consumer Total

Pass 311921 135253 14723 $461897

Special Mention 52 52

Substandard 2866 265 262 3393
Doubtful

Total 314839 135518 14985 $465342

Contractual Cash

Required Expected Non-

Payments To Be Accretable

Receivable Collected Discount

9911 7041 2870

Accretable

Yield

Loans

Receivable

2870

7041

17

$7024

17 17

9894 7024

The Company has not factored any prepayments into the expected cash flows
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NOTE LOANS NET Concluded

The following is summary of acquired impaired loan information for CNB Financial as of

December 31 2012

Contractual Cash

Required Expected Non-

Payments To Be Accretable Accretable Loans

Receivable Collected Difference Yield Receivable

Balance as of December 31 2009 5178 2829 2349 13 2816

2010 Collections 3645 2264 1381 13 2251
Transfer to OREO 393 3932 393
Accretable yield recognized in

earnings
348

Balance as of December 31 2010 1140 172 968 172

2011 Collections 37 37 37
Impairment 1354 135
Transfer to accretable yield 100 100

Accretable yield recognized in

earnings
100

Disposition 1103 868

Balance as of December 31 2011 and

2012

The Company has not factored any prepayments into the expected cash flows

The reduction in the carrying amount and the cash expected to be collected was due to one loan that was foreclosed upon and transferred

to OREO Prior to acquisition of CNB portion of this loan was charged off in order to adjust the loan to its fair value therefore there

was no non-accretable difference recorded against this loan on the acquisition date

The transfer from non-accretable yield was due to repayment received in excess of cash expected to be collected net of selling costs

Amount represents full reserve against the remaining net book value of the loan due to uncollectibility

The excess of cash flows expected at acquisition over the estimated fair value is referred to as the

accretable yield and is recognized in interest income over the remaining life of the loans The

difference between contractually required payments at acquisition and the cash flows expected to

be collected at acquisition is referred to as the non-accretable difference Changes in the expected

cash flows from the date of acquisition will either impact the accretable yield or result in charge

to the provision for loan losses Subsequent decreases to expected principal cash flows will result

in charge to the provision for loan losses and corresponding increase to the allowance for loan

losses Subsequent increases in expected principal cash flows will result in recovery of any

previously recorded allowance for loan losses to the extent applicable and reclassification from

non-accretable difference to accretable yield for any remaining increase All changes in expected

interest cash flows will result in reclassifications to/from non-accretable differences

Acquired loans that are modified subsequent to acquisition are reviewed to compare modified

contractual cash flows to the carrying value If modified cash flows are lower than the carrying

value the loan is removed from the acquired loans pool at its carrying value as well as the related

allowance for loan losses and is classified as troubled debt restructure
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NOTE BANKING PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The composition of banking premises and equipment is as follows at December 31

Land and improvements

Buildings and improvements

Leasehold improvements

Furniture and equipment

Assets under capitalized leases

Less accumulated depreciation and

amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense including amortization for capitalized leases totaled

$1865 $1320 and $1516 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010
respectively

The Company leases twenty-three of its branches two ATM facilities two financial services

offices and two loan production offices all operating leases Rent expense for the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 amounted to $1474 $1302 and $1334
respectively The leases which are non-cancelable expire at various dates through 2034 The

Company also entered into capital lease obligations for three of its branches

Future minimum rental commitments under the terms of these leases are as follows

2012 2011 Estimated Useful Lives

3642

15140

3078

7320

5359

34539

2427

10237

1798

4630

5359

24451

25 40 Years

Lesser of useful life or term of lease

10 Years

Lesser of lease term or useful life

9475 8013

$25064 $16438

Years ending December 31
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

Less interest included above

Capitalized lease obligations

Operating

Leases

2134

2182

2134

1927

1609

11487

21473

Capital

Leases

423

423

424

424

424

5228

7346

2635

4711

Total

2557

2605

2558

2351

2033

16715

28819
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NOTE DEPOSITS

Deposit accounts by type are summarized as follows at December 31

2012 2011

Demand 307302 205902

NOW 87983 52899

Savings
350188 247664

Money market 395293 301770

Certificates of deposit
707409 421740

$1848175 $1229975

At December 31 2012 the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows

Time Deposits

$100 $100 Total

2013 $195877 $184749 $380626

2014 80133 87004 167137

2015 47736 38555 86291

2016 16721 13317 30038

2017 18307 18716 37023

Total $358774 $342341 $701115

Includes brokered deposits in the amount of $99 and excludes the unamortized fair value adjustment balance of $6294 recorded in

connection with the acquisition of NEBS

Interest expense on deposits classified by type is as follows

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

NOW 204 159 199

Regular savings
1328 1694 1679

Money market 1501 1963 2121

Certificates of deposit
7433 8633 9848

Total 10466 12449 13847

NOTE SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston Advances

There were two FHLBB advances with an original maturity of less than one year that totaled

$30000 at December 31 2012 There were no FHLBB advances with an original maturity of
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NOTE SHORT-TERJVI BORROWINGS Concluded

less than one year at December 31 2011 The Company has an available line of credit with the
FHLBB at an interest rate that adjusts daily There were no borrowings against the line of
credit at December 31 2012 and 2011 All borrowings from the FHLBB are secured by
blanket security agreement on qualified collateral principally mortgage loans and U.S
Government and federal agency securities in an aggregate amount equal to outstanding
advances The Companys unused borrowing capacity with the FHLBB excluding its

available line of credit balance of $12000 at December 31 2012 was approximately $28262

Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase include funds borrowed from customers on an
overnight basis These customer repurchase agreements amounted to $49229 and $17260 at
December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively at weighted average rate of 0.57% for both
periods Interest expense for 2012 2011 and 2010 was $55 $121 and $185 respectively All
of the repurchase agreements are secured by government-sponsored and government-
guaranteed mortgage-backed securities

NOTE LONG-TERM DEBT

Federal Home Loan Bank ofBoston Advances

Advances outstanding together with year of maturity at December 31 2012 and 2011
consisted of the following

2012 2011

Weighted Weighted
Amount Average Rate Amount Average Rate

2012
9697 4.24%

2013 39914 4.05% 41500 4.04%
2014 13000 2.90% 13000 2.90%
2015

7655 3.42%
2016 9689 1.56% 10132 1.55%
2017 33000 2.89% 18000 4.38%
Thereafter 15000 2.25% 5000 3.75%

110603 3.11% 104984 3.68%

Excludes the fair value adjustment of $922 and $1433 at December 2012 and 2011 respectively recorded in connection with the
acquisition of CNB Financial

At December 31 2012 advances in the amount of $35000 are callable at the option of the
FHLBB at various dates through 2013

F-45



UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE LONG-TERM DEBT Concluded

At December 31 2012 the Company had two secured borrowings in the amount of $2444 At

December 31 2011 the Company had one secured borrowing in the amount of $440

Subsequent to the acquisition of NEBS the Company paid off all of the FHLBB advances that

it had acquired as result of the acquisition No prepayment expense was recorded on these

payoffs as the Company released the fair value adjustment of $2299 on these advances to

offset the prepayment penalties charged by the FHLBB

Reverse Repurchase Agreements

The Company secured two structured term reverse repurchase agreements in the amount of

$10000 each through another financial institution in 2008 and 2009 The reverse repurchase

agreement entered into in 2008 for $10000 matures in 2018 is callable on any quarterly

payment date and has rate of 2.73% The reverse repurchase agreement entered into in 2009

for $10000 matures in 2019 is callable in 2014 and has rate of 2.44% Interest expense for

2012 2011 and 2010 was $526 $538 and $517 respectively All of the repurchase

agreements are secured by government-sponsored and government-guaranteed mortgage-

backed securities

Subordinated Debentures

The Company has outstanding subordinated debt in the form of trust preferred securities

issued through two private placement offerings with total face amount of $11732 The

subordinated debt was recorded as result of the acquisition of NEBS in 2012 and CNB

Financial in 2009 The Company recorded fair value acquisition discount of $2383 in

connection with the acquisition of CNB Financial on November 30 2009 The remaining

unamortized discount was $2102 at December 31 2012 The Company did not record

discount or premium in connection with the acquisition of NEBS The CNB Financial issue

has maturity date of March 15 2036 and bears floating rate of interest that reprices

quarterly at the 3-month LIBOR rate plus 1.85% The interest rate at December 31 2012 was

2.16% special redemption provision allows the Company to redeem this issue at par on

March 15 June 15 September 15 or December 15 of any year subsequent to March 15 2011

The NEBS issue has maturity date of August 23 2035 and bears floating rate of interest

that reprices quarterly at the 3-month LIBOR rate plus 1.90% The interest rate at

December 31 2012 was 2.21% special redemption provision allows the Company to

redeem this issue at par on February 23 May 23 August 23 or November 23 of any year

subsequent to August 23 2010 The Company redeemed the NEBS issue on February 23

2013
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NOTE INCOME TAXES

The provision for federal and state income taxes is as follows

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Current tax provision

Federal 3188 6177 3771

State 1793 1700 1026

4981 7877 4797

Deferred tax provision benefit

Federal 177 3293 780

State 1009 906 108

1186 4199 672

Provision for income taxes 3795 3678 5469

The following table summarizes the difference between the statutory federal income tax rate

and the effective rate

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 34.0%

Increase decrease resulting from

State taxes net of federal tax benefit 6.9 3.5 3.8

Stock-based compensation 1.9 0.9 1.8

Tax-exempt obligations 8.5 4.1 2.7
Tax credits 21.6 8.0
Bank owned life insurance 7.6 3.5 3.1
Non-deductible acquisition expenses 11.9 0.5

ESOP termination expense 28.3

Other net 4.8 0.9 1.0

Effective tax rate 1.1% 24.7% 35.3%
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NOTE INCOME TAXES Continued

The components of the net deferred tax asset are as follows

Federal

State

Deferred tax liability

Federal

State

Net deferred tax asset

22632

6072

28704

6989
1537

8526

20178

16205

4565

20770

5628
1136

6764

14006

The tax effects of each type of income and expense item that give rise to deferred taxes are as

follows

At December 31

1056

388
533

148

2812

4938

3726

10446

1162

1026

318

436

218

486

4547

4343

7532

Deferred tax asset

December 31

2012 2011

2012

410

2011

359

3847 4480

Cash basis of accounting

Investments

Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale

Impairment losses

Partnerships and other investments

Retirement benefits

Depreciation

Deferred benefit

Purchase accounting adjustments

Allowance for loan losses

Employee benefit plans

Market value adjustment on loans

Net operating loss carryforward

Other

Net deferred tax asset

896

117

$20178 $14006
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NOTE INCOME TAXES Concluded

summary of the change in the net deferred tax asset is as follows

At December 31

2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year $14006 11029

Provision for prepaid taxes 1186 4199

Recorded due to acquisition of NEBS 4256

Tax effect of changes in accumulated other

comprehensive income 730 1222

Balance at end of year $20178 14006

The Banks base year reserve for loan losses as of December 31 1995 will not be recaptured

unless the reserve is used for purposes other than for loan losses such as in distribution in

liquidation or otherwise Accordingly the Bank has not recorded deferred tax liability of

approximately $2400 relating to approximately $5900 of cumulative tax deductions related

to loans generated prior to December 31 1995

NOTE EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per common share EPS and diluted earnings per

common share for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 is presented below

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Net income 3628 11184 10032

Weighted average common shares applicable to

basic EPS 15234896 14929714 15302505

Effect of dilutive potential common shares 186881 268988 92256

Weighted average common shares applicable to

diluted EPS 15421777 15198702 15394761

Earnings per share

Basic 0.24 0.75 0.66

Diluted 0.24 0.74 0.65

Share-based compensation awards that qualify as participating
securities entitled to receive non-forfeitable dividends are included in

basic EPS using the two-class method

For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 options to purchase 241300 233390 and 1405286 shares respectively were

not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because they were antidilutive

Includes incremental shares related to dilutive stock options
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NOTE STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS

The Companys 2008 Equity Incentive Plan the 2008 Incentive Plan was approved by the

shareholders at the Companys Annual Meeting held in June 2008 The 2008 Incentive Plan will

remain in effect for period of ten years and authorizes the issuance of up to 1258534 shares of

Company common stock pursuant to grants of restricted stock awards restricted stock unit awards

incentive stock options non-statutory stock options and stock appreciation rights provided

however that no more than 898953 shares may be issued or delivered in the aggregate pursuant to

the exercise of stock options or stock appreciation rights and no more than 359581 shares may be

issued or delivered pursuant to restricted stock awards or restricted stock unit awards

Employees and outside directors of the Company are eligible to receive awards under the 2008

Incentive Plan The holders of restricted stock awards have full voting rights beginning on the

grant date Upon the occurrence of an event constituting change in control of the Company
as defined in the 2008 Incentive Plan all outstanding stock options will become fully vested

and all stock awards then outstanding will vest free of restrictions

The Companys 2006 Stock-Based Incentive Plan the 2006 Incentive Plan was approved by

shareholders at the Companys Annual Meeting held in July 2006 The 2006 Incentive Plan will

remain in effect for period often years and provides for the issuance of up to 1180330 shares

of Company common stock pursuant to grants of incentive and non-statutory stock options

stock appreciation rights and restricted stock awards provided that no more than 337237 shares

may be issued as restricted stock awards and no more than 843093 shares may be issued

pursuant to the exercise of stock options As of result of the Companys second step

conversion and offering completed in December 2007 and in accordance with provisions in the

2006 Incentive Plan the total number of shares authorized for grant the number of stock options

outstanding and the exercise prices for outstanding options were adjusted by an exchange ratio

of 1.04079 Employees and outside directors of the Company are eligible to receive awards

under the 2006 Incentive Plan The holders of restricted stock awards have full voting rights

beginning on the grant date Upon the occurrence of an event constituting change in control of

the Company as defined in the 2006 Incentive Plan all outstanding stock options will become

fully vested and all stock awards then outstanding will vest free of restrictions

Under the incentive plans stock options are granted at an exercise price equal to the fair value

of the underlying shares at the date of grant and have contractual life of ten years Stock

options vest based on continued service with the Company over the five-year period following

the grant date The compensation cost related to stock options is based upon the fair value for

each option as of the date of the grant detennined using the Black-Scholes option pricing

model The Black-Scholes model requires the Company to provide estimates of the expected

tenn volatility of the underlying stock the stocks dividend yield and the discount rate The

Company intends to repurchase shares in the open market to satisfy stock option exercises
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NOTE STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS Continued

The compensation cost related to restricted stock awards is based upon the Companys stock

price at the grant date Restricted stock awards generally vest based upon continuous service

with the Company over the five year period following the grant date During the vesting

period participants are entitled to dividends for all awards

combined summary of activity in the Companys incentive plans for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 is presented in the following table

Stock Awards

Outstanding Stock Options Outstanding

Weighted- Weighted-

Shares Average Average

Available Number of Grant Number of Exercise

for Grant Shares Value Shares Price

Balance at December 31 2010 296122 306622 12.15 1764630 12.42

Granted 52500 17500 15.93 35000 15.93

Stock options exercised 60720 12.60

Shares vested 130060 12.32

Forfeited 74086 27012 12.16 47074 12.31

Cancelled 30921 30921 15.36

Balance at December 31 2011 348629 167050 12.42 1660915 12.43

Granted 108500 29500 15.09 79000 15.03

Stock options exercised 99251 12.18

Shares vested 74950 12.08

Forfeited 35100 7000 11.81 28100 12.30

Cancelled 11524 1000 11.66 10524 11.69

Balance at December 31 2012 286753 113600 13.38 1602040 12.59

During 2012 the Company granted 79000 stock options and 29500 restricted shares to

certain employees under the 2008 Incentive Plans The stock options had weighted average

value of $3.37 per share with total grant date fair value of $266 The restricted shares had

weighted average value of $15.09 per share with total grant date fair value of $445

During 2011 the Company granted 35000 stock options and 17500 restricted shares to

certain employees under the 2008 Incentive Plans The stock options had weighted average

value of $4.00 per share with total grant date fair value of $140 The restricted shares had

weighted average value of $15.93 per share with total grant date fair value of $279

The Companys total compensation cost for shared-based payment arrangements was $1453

in 2012 $1891 in 2011 and $2383 in 2010 The Company recorded excess tax benefits on
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NOTE STOCK-BASED INCENTIVE PLANS Concluded

stock compensation plans of $29 in 2012 $91 in 2011 and $115 in 2010 related to the

recognition of the shared-based compensation expense As of December 31 2012

compensation costs related to non-vested stock awards and options totaling $1871 have not

been recognized These costs will be recognized over an estimated weighted average period of

2.1 years

The following table presents the assumptions used to compute the fair value of options using

the Black-Scholes option pricing model for stock options granted during 2012 2011 and 2010

2012 2011 2010

Weighted average fair value 3.37 4.00 3.77

Expected term short-cut method 6.50
years

6.50 years 6.50
years

Volatility 29.67% 28.76% 28.13%

Expected dividend yield 2.57% 2.25% 2.12%

Weighted average risk-free interest rate 1.20% 2.14% 2.76%

summary of stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31 2012 is as follows

Stock Options

Outstanding Exercisable

Total number of shares 1602040 1299640

Weighted average exercise price 12.59 12.41

Aggregate intrinsic value 5049 4314

Weighted average remaining contractual term 5.0 years 4.5
years

NOTE EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Senior Executive Retirement Plan

The Company has entered into Executive Supplemental Compensation Agreements the

Agreements with certain of its current and former officers The estimated amount to be

paid under the Agreements is accrued over the executives active employment from the time

the agreement is signed to the date of full eligibility Effective October 2007 the Company

consolidated the Agreements of current senior executives into SERP The Company

continues to maintain the Agreements for certain former officers The liability associated with

the Agreements was $911 and $734 at December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively and is

included in accrued expenses and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets Included

in this liability at December 31 2012 is an additional $243 as result of the NEBS

acquisition The expense for the Agreements was $35 $36 and $46 for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively
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NOTE EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS Continued

The SERP provides that each executive will receive supplemental benefits to the extent

vested commencing 180 days following separation from service The supplemental benefit

will be equal to the percentage of the executives final average compensation set forth in each

executives participation agreement multiplied by fraction the numerator of which is the

executives years of credited service with the Company and the denominator of which is set

forth in the executives participation agreement The supplemental benefit will commence on

the executives normal benefit date and will be payable in lump sum unless the executive

has elected at the time of execution of the participation agreement to receive an almuity or

other form of benefit The SERP is unfunded and is considered nonqualified plan under the

Internal Revenue Code

Directors Fee Continuation Plan

The Company sponsors Directors Fee Continuation Plan under which Director will

annually receive $15 $24 for former chairpersons for ten years beginning upon attaining the

normal retirement date The benefit is reduced for directors serving fewer than 15 years In the

event of the participants death prior to receiving the full benefits of the plan any unpaid
benefits will be paid to the beneficiary The Company recognizes expense under this plan on

ratable basis such that the present value of the liability is fully accrued at each directors

normal retirement date Effective October 2007 the Board of Directors adopted Director

Retirement Plan to replace the Directors Fee Continuation Plan Current directors who are

participants in the Directors Fee Continuation Plan the predecessor plan will participate in

the plan from the effective date Retired directors will continue to receive benefits under the

Directors Fee Continuation Plan At December 31 2012 and 2011 the Companys recorded

liability for this plan amounted to $235 and $300 respectively and is included in accrued

expenses and other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets The Company was not

required to record an expense for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Director Retirement Plan

The Director Retirement Plan will provide for the payment of normal retirement benefits upon
the directors separation from service on or after attainment of his normal retirement age age
72 or age 65 with 10 years of service The normal retirement benefit will generally be equal

to 70% of the average annual directors fees over the highest three years during Directors

final 10 years of service and will be payable in 10 annual installments commencing within 60

days after the directors separation from service
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In the event participant has separation from service prior to his normal retirement date

other than due to termination for cause disability or death the participant will be entitled to

lesser benefit payable in ten annual installments commencing at age 65 The amount payable

will be determined by multiplying the normal retirement benefit by the directors benefit

percentage which is 10% for each year of service up to 100% The supplemental benefit will

commence on the directors normal benefit date and will be payable in lump sum unless the

director has elected at the time of execution of the participation agreement to receive an

annuity or other form of benefit directors benefit percentage will accelerate to 100% upon

the directors separation from service due to death disability or change in control Effective

December 2011 the Board of Directors elected to freeze the Director Retirement Plan to

new members of the Board of Directors The Director Retirement Plan is accounted for as

defined benefit plan

The following table summarizes the changes in the projected benefit obligation PBO the

funded status of the PBO and the weighted average assumptions used to determine the benefit

obligation for the SERP and Director Retirement Plan at December 31 2012 and 2011 These

plans had no assets at December 31 2012 and 2011 Amounts recognized at December 31

2012 and 2011 are reflected in accrued expenses and other liabilities on the consolidated

balance sheets

At or For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011

Director Director

SERP Retirement Plan SERP Retirement Plan

Change in projected benefit

obligation

Beginning of period $3870 1205 $3489 900

Service cost 401 55 315 93

Interest cost 189 44 176 56

Actuarial gain/loss 25 110 183

Plan amendments 609 41

Benefits paid 221 27

End of period $5072 1149 $3870 1205

Accruedbenefitcost $5072 1149 $3870 1205
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Director

SERP Retirement Plan SERP

Amounts recognized in

accumulated other

comprehensive income consist of

Prior service cost

Net gain/losses
__________ ________________ _________

Weighted-average assumptions

used to determine benefit

obligations

Discount rate

Rate of compensation increase

Components of the net periodic benefit cost are as follows

For the Years Ended December 31

Periodic benefit cost

Service cost

Interest cost

Total pension cost

Prior service cost amortization

Net loss amortization

Net periodic benefit cost

Weighted-average assumptions used

to determine net periodic benefit

cost

Discount rate

Rate of compensation increase

At or For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011

Total

Director

Retirement Plan

182
217

180
194

374

$1174
116

$1058

4.00%

5.00%

766
120

646 399

4.25%

2.00%

4.00% 4.25%

2.00% 5.00%

2012

Director

SERP Retirement Plan

2011

55

44

401

189

590

200

Director

SERP Retirement Plan

315 93

48

790 190

176

99 491

43 115

606

4.25% 5.50%

2.00% 5.00%

56

149

37

10

196

5.50%

2.00%

4.25%

5.00%

The unrecognized prior service cost for the SERP is being amortized over period of

approximately seven years estimated employee service life The unrecognized prior service

cost and net loss for the Director Retirement Plan are being amortized over period of

approximately six years In 2013 approximately $200 and $43 in prior service cost for the

SERP and the Director Retirement Plan respectively is expected to be recognized as
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component of net periodic benefit cost In 2013 approximately $15 in unrecognized net loss

for the Director Retirement Plan is expected to be recognized in net periodic benefit cost

At December 31 2012 the benefit payments expected to be paid in each of the next five years

and the aggregate for the five fiscal years thereafter are as follows

Director

SERP Retirement Plan

Years ending December 31

2013 $3248 442

2014 55 25

2015 56 26

2016 1195 254

2017 55 26

2018 through 2022 277 300

Years after 2022 4028 793

Total expected benefit payments $8914 1866

Except for the benefit payments expected to be paid the Company does not expect to make

contributions to these plans in 2013

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

In connection with the Companys 2005 initial public offering the Bank established an ESOP

The Company issued 641301 shares of common stock to the ESOP in exchange for twenty-

year note In connection with the Companys second step conversion the number of shares in

the plan was adjusted by the exchange ratio of 1.04079 to total 667458 shares The loan

amount was approximately $6413 and was recorded as Unearned Compensation within

stockholders equity The loan bore interest equal to the prime rate in effect at January 1st of

each year and provided for annual payments of principal and interest Prior to January 2008

the Board of Directors voted to accelerate its Employee Stock Ownership Plan benefit from

twenty-year to fifteen-year allocation period

As part of the Companys 2007 second step conversion and offering an additional 753834

shares of common stock were contributed to the ESOP in exchange for twenty-year note

The loan amount was approximately $7538 and was recorded as Unearned Compensation

within stockholders equity The loan bore interest equal to the prime rate in effect at

January 1st of each year and provides for annual payments of principal and interest
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The Company terminated the ESOP plan effective December 31 2012 total of 357053
shares were held in trust as of December 31 2012 pending favorable determination letter

from the Internal Revenue Service prior to the distribution of these shares to participants As

provided in the plan the outstanding loans were repaid through the sale of 664552 shares by
the plan to the Company Those shares were recorded as treasury shares at the December 31
2012 closing price of $15.72 The Company reported compensation expense equal to the

average daily market price of the shares as they were committed to be released from the

suspense account Total compensation expense applicable to the ESOP amounted to $1089
$1114 and $965 for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively Total

expense applicable to the termination of the ESOP was recorded in the amount of $4482 for

the year ended December 31 2012 This is the value of accelerating the vesting of shares

remaining after the loan was paid The effect on capital of this expense was offset by credits to

unearned compensation and additional paid in capital in stockholders equity

Shares held by the ESOP Plans include the following

December 31

2012 2011 2010

Allocated 376483 308915 249607
Committed to be released 357053 71709 71709
Unallocated 1021504 1093212

733536 1402128 1414528

Cash dividends received on allocated shares were allocated to participants and cash dividends

received on shares held in suspense were used to fund the scheduled annual debt payment The
fair value of unallocated shares at December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 was $0 $16436 and

$16693 respectively

In connection with the acquisition of NEBS the Company assumed the obligations of the New
England Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan NEB ESOP The NEB ESOP was
terminated subsequent to the acquisition and all outstanding loan obligations under the plan

were repaid The Company received in satisfaction of the loan 128469 of its shares from the

NEB ESOP resulting in the recognition of $284 in acquisition-related expenses Those shares

were recorded as treasury shares on the date of the payment Participant shares in the plan
totaled 220245 shares at December 31 2012 These shares were being held in trust at

December 31 2012 pending positive determination from the Internal Revenue Service prior
to distribution to participants
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Defined Benefit Plan

As result of the acquisition of NEBS the Company participates in the Pentegra Defined

Benefit Plan for Financial Institutions the Pentegra DB Plan tax-qualified defined-

benefit pension plan The Pentegra DB Plan operates as multi-employer plan for accounting

purposes and as multi-employer plan under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act

of 1974 and the Internal Revenue Code There are no collective bargaining agreements in

place that require contributions to the Pentegra DB Plan

The Pentegra DB Plan is single plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 13c and as

result all of the assets stand behind all of the liabilities Accordingly under the Pentegra DB

Plan contributions made by participating employer may be used to provide benefits to

participants of other participating employers

The funded status market value of plan assets divided by funding target of the Pentegra DB

Plan as of July 2012 is 86.3% per the actuarial valuation reports Market value of plan

assets reflects any contributions received through June 30 2012

The Companys contributions to the Pentegra DB Plan will not be more than 5% of the total

contributions to the Pentegra DB Plan contribution of $900 was accrued by the Company

during the year ended December 31 2012 with the payment made during January 2013 in

order to fully fund the Pentegra DB Plan There was no pension expense under the plan for the

year ended December 31 2012 The Company will make the future required contributions and

incur applicable pension expense going forward

NOTE COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course

of business to meet the financing needs of its customers These financial instruments include

commitments to originate loans and standby letters of credit The Company does not record

liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing standby letters of credit

unless it becomes probable that the Company would have to perform under the guarantee

These instruments involve to varying degrees elements of credit and interest rate risk in

excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets The contract or notional

amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in particular

classes of financial instruments

The Companys exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to

the financial instrument for loan commitments and standby letters of credit is represented by
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the contractual or notional amounts of those instruments The Company uses the same credit

policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet

instruments

Financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk at December 31 2012 and 2011 are as

follows

2012 2011

Unused lines of credit $308683 $250034
Amounts due mortgagors 36365 27495
Standby letters of credit 3573 4004
Commitments to originate loans 63974 32689

Included in commitments to originate loans at December 31 2012 and 2011 are fixed rate

commitments in the amount of$15591 and $23648 at interest ranges of 2.50% to 6.50% and
3.125% to 6.25% respectively

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customer as long as there is no
violation of any condition established in the contract Commitments generally have fixed

expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of fee Since many of
the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements The Company evaluates each
customers creditworthiness on case-by-case basis

The amount of collateral obtained if deemed
necessary by the Company upon extension of

credit is based on managements credit evaluation

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the

performance of customer to third party Those guarantees are primarily issued to support

public and private borrowing arrangements including commercial paper bond financing and
similar transactions The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same
as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers The Company holds residential or

commercial real estate accounts receivable inventory and equipment as collateral supporting
those commitments for which collateral is deemed necessary The extent of collateral held for

those commitments at December 31 2012 and 2011 exceeds 100%

During 2012 the Company established reserve for these unfunded off balance sheet

commitments using similar methodology to that used for the allowance for loan and lease

losses As of December 31 2012 the reserve for unfunded commitments had balance of
$213
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The Company has also committed to invest up to $10000 representing 25% of the Class or

senior investor balance in low income housing tax credit funds by the end of 2015 At

December 31 2012 the Company has invested $8131 in the fund which has been reduced by

net operating losses of $1260 The net carrying balance of $6871 is included in other assets

on the consolidated balance sheet As Class investor the Company has the right to transfer

its investment to the funds Class investor at the end of 10 years at which time the Company

would have no compliance requirements or interest in the fund The fund structure

contemplates that the Class investors will receive 95% of the tax credits and net operating

losses for period of eight years or until the minimum investment return has been met Net

operating losses allocated to the Company are recognized as they are incurred and recorded in

non-interest expense

In 2012 the Company committed to and invested $1806 or 50% interest in new markets

housing tax credit fund The fund recorded losses during 2012 of $21 of which the Company

will be allocated $11

The Company has committed to invest $2000 in another new markets housing tax credit fund

by the end of 2015 In 2012 the Company invested $275 in this fund

Employment and Change in Control Agreements

The Company has entered into three-year employment agreement with its President and

Chief Executive Officer which expires in 2014 This agreement generally provides for base

salary and the continuation of certain benefits currently received Annually the Company may

extend the agreement for an additional year Under certain specified circumstances the

employment agreement requires certain payments to be made for certain reasons other than

cause including change in control as defined in the agreement However such

employment may be terminated for cause as defined without incurring any continuing

obligations

The Company also entered into three-year change in control agreements with certain executive

officers none of whom are covered by an employment agreement The change in control

agreements are renewable on an annual basis and generally provide severance payment and

the continuation of certain benefits currently received following change in control as

defined in the agreements

Litigation

United Bank as successor in interest to Commonwealth National Bank is involved in

litigation relating to its foreclosure on certain loan property The litigants claim that
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Commonwealth National Bank acted in bad faith and in violation of applicable law and that its

actions resulted in sale of the underlying property for less than its market value thereby
causing damage to the parties During the third quarter of 2011 the judge issued ruling in
favor of United Bank The litigants have appealed the decision United Bank believes these
claims and the appeal are without merit and is vigorously defending the litigation No estimate
of any reasonably possible loss or range of loss to United Bank can be made at this time

In addition the Company is subject to various legal actions arising in the normal course of
business In the opinion of management after consultation with legal counsel the ultimate

disposition of these matters is not expected to have material adverse effect on the

Companys financial condition results of operations or cash flows

NOTE 0- FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in
three levels based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the

reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value

Level Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets such as the
New York Stock Exchange Level also includes U.S Treasury and other U.S government
and government-sponsored enterprises that are traded by dealers or brokers in active markets
Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions

involving identical assets or liabilities and are not adjusted by the Company

Level Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets
Level includes U.S government and mortgage-backed securities issued by
government-sponsored enterprises Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services
for identical or comparable assets or liabilities and are not adjusted by the Company

Level Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation

methodologies including option pricing models discounted cash flow models and similar

techniques and not based on market exchange dealer or broker-traded transactions Level
valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value
assigned to such assets and liabilities
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Assets measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized below

At December 31 2012

Securities available for sale

Government-sponsored enterprises

Government-sponsored and government-

guaranteed mortgage-backed securities

Private label mortgage-backed securities

Municipal bonds

Corporate bonds ______

Total ______ __________

At December 31 2011

Securities available for sale

Government-sponsored enterprises

Government-sponsored and government-

guaranteed mortgage-backed securities

Private label mortgage-backed securities

Municipal bonds

Corporate bonds

Total __________

The Company has no liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis at December 31

2012 and 2011

The table below presents the changes in Level assets measured at fair value on recurring

basis for the year ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Balance at beginning of year

Total realizedlunrealized losses included in net income

Change in unrealized gain loss

Balance at end of year

Total

Level Level Level Fair Value

3233 3233

257762 257762

2566 2566

28827 28827

1934 1934

$292388 1934 294322

192 192

209493 209493

2178 2178

8384 8384

1566 1566

$220247 1566 221813

2012

1566

165
533

1934

2011

1619

53

1566
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The Company may be required from time to time to measure certain other financial assets on

nonrecurring basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles These

adjustments to fair value usually result from application of lower-of-cost-or-fair value

accounting or write-downs of individual assets The following table summarizes the fair value

hierarchy used to determine the adjustment and the carrying value of the related assets as of

and for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Total

December 31 2012 Level Level Level Gains/Losses

Assets

Loans 546 748
Other real estate owned 825 429
Other assets 595 37

Total assets 1966 1214

December 31 2011

Assets

Loans 3309 432

Other real estate owned 750 130
Other assets 501 99

Total assets 4560 203

The amount of loans represents the carrying value and related write-down and valuation

allowance of impaired loans for which adjustments are based on the estimated fair value of the

underlying collateral The other real estate owned amount represents the carrying value for

which adjustments are also based on the estimated fair value of the property Included in other

assets is venture capital investment carried at cost In the third quarter of 2012 management
determined that an impairment indicator existed and that the investment suffered impairment

that was considered other- than- temporary The cost basis of the investment was written down

by $37 in the third quarter of 2012 to fair value as new cost basis and the write down was

accounted for as realized loss and was included in earnings In the second and third quarters

of 2011 the cost basis of this investment was written down by $59 and $40 respectively to

fair value as new cost basis and the write down was accounted for as realized loss and was

included in earnings

Fair value estimates are made at specific point in time based on relevant market information

and information about the financial instrument These estimates do not reflect any premium or

discount that could result from offering for sale at one time the Companys entire holdings of
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particular fmancial instrument Because market may not readily exist for significant

portion of the Companys financial instruments fair value estimates are based on judgments

regarding future expected loss experience current economic conditions risk characteristics of

various financial instruments and other factors These estimates are subjective in nature and

involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and therefore cannot be determined

with precision Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating fair values

of its financial instruments

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-term Investments

The carrying amounts of cash and short-term instruments approximate fair values based on the

short-term nature of the assets

In vestment Securities and FHLBB Stock

The fair value of securities to be held to maturity and securities available for sale is estimated

based on quoted market prices where available and are not adjusted by management If

quoted market prices are not available fair values are based on quoted market prices of

comparable instruments Ownership of FHLBB stock is restricted to member banks therefore

the stock is not traded The estimated fair value of FHLBB stock is equal to its carrying value

which represents the price at which the FHLBB is obligated to redeem its stock

Loans

For valuation purposes the loan portfolio was segregated into its significant categories which

are residential mortgage commercial real estate commercial and consumer These categories

were further segregated where appropriate into components based on significant financial

characteristics such as type of interest rate fixed or adjustable Fair values were estimated for

each component using assumptions developed by management and valuation model

provided by third party specialist

The fair values of residential mortgage commercial real estate commercial and consumer

loans were estimated by discounting the anticipated cash flows from the respective portfolios

Estimates of the timing and amount of these cash flows considered factors such as future loan

prepayments The discount rates reflected current market rates for loans with similar terms to

borrowers of similarcredit quality The fair value of home equity lines of credit was based on

the outstanding loan balances Fair values for non-performing loans are estimated using

discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values where applicable
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Loans Held for Sale

Fair values are based on commitments in effect from investors or prevailing market rates

Deposits

The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity such as demand deposits NOW regular

savings and money market deposit accounts is equal to the amount payable on demand The

fair value estimates do not include the benefit that results from the generally lower cost of

funding provided by the deposit liabilities compared to the cost of borrowing funds in the

market The fair value estimate of time deposits is based on the discounted value of

contractual cash flows The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for

deposits having similar remaining maturities

Short- term Borrowings

For short-term borrowings maturing within ninety days canying values approximate fair

values Fair values of other short-term borrowings are estimated using discounted cash flow

analyses based on the current incremental borrowing rates in the market for similar types of

borrowing arrangements

Long- term Debt

The fair values of the Companys long-term debt are estimated using discounted cash flow

analyses based on the current incremental borrowing rates in the market for similar types of

borrowing arrangements

Repurchase Agreements

The Company enters into overnight repurchase agreements with its customers Since these

agreements are short-term instruments the fair value of these agreements approximates their

recorded balance The Company also secures term repurchase agreements through other

financial institutions The fair value of these agreements are determined by discounting the

anticipated future cash payments using rates currently available to the Bank for debt with

similar terms and remaining maturities

Subordinated Debentures

The Company has outstanding subordinated debt in the form of trust preferred securities

issued through private placement offering The fair value estimate is determined by

discounting the anticipated future cash payments by using the rates currently available to the

Company for debt with similar terms and remaining maturities
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Off-Balance-Sheet Instruments

Fair value of off-balance-sheet mortgage lending commitments are based on fees currently

charged to enter into similar agreements taking into account the remaining terms of the

agreements and the counterparties credit standing In the case of the commitments discussed

in Note the fair value equals the carrying amounts which are not significant

Summary ofFair Values of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values and related carrying or notional amounts of the Companys

financial instruments are as follows Certain financial instruments and all nonfinancial

instruments are exempt from disclosure requirements Accordingly the aggregate fair value

amounts presented herein do not represent the underlying fair value of the Company

At December 31 2012

Carrying Estimated

Value Level Level Level Fair Value

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 30679 30679 30679

Securities available for sale 294322 292388 1934 294322

Securities held to maturity 82986 85674 85674

Stock in Federal Home Loan

Bank of Boston 18554 18554 18554

Net loans and loans held for sale 1808033 1846519 1846519

Financial Liabilities

Deposits with no stated

maturity 1140766 1140766 1140766

Time deposits 707409 711845 711845

Federal Home Loan Bank of

Boston advances 141525 145543 145543

Repurchase agreements 69229 70082 70082

Subordinated debentures 9630 9630 9630
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At December 31 2011

Carrying Estimated

Value Level Level Level Fair Value

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 61518 61518 61518

Securities available for sale 221813 220247 1566 221813

Securities held to maturity 115897 118311 118311

Stock in Federal Home Loan

Bank of Boston 15365 15365 15365

Net loans and loans held for

sale 1112994 1151008 1151008

Financial Liabilities

Deposits with no stated

maturity 808235 808235 808235

Time deposits 421740 429676 429676

Federal Home Loan Bank of

Boston advances 106417 110201 110201

Repurchase agreements 37260 37347 37347

Subordinated debentures 5539 5539 5539

NOTE STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Regulatory Capital

The Bank is subject to various minimum regulatory capital standards promulgated by the

Office of the Comptroller of the Currency the 0CC Failure to meet minimum capital

requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by

regulators that if undertaken could have direct material effect on the Banks financial

statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt

corrective action the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative

measures of the Banks assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated

under regulatory accounting practices The Banks capital amounts and classification are also

subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components risk weightings and

other factors The Company is not separately subject to capital guidelines

The minimum capital standards of the 0CC generally require the maintenance of regulatory

capital sufficient to meet each of three tests hereinafter described as the total risk-based

capital requirement the Tier risk-based capital requirement and the Tier or leverage capital

requirement The Tier risk-based and Tier leverage capital requirements provide for

minimum core capital tangible capital plus certain forms of supervisory goodwill and other

qualifying intangible assets generally equal to 4.0% of risk-weighted assets and to 4.0% of
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adjusted total assets respectively except for those banks with the highest examination rating

and acceptable levels of risk The risk- based capital requirement provides for the maintenance

of core capital plus general loss allowances equal to 8.0% of risk-weighted assets In

computing risk-weighted assets the Bank multiplies the value of each asset on its balance

sheet by defined risk-weighting factor e.g one- to four-family residential loans carry risk-

weighted factor of 50%

The 0CC capital rules also require savings associations to hold ratio of 1.5% tangible capital

to tangible assets Tangible equity is defined as core capital less intangible assets Tangible

assets are defined as adjusted total assets less intangible assets

As of December 31 2012 the most recent notification from the 0CC categorized the Bank as

well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action To be

categorized as adequately capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum ratios as set forth in

the accompanying table There are no conditions or events since that notification that

management believes have changed the Banks category

The Banks actual capital amounts and ratios as well as minimum amounts and ratios required

for capital adequacy are presented below

To Be Well Capitalized

For Capital Under Regulatory

Actual Adequacy Purposes Framework

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31 2012

Total Risk-based Capital

to Risk Weighted Assets 263712 13.6% 155028 8.0% 193786 10.0%

Tier Risk-based Capital

to Risk Weighted Assets
251623 13.0% 77514 4.0% 116271 6.0%

Tier Core Capital

to Adjusted Total Assets 251623 10.7% 94117 4.0% 117646 5.0%

Tangible Equity

to Tangible Assets 251623 10.7% 35294 1.5% N/A

As of December 31 2011

Total Risk-based Capital

to Risk Weighted Assets 206525 17.1% 96672 8.0% 120840 10.0%

Tier Risk-based Capital

to Risk Weighted Assets 195393 16.2% 48336 4.0% 72504 6.0%

Tier Core Capital

to Adjusted Total Assets 195393 12.2% 63894 4.0% 79868 5.0%

Tangible Equity

to Tangible Assets 195393 12.2% 23960 1.5% N/A
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY Concluded

The following table provides reconciliation of the Companys total consolidated equity to

the capital amounts for the Bank reflected in the preceding table

December 31

2012 2011

Total consolidated equity $307189 $227361

Adjustments

Additional equity capital of United Financial Bancorp Inc 6302 16584

Accumulated other comprehensive income 5401 6752
Disallowed goodwill and intangible assets 43863 8632

Tangible Tier and Core Capital 251623 195393

Allowance for loan losses 12089 11132

Total risk-based capital $263712 $206525

Common Stock Repurchase Plans

On October 18 2012 the Board of Directors approved plan to repurchase up to 5% or

approximately 769000 shares of the Companys common stock through open market

purchases or privately negotiated transactions Stock repurchases are accounted for as treasury

stock carried at cost and reflected as reduction in stockholders equity As of December 31

2012 the Company repurchased 27312 shares at cost of approximately $407 and an average

price of $14.91 under this plan

On October 26 2010 the Board of Directors approved plan to repurchase up to 5% or

approximately 807803 shares of the Companys common stock through open market

purchases or privately negotiated transactions The Company completed its repurchase of

807803 shares of its outstanding common stock at cost of approximately $12134 and at an

average price of $15.02 on November 19 2012

On October 16 2009 the Board of Directors approved plan to repurchase up to 5% or

approximately 798055 shares of the Companys common stock through open market

purchases or privately negotiated transactions The Company completed its repurchase of

798055 shares of its outstanding common stock at cost of approximately $10779 and at an

average price of $13.51 on October 26 2010
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UNITED FINANCIAL
BANCORP INC

The following are the condensed financial statements for United Financial Bancorp Inc

parent company only

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31

2012 2011

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 16642 5184

Investment in Bank 300887 210777

ESOP loans receivable 11071

Other assets 4385 6077

TOTAL ASSETS 321914 233109

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Subordinated debentures 9630 5539
Other liabilities 5095 209

Stockholders equity 307189 227361

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 321914 233109

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Income

Investment interest 82 111 168

ESOP loan interest 360 379 398

Impairment charges on securities 37 99 145
Other income 22

Total income 427 391 421

Expense

Subordinated debentures interest 276 255 250

Professional services 1293 1295 1248

Acquisition related expenses 1881 126

Other expenses 24 102 67

Total expense 3474 1652 1691

Loss before income tax benefit 3047 1261 1270
Income tax benefit 498 510 145

Loss before equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank 2549 751 1125
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank 6177 11935 11157

NET INCOME 3628 $11184 10032
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF UNITED FINANCIAL
BANCORP INC Concluded

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income 3628 11184 10032
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

used in operating activities

Equity in undistributed earnings of the bank 6177 11935 11157
Impairment charges on securities 37 99 145

Decrease increase in accrued interest receivable

Decrease increase in other assets 1786 1820 681
Increase decrease in intercompany payables and other

liabilities 4886 57 37
Net cash provided by used in operating activities 4160 2528 1700

Cash flows from investing activities

Net cash from acquisition of NEBS 118

Capital contributions to venture capital fund 131 100 200
Maturity of short term time deposits 1096
Principal payments on ESOP loans 624 605 586

Net cash provided by investing activities 611 505 1482

Cash flows from financing activities

Return of capital from United Bank 17844 84 18557
Tax benefit from MRP vesting 29 91 115

Tax withheld on options exercised 102 55 29
Treasury stock purchases 5660 6780 11047
Reissuance of treasury shares in connection with restricted

stock warrants 426

Reissuance of treasury shares in connection with stock

options exercised 97 89

Cash paid for in the money stock options exercised

Cash dividends paid 5521 5067 4589
Net cash provided by used in financing activities 6687 11214 3007

Increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 11458 13237 2789
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5184 18421 15632

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 16642 5184 18421

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid during the period

Income taxes net 5775 4850 4750
Non-cash item

Transfer of treasury shares to pay-off ESOP loan 10447
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UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Dollars in thousands except per share amounts

NOTE QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS UNAUDITED

The following table summarizes the operating results on quarterly basis for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011

Three Months Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

2012

Interest income 16971 16999 17070 20131

Interest expense 3871 3705 3520 3896

Net interest income 13100 13294 13550 16235

Provision for loan losses 650 750 1050 689

Non-interest income 2573 2570 2511 2969

Non-interest expense 11275 11468 11192 22305

Income loss before income

taxes 3748 3646 3819 3790

Income tax expense
899 1064 890 942

Net income loss 2849 2582 2929 4732

Basic earnings per share 0.19 0.18 0.20 0.28

Diluted earnings per share 0.19 0.17 0.20 0.28

Dividends paid per share 0.09 0.09 0.10 0.10

2011

Interest income 17718 18128 17800 17428

Interest expense 4927 4746 4401 4187

Net interest income 12791 13382 13399 13241

Provision for loan losses 808 673 750 1011

Non-interest income 2149 2211 2423 2570

Non-interest expense 10940 11403 11001 10718

Income before income taxes 3192 3517 4071 4082

Income tax expense
763 827 986 1102

Net income 2429 2690 3085 2980

Basic earnings per share 0.16 0.18 0.21 0.20

Diluted earnings per share 0.16 0.18 0.20 0.20

Dividends paid per share 0.08 0.08 0.09 0.09

Includes acquisition-related expenses of $592 $366 and $3994 for the quarters ended June 30 September 30 and December 31 2012

respectively an ESOP plan termination expense of $4482 and FHLBB prepayment penalties of $207 for the quarter ended

December 31 2012
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ITEM CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None

ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management including our Chief Executive

Officer and Chief Financial Officer we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Rule 3a- 15e and 5d- 15e under the Exchange Act as of the end of the

fiscal year the Evaluation Date Based upon that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer concluded that as of the Evaluation Date our disclosure controls and procedures were effective

Managements report on internal control over financial reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control

over financial reporting

The Companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America The

Companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the

maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the Company ii provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the Company and iii provide reasonable assurance regarding

prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the Companys assets that could

have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31 2012 based on the framework set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework Based on that assessment management
concluded that as of December 31 2012 the Companys internal control over financial reporting was effective

based on the criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework Managements evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012

Our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 has been audited by Wolf
Company P.C an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is included

herein

Attestation report
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WOLF
COMIANY RC

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders

United Financial Bancorp Inc

We have audited United Financial Bancorp Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on

criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the

Treadway Commission United Financial Bancorp Inc.s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the

design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk Our audit also included performing
such

other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides
reasonable basis for

our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also because managements assessment and our audit were

conducted to meet the reporting requirements
of Section 112 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act

FDICIA our audit of United Financial Bancorp Inc.s internal control over financial reporting included controls over the

preparation of financial statements in accordance with the instructions to the Consolidated Financial Statements for Bank

Holding Companies Form FR Y-9C and the Federal Financial Institutions Examination Council Instructions for Consolidated

Reports of Condition and Income companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion United Financial Bancorp Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31 2012 based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

the December 31 2012 consolidated financial statements of United Financial Bancorp Inc and our report dated March 15

2013 expressed an unqualified opinion

Boston Massachusetts

March 15 2013
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Changes to internal controls

There were no changes made in our internal controls over financial reporting that occurred during the

quarter ended December 31 2012 that could materially affect or are reasonably likely to materially affect our

internal control over financial reporting

ITEM 9B OTHER INFORMATION

Not Applicable

PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND COPORATE GOVERNANCE

Directors

For information concerning the Companys directors the information contained under the section

captioned Proposal 1Election of Directors in the Companys Proxy Statement for the 2013 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Executive Officers

For information relating to officers of the Company the section captioned Proposal 1Election of
Directors in the Proxy Statement and Part Item BusinessExecutive Officers of the Registrant in this

Annual Report on Form 10-K are incorporated by reference

Compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act

For information regarding compliance with Section 16a of the Exchange Act the information

contained under the section captioned Section 16a Beneficial Ownersh Reporting Compliance in the Proxy
Statement is incorporated herein by reference

Disclosure of Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted Code of Ethics for Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officer

copy of which can be found in the investor relations section of the Companys website at

www.bankatunited.com

Corporate Governance

For information regarding the audit committee and its composition and the audit committee financial

expert the section captioned Corporate Governance and Board Matters in the Proxy Statement is

incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Compensation Discussion

and Analysis Executive Compensation Corporate Governance and Board MattersDirectors

Compensation and Compensation Committee Report sections of the Proxy Statement
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ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND

MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned

Stock Ownership in the Proxy Statement

Security Ownership of Management

Information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned

Stock Ownership in the Proxy Statement

Changes in Control

Management of the Company knows of no arrangements including any pledge by any person

or securities of the Company the operation of which may at subsequent date result in

change in control of the registrant

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table sets forth information as of December 31 2012 about Company common

stock that may be issued under the Companys equity compensation plans All plans were

approved by the Companys stockholders

Plan Category

Number of securities Weighted-average Number of securities

to be issued upon exercise price of remaining available

the exercise of outstanding options for future issuance

outstanding options warrants and rights under equity

warrants and rights compensation plans

excluding securities

reflected in column

Equity compensation plans

approved by security holders 1602040 $12.59 286753

Equity compensation plans

not approved by security holders

Total 1602040 $12.59 286753

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the Transactions with Related

Persons and Corporate GovernanceDirector Independence sections of the Proxy Statement

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to Proposal Ratification of

Appointment of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm of the Proxy Statement
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The following documents are filed under Item of this Form 10-K

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms on Financial Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheetsat December 31 2012 and 2011

Consolidated Statements of IncomeYears Ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive IncomeYears Ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders EquityYears Ended December 31 2012 2011 and

2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash FlowsYears ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

a2 Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules are omitted as required information is either not applicable or is presented in the

consolidated financial statements

a3 Exhibits

3.1 Articles of Incorporation of United Financial Bancorp Inc

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of United Financial Bancorp Inc

Form of Common Stock Certificate of United Financial Bancorp Inc

10.1 Employment Agreement by and between United Bank and Richard Collins

10.2 Amendment to Employment Agreement by and between United Bank and Richard Collins

10.3 Change in Control Agreement by and between United Bank and Jeffrey Sullivan

10.4 Change in Control Agreement by and between United Bank and Mark Roberts

10.5 Change in Control Agreement by and between United Bank and Charles Valade

10.6 Amendment to the Change in Control Agreement by and between United Bank and Charles Valade

10.7 United Bank 2007 Supplemental Retirement Plan for Senior Executives

10.8 Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreement by and between United Bank and Richard Collins

10.9 Split Dollar Life Insurance Agreement by and between United Bank and John Patterson

10.10 United Bank 2006 Stock-Based Incentive Plan

10.11 United Bank 2013 Annual Incentive Plan

10.12 United Bank 2007 Director Retirement Plan

10.13 Directors Fee Continuation Plan

10.14 United Financial Bancorp Inc 2008 Equity Incentive Plan

10.15 Retention Agreement by and between United Bank and Charles Valade

10.16 CNB Financial Corp 2008 Equity Incentive Plan

10.17 CNB Financial Corp Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan 12
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10.18 Form of Award Agreement under the CNB Financial Corp 2008 Equity Incentive Plan

10.19 Form of Award Agreement under the CNB Financial Corp Amended and Restated Stock Option Plan

12
21 Subsidiaries of Registrant

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Finn Wolf Company P.C

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Grant Thornton LLP

31.1 Rule 3a- 14a/i 5d- 14a Certification of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 3a- 14a/i Sd- 14a Certification of Chief Financial Officer

32 Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

101.0 The following materials from the Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2012 formatted in XBRL Extensible Business Reporting Language the

Consolidated Balance Sheets ii the Consolidated Statements of Net Income iii the Consolidated

Statements of Comprehensive Income iv the Consolidated Statement of Stockholders Equity

the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and vi the Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Management contract or compensatory plan contract or arrangement

Furnished not filed

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-i of United Financial Bancorp Inc

File No 333-144245 originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 29 2007

Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-K of United Financial Bancorp Inc filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on March 13 2009

Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K of United Financial Bancorp Inc filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on November 29 2007

Incorporated by reference to the Form 10-Q of United Financial Bancorp Inc on November 2012

Incorporated by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of United Financial Bancorp Inc filed with

the Securities Exchange Commission on March 14 2011

Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K of United Financial Bancorp Inc filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on January 2008

Incorporated by reference to Appendix to the proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of

Stockholders of United Financial Bancorp Inc File No 000-51369 filed by United Financial Bancorp

Inc under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 on June 12 2006

Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K of United Financial Bancorp Inc filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission on November 21 2007

Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form 5-1 of United Financial Bancorp Inc

File No 333-123371 originally filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16 2005

10 Incorporated by reference to Appendix of the Companys Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008

Annual Meeting of Stockholders File No 000-52947 as filed with the SEC on April 29 2008

ii Incorporated by reference to Appendix to the Proxy Statement filed by CNB Financial Corp with the

Commission on April 11 2008

12 Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed by CNB Financial Corp with

the Commission on March 27 2007

13 Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed by CNB Financial Corp with

the Commission on August 2008
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized

UNITED FINANCIAL BANCORP INC

Date March 15 2013 By Is Richard Collins

Richard Collins

Chairman President and Chief Executive

Officer

Duly Authorized Representative

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signatures
Title Date

Is Richard Collins Chief Executive Officer March 15 2013

Richard Collins
President and Chairman

Principal Executive Officer

Is Mark Roberts Executive Vice President and March 15 2013

Mark Roberts
ChiefFinancial Officer

Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer

Is Paula Aiello Director March 15 2013

Paula Aiello

Is Michael Crowley Director March 15 2013

Michael Crowley

Is Carol Moore Cutting Director March 15 2013

Carol Moore Cutting

Is Carol Leary Director March 15 2013

Carol Leary

Is Kevin Ross Director March 15 2013

Kevin Ross

Is Robert Stewart Jr Director March 15 2013

Robert Stewart Jr

Is Michael Werenski Director March 15 2013

Michael Werenski

Is Thomas OBrien Director March 15 2013

Thomas OBrien

Is David OConnor Director March 15 2013

David OConnor
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Exhibit 23.0

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement Nos 333-14978 333-152399 and 333-

164472 of our reports dated March 15 2013 relating to the consolidated financial statements of United Financial

Bancorp Inc and subsidiary the Company and the effectiveness of the Companys internal control over

financial reporting appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of United Financial Bancorp mc for the
year

ended December 31 2012

is Wolf Company P.C

Boston Massachusetts

March 15 2013



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated March 14 2011 with respect to the consolidated statements of earnings

comprehensive income stockholders equity and cash flows included in the Annual Report of United Financial

Bancorp Inc and subsidiary on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 We hereby consent to the

incorporation by reference of said report in the registration statements of United Financial Bancorp Inc and

subsidiary on Form S-8 No 333-149781 effective March 18 2008 No 333-152399 effective July 18 2008

and No 333-164472 effective January 22 2010

Is Grant Thornton LLP

Boston Massachusetts

March 15 2013



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a

Richard Collins certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of United Financial Bancorp Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows

of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and Sd- 15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a-l 5f and 15d-i 5f
for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external
purposes

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report fmancial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 15 2013 /5/ Richard Collins

Richard Collins

Chairman President and ChiefExecutive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer

Rule 13a-14a/15d-14a

Mark Roberts certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of United Financial Bancorp Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to

state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows

of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 15d-i 5f
for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to

the registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within

those entities particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures

as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal

quarter in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to

materially affect the registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of

internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants

ability to record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 15 2013 Is Mark Roberts

Mark Roberts

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

Section 1350 Certifications

In connection with the Aimual Report of United Financial Bancorp Inc the Company on Form

10-K for the year ended December 31 2012 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the

Report the undersigned hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as added by 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley

Act of 2002 that

The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d of the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 and

The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial

condition and results of operations of the Company as of and for the period covered by the

Report

Date March 15 2013 Is Richard Collins

Richard Collins

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Date March 15 2013 Is Mark Roberts

Mark Roberts

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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mpany Profile

ted Financial Bancorp Inc is puhlidy owned corpora ion and the holding company for Unaed Bank federally chartered bank
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United Bank Locations

SPRINGFIELD REGION

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS OPERATIONS CENTER WDLOW
95 Elm Street West Springfield MA 01089 528 Center Street Ludlow MA 01056

413.787.1700 1.866.959.BANK

NORTHAMPTON
UNITED WEALTH MANAGEMENT GROUP 180 Main Street Northampton MA 01060
140 Main Street Northampton MA 01060

Express Drive-Up Branch
413.585.5100

491 Pleasant Street Northampton MA 01060

AGAWAM
SPRINGFIELD

806 Suffield Street Agawam MA 01001
459 Main Street Indian Orchard MA 01151

CHICOPEE 1077 St James Avenue Springfield MA 01104

445 Montgomery Street Chicopee MA 01020 115 State Street Springfield MA 01103

EAST LONGMEADOW 1930 Wilbraham Road Springfield MA 01129

94 Shaker Road East Longmeadow MA 01028 ATM only

Basketball Hall of Fame

FEEDING HILLS 1000 West Columbus Avenue Springfield MA 01104

1325 Springfield Street Feeding Hills MA 01030

WEST SPRINGFIELD

HOLYOKE 95 Elm Street West Springfield MA 01089

1830 Northampton Street Holyoke MA 01040
Express Drive-Up Branch

52 Van Deene Avenue West Springfield MA 01089
HUNTINGTON

14 Russell Road Huntington MA 01050 WESTFIELD

10 Elm Street Westheld MA 01085

LONGMEADOW
168 Southampton Road Westheld MA 01085

670 Bliss Road Longmeadow MA 01106

WORCESTER REGION

WORCESTER REGION HEADQUARTERS WHITINSVILLE

33 Waldo Street Worcester MA 01608 701 Church Street Whitinsville MA 01588

508.752.4800 .866.959.BANK

WORCESTER

NORTHBOROUGH 1393 Grafton Street Worcester MA 01604

Church Street Northborough MA 01532
33 Waldo Street Worcester MA 01608

SHREWSBURY West Boylston Street Worcester MA 01605

564 Main Street Shrewsbur MA 01545 ATM only

The Hanover Theatre

WEST BOYLSTON
Southbridge Street Worcester MA 01608

26 West Boylston Street West Boylston MA 01583

BEVERLY

Loan Production Office 100 Cummings Center Suite 238G Beverly MA 01915



BRISTOL

Riverside Avenue Bristol Cl 06010

888 Farmington Avenue Bristol CT 06010

BROAD BROOK

124 Main Street Broad Brook CT 06016

CHESHIRE

286 Maple Avenue Chesh re CT 06410

EAST WINDSOR

Shoham Road East Windsor Ct 06088

ELLINGTON

287 Somers Road Ellingtoi CT 06029

ENFIELD

855 Enfield Street Enfield CT 06082

268 Hazard Avenue Enfield CT 06082

ATM only

Bright Meadow Boulevarc Enfield CT 06082

MANCHESTER

23 Main Streets Manchester CT 06042

SOUTHINGTON

98 Main Street Suite 02A Southington CT 06489

158 North Main Streets Southington CT 06489

SUFFIELD

112 Mountain Road Suffield CT 06078

TERRYVILLE

South Main Street Terryville CT 06786

WALLINGFORD

707 North Colony Road Route Wallingford CT 06492

WNDSOR LOCKS

20 Main Street Windsor Locks CT 06096

CONNECTICUT REGION HEADQUARTERS GLASTONBURY

855 Enfield Streets Enfield CT 06082 Loan Production Office

860.2535200w 866959BANK 115 Glastonbury Boulevard Glastonbury Ct 06033



United Financial Bancorp Inc

Connecting All Offices 1.866.959.BANK

bankatunited.com


